LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Thursday, 25 March, 1982

Time — 8:00 p.m.

CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY
SUPPLY — NATURAL RESOURCES

MR. CHAIRMAN, Harry M. Harapiak (The Pas): We'll
call the Committee to order. We are on Natural
Resources, Resolution 113, Item No. 13. Acquisition/-
Construction of Physical Assets. 13.(a).

The Honourable Minister.

HON. AL MACKLING (St. James): Mr. Chairman,
before members make further contributions, depart-
mental staff have kindly prepared for me answers to
questions that were asked, not necessarily under this
item, but I'd like to give that information now.

Questions were asked in respect to Water Resour-
ces Branch Estimates and the Honourable Member
for Lakeside had asked in respect the number of
Water Rights licences issued and the answer is 1,042
issued to date; 77 licences issued in 1981. An estimate
of the number of unlicenced works, the answer was
125. The number of Water Rights licences under
active review, 30. The number of applications for
Water Rights licences, the answer 345 new licences
and 17 renewals.

The Honourable Member for Pembina asked a
question, the number of Water Rights licences issued
for groundwater use in the southwest area of the pro-
vince, 19; number of private dams in the province
which have been licenced, 245.

The Honourable Member for Morris asked about
Irrigation WaterRights licencesissued on the Assini-
boine River, the answer is 65.

The Honourable Member for Springfield enquired
aboutbrushingundertakenrecently on Cooks Creek.
He wanted to know if it was related to construction
and also wanted furtherdetailsinregardto the brush-
ing. Thebrushingwasundertaken onCooksCreekby
the Cooks Creek Conservation Districtinthe winter of
1980-81 beginning near the northern boundary of the
R.M. of Springfield and working southward.

The Brushing Programwasrenewedin 1981-82 and
iscurrently under way and has progressedtothe Zore
Road or north of 7-12-5east. Costsin the district 1981
program were $6,326.57, estimated cost for 1982 is
$20,000. These costs are cost-shared by the province
as per the normal arrangements. The Creek is desig-
nated a fifth order below the Satan’s Creek Conflu-
ence and the costs are 100 percent provincial.

Upstream of Satan's Creek, the Cooks Creek is
fourth order and costs are shared 70 percent by the
province. The anticipated benefits are lowered water
surface during higher flow levels. The program is not
connected withany proposed reconstructionandisa
matter of maintenance only.

TheHonourable Member for Springfield also asked
about drain 62 in the R.M. of East St. Paul which
apparently has inadequate capacity through PTH 59
resulting in spring flooding. The answer to that con-
cern is, this is a municipal drain located in the nor-
theastern corner of the municipality. There is no
record in our files that this problem waseverreferred
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to us. It was mentioned by the Reeve to a Regional
Water Manager in a recent conversation. The Reeve
statedthatitis theview of his council that the culvert
through PTH 59is not large enough but they have not
been successful in convincing the Highways Depart-
ment of this. Our Regional Water Manager, Mr. Ste-
fanson, indicated that the Water Resource Branch
could provide a technical assessment if requested to
do so by resolution of the council.

The Honourable Member for Emerson enquired as
to whether or not any improvements are proposed to
the Marsh River Channel as part of the Marsh River
Project being undertaken under the Canada-
Manitoba Value-Added Crops Production Agree-
ment. Theansweris,nochannelimprovementsalong
the Marsh River are included in the Marsh River
Project.

The Honourable Member for Morris wanted to
know how much money had been expended on the
Domain Drain Project under the Canada-Manitoba
Value-Added Crops Production Agreement in fiscal
year 1981-82. The answer is, total expenditures in
1981-82 were $425,000.00.

The Honourable Member for Morris and the Hon-
ourable Member for Pembina asked for various items
of information concerning the Almasippi Wet Sands
Area Project being undertaken under the Canada-
Manitoba Value-Added Crops Production Agree-
ment. The questions raised related to: (a) What kind
of works to control flows;? (b) Are headwater struc-
tures being considered? (c) Kinds of crops which
would be considered? (d) When does project
terminate?

The answer is, the study is to develop and evaluate
several water management plans (drainage
schemes), to determine effects, costs and benefits.
The only works constructed as part of the study are
small underground tile drain installations. Works
being considered are ditches, culverts to control
flows, dyke water detentionaries and tile drains.

Headwater control structures are not being consi-
dered since the study is confined to an area where
thesearenotappropriate. Cropsusedinplottrialsare
corn, alfalfa and barley. Phase | of the project termi-
nates March 31st, 1983. Phase |l if undertaken, will
terminate September 30th, 1985.

| think there was also questions inrespectto maps.
There were a number of questions in respect to aerial
photography, Mr. Chairman. The following of the line
kilometers or miles and costs for aerial photography.

Supplementary 7 mm reconnaisance photography
flown in MGS aircraft usingthe Branch 70 mm camera
system. This photography cannot be used to make
topographical maps, 8,000 line kilometers or 5,000
line miles, a total cost of $34,665.00. Agencies
requesting this photography were Municipal Plan-
ning, Municipal Assessment, Park’s Branch, Agricul-
tural Crown land, Forestry, Northern Affairs, Water
Resources and Wildlife.

Contracted aerial photography for mapping pur-
poses, flown during 1981, the spring-fall flying sea-
son, 15,510 line kilometers or 9,635 line miles, a total
cost of $111,500.00. The scales ranged from 1-5,000
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to 1-56,000; 1-20,000 scale topographical mapping for
DREE, 350 line kilometers, 220 line miles; 1-2,000
scale flood damage reduction mapping, 280 line
kilometers, 170line miles; 1-15,840scale forestinven-
tory mapping, 14,880 line kilometers or 9,245 line
miles.

| also have copies of a leaflet, Mr. Chairman, in
respect to the maps that are available from the Sur-
veys and Mapping Branch and I'll be happy to see
these distributed to the members. | notice also that it
says, “The Map People,” and it's in red, white, and
blue, Mr. Chairman. We'llhaveto seeaboutthatlater
on.

Mr. Chairman, we are dealing with Item 13, the
capitalitems and the maps, detail has all been distrib-
uted in connection with that and we're voting on the
capitalamountandalthoughthedetailhasbeengiven
to you, of course, the carrying out of this work is
subject to the program being proceeded with in this
fiscal year. It's still subject to evaluation by the
department as the work is brought forward andit'sin
the budget; it's there, butas and when these projects
proceed, of course, there is an evaluation from the
department and from the Minister as to how they
progress or when they progress.

MR.ENNS: Mr. Chairman, | don't want to disrupt the
proceedings todate, but | happen to know thatwhen
the Minister of Health presents his Estimates and
thereisanamountintherefor $800,000 fora personal
care home here, or an amount for $2 million there for
hospital reconstruction, as is the case with the Minis-
ter of Education, when she presents her Estimates
and there are detailed Estimates before them that we
areasa Committee being asked tocomment on and to
pass and to approve, that we then have some assur-
ance that those programs are going to be carried
forward. | must admit it's only 12 minutes after the
Committee has assembled, but what you're telling
me, Mr. Minister, is thatyou're asking us asa Commit-
tee to pass approval for some $13,255,000 worth of
expenditures that you then subsequently reserve the
right to change at will without reference to the Legis-
lature, without reference to this Committee and say
we're just putting this before you as a projected pro-
gram. If we check back and find that there's too much
in this area or there's too much in a Conservative
riding that it's subject to your review.

Mr. Chairman, | think we can resolve this very
quickly. If you will think about what you've just said,
Mr. Minister, and say that by and large, these are the
considered Estimates of the department about the
worksthey wish to carry on in the coming construc-
tion year. If you're telling us that the items, the maps
that you have provided us with latterly, the drains that
we are specifically talking about, are subject to
further political and Cabinet review then, Mr. Chair-
man, there's very little more that we could do at this
Committee.

MR.MACKLING: Mr.Chairman,theHonourable
Member waxes indignant about something that, of
course, he as Minister, and he as part of an adminis-
tration certainly follow. For example, we have heard
the honourable members becoming very indignant
about protection forRed River Valleytowns. Yetthere
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was provision made in the former administration’s
budget for the necessary funds, voted by a similar
committee onaprevious occasion,andthatwork was
not proceeded with. There was no agreement arrived
at with the towns — apparently a lack of communica-
tion — yet the money was voted. Now in recent days |
have suffered, on behalf of the ratepayers in Mani-
toba, some embarrassment, that thiswork havingnot
been proceeded with, although voted many, many,
many months before, and no consultation with the
local communities, hasn't been proceeded with. And
the administration had proceeded on the supposition
that thiswastheright thing todo toletthose commun-
ities know what the terms and arrangements were.
Now for the honourable member to say that if any-
thingis voted by this Committee then it's cast in stone
and there can be no change in that, that's a departure
that from past practice that | will not accept, because
thatis notthe way the previous administation worked,
and thatis not the way the previous Minister worked,
becausethe works werevoted by this committee. The
items were voted by this committee, but the works
were not proceeded with. And | am saying, Mr.
Chairman, that thisis theitemized capital outline, but
it's certainly subject to review by the Cabinet as it
always has been.

MR. ENNS: Well, Mr. Chairman, it's one thing and |
fully appreciate that where different jurisdictions are
involved, municipal or federal, and we have cost-
sharing arrangements with differentjurisdictions that
can offset, that can delay implementation of certain
voted funds for specific purpose. But the Minister
didn't say that. In fact, it was this committee and
members of my groupthatsuggested to the Minister
that those specific funds that he now alludes to as an
example, the upgrading of the valley community
dikes, they may notbe expended becauseof thatkind
of a disagreement. But what the Minister has sug-
gested wasthat the entire capital budget, the specific
drains that are 100-percent provincial responsibility,
are subject to review after having been passed in this
Committee. That'swhat| find difficult to agree with. |
do not press the honourable minister on the basis of
where he has to seek concurrence as he has to. I'm
reminding the Minister that is a policy decision made
by his government. But | can agree with him that
unless the concurrence is there, whether it comes
from federal authorities, or for federal reasons, or
from municipal authorities, that somewhat places that
responsibility out of his hands. That surely doesn't
apply to those areas of construction that are being
portrayed in these Estimates where it is 100-percent
the provincial's responsibility.

MR.MACKLING: Mr.Chairman, neither this adminis-
tration, the previous administration or the administra-
tion before that was bound by the outline of capital
items to proceed with those items. That is just not the
practice of government. The honourable members
know that there are many reasons why projects may
not be proceeded with. They may discover design
problemsin the works, they may under reassessment
decide that because of divided interest, because of
whatever, the works may not be proceeded with. | just
indicated to the members of this Committee that the
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passing of this Estimate does not bind this Minister or
this government to proceed with every single one of
these items. It may be that some willnotbe proceeded
with and I'm just being very frank with the members.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for River East.

MR.PHIL EYLER (River East): | noticed a small item
here in the park budget, Marina Infrastructure, can
you give me an idea what that is?

MR.MACKLING: Justamoment, Mr. Chairman. How
much — what was thatitem?

MR. EYLER: Oh, well it's one of many projects for
58,000.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, to the best recoltec-
tion of Mr. Doyle, it's a water supply and parking area
item.

MR. EYLER: Marinalnfrastructure then doesn’'t mean
docking facilities?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, I'm advised that
there are some docking improvements being devel-
oped by the Federal Government there in the Hecla
Park waterfront area, and some docking facilities
being built by a private individual, but there's nothing
specifically in these capital Estimates dealing with
docking facilities.

MR. EYLER: | was just wondering because | know a
lot of Winnipeggers take their boats up and they park
at the provincial dock up there and they keep their
boats there all summer. | don’'t know if they're paying
fees now but they used to stay there the whole
summer for free, and it was getting pretty crowded.
Are there any plans to collectfees or are they collect-
ing fees now there?

MR. MACKLING: I'm given to understand that at the
south harbour, it's afederalwork and fees are paid on
mooring there. In Gull Harbour, these are facilities
maintained by a private operator, but the fee structure
has to be approved by the Minister because they are
fees imposed in a provincial park concession.

MR.EYLER: You mean the province doesn't own that
dock anymore?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, perhaps | in my
answers didn't provide the kind of information the
honourable member needed. There are private moor-
ing facilities, private slips, that an individual has built
and herents out from that. It wasn't built with provin-
cialtaxpayers’'money apparently; it's built by aprivate
individual and he's renting out space there, but any
charge that is made within the area has to be
approved.

MR.EYLER: I'mglad to hearthat somebody built that
and gave it to my friends for free. | know they haven't
been paying any dockagefeesoranything like that for
afew years now. —(Interjection)—no names, it might
betoo closetothe otherparty. Onthe otherside of the
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lake there's a nice mooring place on the Rice River
and | was wondering if that's the Rice River where this
Rice River forestry road is projected to be built?

MR.MACKLING: Could you elaborate on that a little
bit?

MR. EYLER: It's Rice River Road under Forestry,
Canada-Manitoba Northern Development.

MR. MACKLING: That's on the east side of Lake
Winnipeg andit’'s going up from the wholeriver area
following up on the east side of Lake Winnipeg. That's
primarily for timber extraction for Abitibi. Abitibi is
the contractor there.

MR. EYLER: So, that's not for channel loggers or
anybody, it's just for Abitibi.

MR. MACKLING: It's just for Abitibi, but it's being
built to standards that the provincesets so that it can
be used for other purposes. It willopen up theareafor
recreational use or other use.

MR.EYLER: So, thisroadthen will be upgradedto an
all-weather, all-vehicle road?

MR. MACKLING: It's a resource road, but it's being
built to a greater dimension at greater cost than ordi-
narily would be if we just left it to the standard that
Abitibi needed to extract the logging.

MR. EYLER: Ordinary cars could travel on it, oris it
just all train vehicles?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, on most occasions
these roads are reasonably restricted because of the
riskinvolvedto people travelling when forestry opera-
tions are in being. However, there is a problem
attendant in restricting their use at other times for
game management and so on. It's a policy area that
we have to deal with.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for River East.

MR. EYLER: | was just wondering what the intention
was, if this was just for forestry if you were envisioning
upgrading it at a future time for opening cottage
developments or just where it went. It says RiceRiver,
so | imagine it goes to Rice River.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, if we had a map
here, ultimately aroad will goonthe eastsideof Lake
Winnipeg up to the communities that are now isolated
and that Rice River Road will be continually added to.
Hopefully we will be getting up to — | think the first
community is Berens River.

MR.EYLER: | was just wondering then, is this tied in
at all with Park Development?

MR. MACKLING: No, Mr. Chairman.

MR. EYLER: Not at all. Do we usually build forestry
roads for private enterprise?
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MR. MACKLING: Let mereadanexplanatory noteon
this road, Mr. Chairman.

*Road construction commenced during 1979-80 to
provide all weather access to previously inaccessible
forest areas located east of Lake Winnipeg in the
vicinity of the Rice River. The Rice River Road will
form part of a future road network serving the com-
munities of Bloodvein, Berens River and others. Con-
struction of the Rice River Road was included in the
Abitibi Timber Supply Agreementsignedby the prov-
ince and Abitibi-Price Incorporated on May 29, 1979.

“Inits five-year operating plan the company intends
tocomplete 25 miles of Rice Riverroad by December,
1983. By March 31, 1981, the company had completed
the first 10 miles of road construction and the engi-
neering investigations necessary for the next 8.75
miles under contracts with the province.

“During fiscal year 1981-82, the department in
Abitibi-Price Incorporated will jointly construct miles
10to 18.75 and locate the centre line of the proposed
road from the Rice River to Bloodvein, a distance of
approximately 35 miles. Funding in the amount of
$500,000 was provided in the 1981-82 Estimates for
the province's share of the ‘81-82 expenditures.
Expenditures incurred by the province on the Rice
River road prior to April 1, 1981, were sharable on a
60-40 basis with the Federal Government under the
Canada-ManitobaNorthlands Agreement. It was
anticipated that the 1981-82 expenditures would be
sharable under the Canada-Manitoba Northern
Development Agreement.”

| won't read the following note because there's
some kind of negative quality to the note and I'm not
bound toreadit.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Roblin-Russell.

MR. J. WALLY McKENZIE (Roblin-Russell): Mr.
Chairman, I'm very concerned and very excited about
what's going on here in this Committee tonight and
we're expected to pass this $13,255,000 item without
very littleevidence of what's going to take place, how
thosedollarsaregoingto beexpended, and the many
serious problems we have in rural Manitoba this day
and age.

The first question I'd ask the Honourable Minister
is, where does agriculture, our number one industry
in this province, sit with the priorities of this govern-
ment? I'm looking through these expenditures and |
expect it's about 99th on their list because if this
government is interested in agriculture which again
as | say is our number one industry and they're going
to stand up and support the farming industry in this
province, there’'s no dollars that |I've got here in this
drainage problem which I've been exposed to for
many years, is going to even tell these farmers that
there's a hope for the future because there's not even
maintenance dollars in there for all these drains, not
even maintenance dollars.

| have letters here from farmers in my constituency
who have had their drains surveyed. The works were
promised and they were pledged and all of a sudden
we saw the First Minister now in Brandon the other
daysay,it's all off. So I'd like to get the Minister to tell
this Committee where, does agriculture stand in the
priorities of this government, in the Treasury Bench?

848

Because if it's 99th like | understand, then we may as
well pack up this Committee and leave because | don't
think there's any hope.

I'm most concerned about the drainage system
around the Riding Mountain National Park, the Duck
Mountain Provincial Park, where there are not even
enough dollars in here standing round here and yet
the Minister is asking us to expend $13 million and |
just wonder where his priorities are and where are we
going to get more information before we pass these
Estimates. | don'thaveenough informationin front of
me. | have the Water Resources Branch Acquisition
and Construction projects and | have the Parks and |
don't see any $13 million in those Estimates, Mr.
Chairman. | hope the Minister would first of all
respond and give at least me, more detail of how he
hopes to expend those $13 million that I'm getting
now, and then I'll have some more questions.

MR.MACKLING: Mr.Chairman,aslearlierindicated
the honourable member perhaps wasn't present,
details of what is included in this item were handed
out.

In respect to maintenance of drains in the honour-
able member's area, the area for which he represents,
we have already passed an item in these Estimates
thatincludes his constituency and all the other consti-
tuencies in Manitoba where drains are maintained by
the province and also by the conservation districts
where we have voted funds in accordance with these
Estimates. The Maintenance Estimate that we have
voted already — maybe the honourable member
wasn't here and didn't recognize that — was $4.75
millioninrespecttodrains. —(Interjection)— You are
familiar with it. Well, we've already provided for that
and what we have before usisacapitaliteminrespect
to new projects. I've indicated in respect to that what
they are and you have details of it.

Inrespectto your rhetorical question, | don'tthink |
need answer that, Mr. Chairman. | think that the
record will speak for itself.

MR. McKENZIE: Well, it's quite evident to the
members of the Committee that this Minister is not
going to answer the questions | raised in the House
today; | raisethemagainhere. Agricultureisnotin the
priorities of this government, it's quite clear and it
comes out loud and clear.

I'lireadintotherecord aletter | gotthisweek from a
constituent in Gilbert Plains by the name of Manzuk
whohadhisdrainsurveyedinthespringof‘81andthe
construction Estimates he was told would be in this
year's Estimates for the tune of $50,000 and now he's
told by the staff out there that there's not even dollars
to provide maintenance for that drain.

Sonow | comeback and ask this Minister again and
this government — it's known as the brown drain — if
this Minister will tell Mr. Brown and these other peo-
ple who are out here trying to provide and supportour
number oneindustry in this province, agriculture, and
thatwill provide youalotmoredollarsthanyou’'llever
get from ManOil.

If the Minister will get back to reality and forget
about thissocialistdream that we've been listening to
since this House opened. Are these farmers in my
constituency going to get some capital dollars for
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their drains to support the number one industry in this
province, which is agriculture?

MR.MACKLING: Mr.Chairman,thisgovernmentlike
the previous NDP Government in this province . . .

MR. ORCHARD: It doesn’'t give a shit about
agriculture.

MR. MACKLING: Let that be recorded the honour-
able member said that. It has taken an attitude that
everyonein this province will get fair treatmentand so
they will. We recognized in the eight years we were in
government before in this province that we had a
commitment to agriculture that the honourable
member seems to forget very quickly. Regardless of
the honourable member’'s posturing, this govern-
ment’s deeds will speak louder than the honourable
member’s words of bluster. The record will indicate
where our priorities lie in this province.

MR.McKENZIE: Mr. Chairman, | ask the Honourable
Minister, is the Brown's Creek in the capital works for
this year?

MR. MACKLING: No, Mr. Chairman, it's not on the
list.

MR. McKENZIE: That's right. Who's telling the truth,
me or the Minister that's speaking?

Are there otherdrainsin Roblin constituency or the
old constituency | used to represent, Ethelbert Plains,
thatdrainsthe Duck Mountains and the Riding Moun-
tain Provincial Park. Arethere capital works forthose
constituents, farmers who are pleading out there with
some help from this government to keep our number
one industry thriving in this province? Are there any
dollars? —(Interjection)— I've been through the list.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, there are a number
of projects and the honourable member can study
them for himself. If he'sasking if | know whether the
projects in his constituency are included, | think we
reviewed the detail of all of the projects before. If he
has some doubt about them, well | can’t detail that
now.

| think there's a Silent Creek development there —
maybe it was so silent the honourable member didn't
hearit — I gatherthat may bein his constituency. But
inanyeventas|'veindicated, these projects are there,
we'll vote the funds and we'll develop them in accor-
dance with the usual practice and that is to look at
each one of these items, reconfirm the desirability
that they can be proceeded with and they are in
accordance with our priorities.

MR. McKENZIE: Mr. Chairman, can the | ask this
Minister, can | tell my constituents, Mr. Manzuk and
others, that their priorities will be met next year?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, I'm not going to
indicate to the honourable member that whatever his
constituent's desires are thatnecessarily they're
going to be followed. | don't know whether he could
get that assurance from the previous Minister when
he probably made the same request, but not openly
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before the Committee, otherwise they would have
been completed, Mr. Chairman.

MR. McKENZIE: Mr. Chairman, just to correct the
Honourable Minister, I'll forward thisletterto himifhe
wants it for further information.

| am told by this constituent that the drain was
surveyed in 1981 and the construction estimates for
the Brown Creek were supposedto be providedin this
year's Estimates at $50,000 and all he's got to show is
$26,000 and that doesn't even pay for the mainte-
nance of the drain.

Now can the Minister tell my constituent, Mr. Man-
zuk, thatit'snotgoingtobenextyear;it'snotgoingto
be the next year or the year after, that he as a farmer
may as well forgetit,asthisgovernmenthas no prior-
ity as far as agriculture is concerned.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, if the honourable
member has a particular concern and if he has a
constituent, if he has a municipality that's concerned,
of course | willreceive, I'll talk to those people, I'll talk
to the municipalities, but for the honourable member
to badger me and suggest that he has to geta com-
mitment from me for a particular drain tonight, we'll
be here a long time because | won't give him that
assurance.

The honourable member had four yearsin which to
get that kind of development proceeded with by a
government of which he was a member of the gov-
ernment caucus. He failed then and he's asking me
tonight to make a commitment. The man is very fool-
ish, Mr. Chairman

MR. McKENZIE: Mr. Chairman, | have one more
question. In response to the Honourable Minister, |
wonder if he can tell me who else | can go to on behalf
of my constituent, and if he will again refute the fact
that that drain was surveyed last year and this man
was promised that the capital works, $50,000 would
be in this year's Estimates. What more can | tell my
constituent?

MR. MACKLING: Mr.Chairman, | am giventounder-
stand that the department surveys hundreds of drains
every year and some of those drains obviously haven't
come forwardin this program, despite the requests of
many honourable members, | suppose, in this House
and the imploring that was made by similar members
to the honourable member, to the Minister before me
the Member for Lakeside. I'm sure he heard those
submissions and I'm sure the department received
those eloquent requests. It's obvious by the large
number of surveys that were made, that not all of them
received the priority that the honourable member
wants for his constituency.

MR. McKENZIE: For the last time, will the Minister
give me any indication that agriculture has any priori-
ties in his department?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, this government
considers that agriculture is one of the most impor-
tant industries in this province, if not the most impor-
tant industry.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Arthur.

MR. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, | was listening earlier
with the answers of the Minister and the questions
that were being raised by the Member for Lakeside
and during our questioning the other night | was
somewhat assured by the Minister that there were
certain projects which | was concerned about in the
western part of the province were current review or
consideration was being given for future Estimates.

I haveto tell the Minister thatI'm notafraid of losing
anything in the western part of the province because
you can't lose something that you haven't got, and |
can see by the mapit's totally a blanked out section of
the province.

That leads on to the real issue that's before us, Mr.
Chairman, and that is — | hear members of the Gov-
ernment Benches doing quite a bit of squealing
around here as if they too have been left out of the
Estimates of the Department of Natural Resources
and Water Resources — the Minister has tonight. |
think he has put on the record something that is of
very much concern to me because we're sitting here
tonight as members of the Opposition, members of
government that are here, can beat us in a vote.

We, Mr. Chairman, have looked ata program which
has been proposed, $13,255,000 and what we are
going to see happen is, this government, Mr. Chair-
man, probably by force, push a vote of $13,255,000
through for a slush fund — a slush fund — for the
Minister of Natural Resources; not as voted for by the
members of the government, not as voted for by the
members of the Opposition or against, but a slush
fund for him to use in any way he sees fit.

In other words what he has presented as programs
beforeus means nothing, if| heard himcorrectly, and
| would like him to clarify, for me as a member of the
Legislative Assembly, what he has told us, that he is
voting himself a $13 million slush fund to implement
that money where he wants to, to the programs and
the projects that have been proposed.

He said and I'm interested in this, he said, “We may
not proceed with some.” He may not proceed with
some, Mr. Chairman, whichisunderstandable, if they
can't for some particular reason, move with the pro-
gram. But is he telling us if he doesn't proceed with
that program, that those funds will be switched and it
could be that he immediately says, we can’t work out
half of it, or we can’t work on most of them for certain
reasons, and we'll use them for other areas.

| listened to him the other night and | took him
somewhat for his word that he was meaning what he
was saying. But tonight he has immediately now
changed direction and saying that he's getting him-
self aslush fund to use in the best way that he can. |
can't support, Mr. Chairman, representing the people
of Arthur Constituency, that kind of use of taxpayers’
money unless there's anaccountability for that. | can-
not do that, Mr. Chairman, and | would have to vote
against this. Otherwise | would bide my time and hope
that we could work out with the Minister, who | again
believed, was firm in his commitments to work on
waterconservation projects and believe firmly in that,
and | commend him for that.

It bothers me, it bothers me very much, that he's
going to have $13 million unaccounted for, doesn't
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haveto answerto anybody for and can use in any way.
That is the principle that | don't like and, Mr. Chair-
man, if this is what the government that we have in
Manitobatodayis tryingtohoodwink,andthat's true,
hoodwink the people of Manitoba, the whole Estimate
process is worthless. We are truly wasting our time
and the people’s money in sitting in Committee to
listen to this kind of fraudulent approach to the Esti-
mates of the expenditure of the people of Manitoba's
money and |, Mr. Chairman, would hopethatisnotthe
case.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, the honourable
member is like the Honourable Member for Roblin-
Russell, posturing. I'd already indicated that the
former administration had placed before a similar
Committee, | presumea yearago, outlineof works to
be undertaken, but there’d be no consultation in
respecttothedevelopmentofthose works. The funds
were voted, the works weren't proceeded with. All
right, and that may be the case again.

I'mindicating that these items are there, they have
been recommended, they have been looked at, but
they are subject —(Interjection)—yes, there's a gen-
eralintent thatthesearegood thingstobedone. Butit
remains for this government to decide as and when
they'llbedone,oriftheywillbedone.Thatcapacityis
not being removed from government and I'm indicat-
ing to you that is the case.

The honourable member says that it's a slush fund.
Well, the honourable member knows that every cent
of public spending has to be recorded and has to be
accounted for. To suggest that |, as a Minister of the
governmentor mycolleaguestogethercan spend one
penny of public money without a full accounting is
absolute nonsense and he knows it. And to say that
this fund is going to be available to be spent in an
unaccountable way is absolutely false and the
member knows it.

But what this Minister is saying to these members
and these colleagues at this time is that although
theseworksare outlined and they look desirable, the
Executive Council remains to decide as and when, or
if and when, these projects will be proceeded with,
and I've madethat very clear.

MR.DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, that's of course, where
the difficulty comes. You're asking this Committee
tonight to give a blank cheque to Executive Council
without the accountability to the Legislature and, Mr.
Chairman, the question againis, if a projectisn’t pro-
ceeded with, will those funds lapse and be re-voted
again next year and approved by a Committee on the
project that you, Mr. Minister, are prepared to- lay
before this Committee?

MR. MACKLING: Mr.Chairman, I'm not goingto give
that kind of undertaking. The honourable members
know that there are demands that are being made
throughout the length of the province for works that
have to be looked at. Just today, for example, Mr.
Chairman, | met with a delegation, | think from the
constituency of the Honourable Member for Pem-
bina; the town of Carman is in the Honourable
Member for Pembina'’s constituency. And, itwasindi-
catedto methatthereis a desperatesituationtherein
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respectto publicexpenseand | wasimploredto make
a pretty early decision in respect to avery substantial
capital expenditure. | don't know whether we are
going to provide assistance there, there's nothing in
this budget; there's no line here, and it may be that if
we decide that we want to shift priorities we will want
todosomethinginrespectto problems of that consti-
tuency, that area. I'mindicating to you, Mr. Chairman,
that we are not bound by the individual items to pro-
ceed with them, just as the Honourable Member for
Lakeside and his colleagues were not bound in
respect to the Red River dikes, the didn't even com-
municate with those communities the nature of the
funding, the nature of the expenses they had planned
to pass on to those communities.

MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to ask the
Minister that in presenting this series of projected
capital works, | take it that he does this with the grea-
test amount of personal integrity, with the greatest
amountof —(Interjection)— good intention to under-
take these capital construction corks that are menti-
oned on some six pages of individual works. Now, the
Minister indicates to us tonight that although he has
presented these six pages of individual works of pro-
posed capital undertakings throughout the Province
of Manitoba, that by the act of approving them tonight
and getting the support of not only government
members who are here tonight, but also Opposition
members, that this does not bind him to undertake
those capital works.

Now, Mr. Chairman, | can appreciate that if the
Minister fails to, for instance, acquire the property to
upgrade the Dog Hung Creek Diversion and that he
can't accomplish an expropriation during the con-
struction season, | can appreciate thatproject possi-
bly not going. What the Minister has asked us to do
tonightistoapprove six pages of capital works which,
after we approve them, they are beyond the scrutiny
of Members of Her Majesty’s Loyal Opposition and he
can proceed to Cabinet next Wednesday and throw
this whole list of six pages of capital works out. Mr.
Chairman, thisis whatthe Ministeris telling us tonight
that we can approve these six pages tonight and then
he is going to take them to Cabinet and they may or
may not decide to proceed with them.

Mr. Chairman, | want to ask the Minister right now
that- | justwanttoask himonesimple question -does
the Department of Natural Resources, in their Acqui-
sition and Construction line in the Estimates, main-
tain a carry-over program?

MR. MACKLING: No, Mr. Chairman, there is no
carry-over.

MR. ORCHARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Then in
other words, Mr. Chairman, if all six pages of these
projects which are voted upon by this Committee, by
this Legislature, if none of them are proceeded with
there is absolutely no priority within the Department
of Natural Resources to undertake them next year.
—(Interjection)—

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, order. Order, order.
The Member for Pembina.
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MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, | did not hear the
Minister's response to my question.

MR. MACKLING: Well, Mr. Chairman, | couldn’t
make a response here. The Honourable Member for
Lakeside was involved in an intemperate harangue.
Sol havenoreasontotry and answerthe honourable
member during the course of that which was com-
pletely out of order.

MR.ENNS: Mr. Chairman, on apoint of order. | apol-
ogize to the Committee for, yes, what was an intem-
perate display on my part. But, Sir, in 17 years of
having served in this Legislature and Committees of
this kind, | have never experienced the kind of posi-
tion that we find ourselves in today. I've never had a
Minister who is responsible for representing some
$17 million of public expenditures before a Commit-
tee of the House, and tell us that heisin no way bound
by the decisions of that Committee. | find no prece-
dent for that. | must say that | am shocked beyond all
imagination. We have it from the back bench; the
excuse is another administration brought some of
these Estimates up to this point. So, this Minister is
bringing these Estimates before us but he's done the
incredible thing; he has said that, yes, we'll get them
passed and he then he will take them back to his
Cabinet and get them approved politically as they
want them. Now, Sir, thatis an unbelievable position. |
just want that on the record.

MR.CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Health on a point of
order.

HON.LAURENTDESJARDINS (St. Boniface): If
that's a point of order, | would like to speak to the
same point of order. | think that maybe we should
have a little common sense here. I've also seen 23
budgets and they've all been approved the same
thing, except the Minister might be a little more for-
thright or naive and maybe he's talking a little too
much.

Now, everybodyknowsthatbeforethisis approved
in the exercise of the Cabinetthat you have to prepare
your program. This was done. This is the way it was
passed in Cabinet. Now it's being passed here and
there is a possibility — of course, the Minister said
himself that these are the ones that are recom-
mended, these are the ones that he has in mind todo
right now. Now things change; that's exactly what he
said. He says that things can change. You try to take
one and say can you guarantee that'll be done and he
can’'tdothat. Thathasbeen done for 23 years that |
can remember by every single department including
my own when | was a Minister. He's brought a pro-
gram; it is possible that there'll be other priorities.
That has been done. He's not saying that he's not
going to change the whole thing. It's been done by
you people in Cabinet, in government. He is saying
that thisis the program that he wants to go ahead, but
there's a possibility that there might be some
changes. That's all he's sayingand thisistheway it's
been going on for 23 years that | know of, by every
department including my own. I've stuck with a pro-
gram and this is what he's doing but you cannot say
one will be done. You did the same thing on Health in
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personal care construction; you've changed some of
those. You have a mandate to do certain things and
he'snot gettingaslush fund ora licenseto steal. Next
year you'llhaveachanceagainandif hedeviates from
that — the whole thing — then he's on the carpet; he
loses credibility. Don't try to make a big thing. You
know, you're talking about us; you can keep us here
all night or for a long time. That's fine. —
(Interjection)— We can waste a lot of time. We can
start in a shouting match or we can try todo itin a
proper way. Peoplelike you that's got the experience;
you know damn well that you've done the same thing,
but you didn’'t advise them like he did.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Member for Pembina on a point of
order.

MR.ORCHARD: What the Minister of Health has told
us tonight is that has happened before. But what the
Minister of Health did not tell the Committee is that
the Minister said these Estimates will be approved
tonight and they will go to the Cabinet for further
priorization and they may notproceed. That has never
happened that aseries of listed Estimates of commit-
ted construction, if that has not passed Treasury
Board and Cabinet for approval to be here tonight for
the Legislature, then what are we doing here?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Member for Springfield on a point
of order.

MR.ANDYANSTETT (Springfield): Mr. Chairman, to
the same point of order. What we'rediscussing hereis
aquestion of whether ornotin terms of parliamentary
practice, a precedent has been set by what the Minis-
ter proposes to do tonight. The Member for Pembina
saysit'snever happened in the history of the Legisla-
ture. My experience isn'tas greatas his. | haven't been
here since 1867 or 1870, but | would suggest that
exactly what the Minister is describing has been the
practice by every government in recent memory in
this province. TheMinisterhas perhapsdescribeditin
a much more broad fashion by suggesting that all of
these things go to Treasury Board. Perhaps he does
not mean it in the same sense that the Minister of
Highways when he proposes a highways program,
does nothavethe prerogativeif hecan’'tgetland, can't
getright of way, can’'t proceed with a particular pro-
ject, may go back and consult with Cabinet or what-
ever and modify, he may add.

Both of the members opposite who seem so uptight
tonight about a parliamentary precedent in terms of
the rules of what these Estimates areallabout —and|
think that's the point of order that's being raised — are
members who have been in charge of substantial cap-
ital Estimates. They have never, neither of them nor
any other previous Minister of Highways has been
able to stand in a Committe of this House and advise
the House thathe will proceed witheveryitemthat'sin
that schedule, that he will not have to go to Cabinet
and ask for advice or direction with regard to a pro-
ject, move in another direction or spend monies on
something different than what's in the proposal.

| did not hear the specific comments the Minister
made because | was out of the Committee room right
at the beginning. The Minister has restated them and
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what | heard him restate | see as no different from the
parliamentary practice that I've seen followed in this
Committee and in this House for eight years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Lakeside on the
same point of order.

MR. ENNS: Mr. Chairman, | take with some defer-
ence the comments of the Member for St. Boniface,
the Minister of Health, who has served in this House
for many years. Certainly every government of all
descriptions have not always been able to carry for-
ward programs that monies have been voted for. |
gave this Minister of Natural Resources that out. | said
— and hehappensto dealinthatarea —if agreements
can't be reached with other jurisdictions with the val-
ley dyking communities for instance, then certain
monies may not be spent in these Estimates. That's
not what we're talking about. | acknowledge thatif for
some reason some of the shared programs that
involve the Federal Government and if some reason
the senior government, the Federal Government
changestherules midstream ordelays them, then this
Minister or this government can't be held responsible
for not carrying these programs. In the same way as
when the Minister of Education presents a-school
building program and a school division can’'t sort out
it'spriorities andeven though theseniorgovernment,
aprovincialgovernmentplanstobuild aschool build-
ing but the politics at the local level aren’t sorted out,
then that's deferred. That certainly happens. It
happens with hospital boards.

But, Mr. Chairman, thatisnot what we heard today.
What the Minister of Natural Resources said today is
that the entire amount, the $13,255,000 are not bind-
ing on this Minister, and that he reserves for himself
the right after having gone through this whole exer-
cise — and | thought we've had a pretty good exercise
in this last little while — that he can go back and then
discuss with the Member for Inkster and decide, hey,
you know the Tories got a few too many drainage
ditchesin their part of the constituency; that we don't
have to do something for the Member for Morris; we
don'thaveto dosomething forthe Member for Roblin.
Let'sjustnow priorize wherewe'regoingtospend the
$13.5 million. That is what the Minister of Natural
Resources said and, Sir, Mr. Chairman, | ask you
—and if need be we'll adjourn the Committee to hear
the transcripts of precisely what the Minister said —
thatis what's upsetting us and thatis adifference. I've
been a Minister of Highways; I've been a Minister of
Natural Resources; | know what can happen with the
problems of bad weather, even if | was committed to
build aroad and | can't build aroad. | know that you
can have contract failure. | know that you can have
trouble with acquisitions of lands but, prompted by
the Member for Inkster, the trouble with these Esti-
mates is that they've been prepared by a previous
government and so we should not be binding our-
selves to those Estimates. Now, | say, Mr. Chairman,
that makes this exercise a charade; that's not what
this exercise is all about and | insiston . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable Minister of Munic-
ipal Affairs on a point of order.
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HON. A. R. (Pete) ADAM (Ste. Rose): Mr. Chairman,
lastyearin this Committee, dealing with the Estimates
of the Minister of Northern Affairs, | recall that we had
quite a lengthy debate on an item in the Estimates of
$5 million where we were never able to find out how
that money was going to be spent. A request was
being made for $5 million by the Minister of Northern
Affairs and we, after dealing with that item for hours
under the Canada-Northlands Agreement, were
never ableto find out what this money was intended
forand we still don't know, at this particulartime, how
that money was spent. | am surprised that the
member, especially the Member for Lakeside, whois a
longtime member here, realizes that these things
happen from time to time and. | would just point that
out so we don't have to go 23 years ago to find out
what happened, it happened last year.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Minister, on that same point of
order.

MR. MACKLING: Well, Mr. Chairman, | don't think
anybody has been speaking on a point of order,
they've been arguing. Let me just indicate and recap
what I've said. | said that we've got spending Esti-
mates before us, Capital spending Estimates, we may
not spend all of that money, there may be projects
that, for whatever reason, we may not proceed with;
we've given an outline of whatthe proposalsare, what
the department is coming forward with, but they may
not be proceeded with for any number of reasons.
And those reasons have to be decided on a political
basis and on the basis of a political decision as to
whether or not we can afford to proceed with them.

The honourable members know that fairly shortly
we'll be discussing a budget and, of course, we have
to raise taxes to provide spending funds and if the
government decides that, because of our spending
constraints, we cannot proceed with all of the Capital
items thatare otherwise desired, so beit. Letme point
out that's the fiscal side of, Mr. Chairman, that's the
fiscal side of itinrespecttotheindividualitems. There
are some of these items that are in this list that have
been on a list for three years but haven't been pro-
ceeded with because of various problems, and |
referred, Mr. Chairman, to one that the honourable
members have made agreatfuss aboutin this Legisla-
ture - the valley dykes - and yet they had it in their
Estimatesto go ahead withandyetthere hadbeenno
consultation with those communities; nothing, and
yet was that a breach of what that government had
done. They had asked the memers of a committee to
vote $900,000 for a project that was going to go ahead
the following year; it didn’t go ahead. Instead of that
the members of this honourable opposition stand up
in House and berate this government for having
initiated something in respect to that commitment.

For the honourable members to say that because
they vote on these items the governmentis bound to
proceed with them, thatis ridiculous and they know it.
And they are grandstanding, Mr. Chairman, and they
know they're grandstanding.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Member for Pembina, are you
ready to proceed?
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MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, | believe we are still
on the point of order.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There has been no point of order,
do you want to proceed?

MR.ORCHARD: Then, Mr. Chairman, | will just enter
the discussion then.

MR.CHAIRMAN: Proceed with the items we are dis-
cussing then.

MR. ORCHARD: Thank you. What the Minister said,
in his first couple of minutes, that he astutely avoided
saying in the last justification of the most major faux
pas I've ever heard a Minister make in the six sessions
I'vebeenhere;whathedidn'tsayin thesecondround
which has alarmed us is that he didn't mention that
when we pass this $13,255,000 line of Estimates that
he then takes itto Cabinet for them to make the politi-
cal decision as to whether they proceed with the
spending —(Interjection)— Mr. Chairman, will you
please rule the Minister to order, please | believe |
have the floor, thank you. Mr. Chairman, we have
been presented with six pages of projected spending
on Capital Works to the value of $13,255,000.00.

The Minister has told us that once we pass this that
he will then go to Cabinet and have these Estimates
politically priorized as to which goes, which stays and
which gets pulled out and where they might haveto
spend the money again. The Minister for Health said
tonight that things happen and, Mr. Chairman, we
don't argue with that. My colleague, the MLA for
Lakeside, said if a federal agreement falls through,ifa
municipal agreement falls through, if a land acquisi-
tion fall through, that's fine, a project may not go
ahead. And thatis the way it happens in the Depart-
ment of Highways and Transportation asanumber of
people who have had that responsibility know. But,
Mr. Chairman, never, never, never | don't believe in
the history of this committee, and the Estimate sys-
tem, has a series of Capital Estimates come forward
and then go back to the Cabinet after we have
approved them for priorization, for deletion and for
re-allocation. It has been practiced whilst we were
government, Mr. Chairman, to take a Capital program
to Cabinet, to Caucus, to Treasury Board and to get it
approved beforeit’s entered in the Estimates.

Now, this Minister is saying that we write an arbi-
trary line in the Estimates, we develop a series of
Capital Expenditures and the, afterwe getthe opposi-
tion suckedinto passingit, we go back to Cabinet and
we could change it. That's what he told us tonight, and
I don't believe that this is happening to democracy in
Manitoba.

Now, Mr. Chairman, the Minister of Health said that
thishappens all thetime. Well | want to point outtothe
Minister of Healththatlastyearwedeveloped a High-
ways project; after it had gone through the hoops of
Cabinetand Caucus and Treasury Board, we decided
that the Split Lake Road should be builtand you know
what we did. We didn’t pull other roads out of the
project we approved additional funding forit. Thatis
theway agovernmentcan change their priorities that
the Minister is saying has to be changed.

Onthebasis of this kind of a move by this Minister, |
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move Committee rise, Mr. Chairman.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Agriculture.

MR.ORCHARD: No, you have a motion for Commit-
tee to rise, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We'll call for avoicevote, then. All
in favour?

MR. ORCHARD: Recorded count, Mr. Chairman. |
have suppeart.

MR.CHAIRMAN: The Motionis, are we going to have
the Committee rise?

A COUNTED VOTE was taken, the result being as
follows:

Yeas, 12; Nays, 17.

MR. CHAIRMAN: | declare the Motion lost.
Item 13.(a) The Honourable Minister of Health.

MR.DESJARDINS: Mr.Chairman,itseemsthatthere
is not much point in appealing for a little bit of com-
mon sense because it seems that some people have
made up their mind that they're not going to have any
today. Let me remind some of them that there was an
election in October, 1977. There was a Budget that
had been approved before. There was a change of
government; a government that came in and froze
everything that was supposed to be done in the
Department of Health, for instance, and then there
was achange when some of them were allowed, and a
change in my honourable friend's constituency to
take care of a Personal Care Home that had never
been recommended by the Manitoba Health Services
Commission. We criticized that like it was our right,
but we did not say that you did not have the mandate
to do what you want when you're in government, and
that's exactly what happened; and now the Minister
stated that he's got a program that has been recom-
mended, he's saying he can't go on and swear that
every single one of these things will be done, he's
saying that he might go back to Cabinet to review
things.

I'm doing the same thing in my department, in some
areasthere arecertainthings I'm nottoosure, and I'm
asking for money because | think thisis what's going
to be done, that I'm going to review it and I'm not
going to do itif I'm convinced thatit's wrong. You've
got to start somewhere. This is exactly what's hap-
pened. The government had a mandate. Your gov-
ernment had a mandate; they did it. I'm not criticizing
it; I'm just pointing out to you, when you play Holier
Than Thou and say this has never happened. There
was a thing that was passed by the House, all the
Members of the House, for a 5-year construction plan,
certain things were going to be done that year, the
money was votedin the House; what did the govern-
ment say, “There's a freeze, we're not moving, we're
notdoing adamn thing.” You had the right to do that;
you were criticized; it helped you lose an election, but
don't say that we haven't got a mandate, that a gov-
ernment in power kasn't got the right to change if
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there's apolicy. That's sheerhypocrisy and you know
it, and you know it more than anybody else.

MR. ENNS: Again | defer to the experience and the
wisdom of the Member for St. Boniface, the Minister
of Health. The only difference is we had the guts in
1977 to come in, when we presented our Estimates,
that showed those frozen programs, that showed
those deferrals and we took the flak forit. We took the
flak for it every day and you fellows in Opposition
reminded us and the media reportedit. The difference
here is we're being asked to pass a $77 million set of
Estimates that the Minister has just acknowledged he
has no intention of carrying out, and that's the differ-
ence, and that's what exercises us. Well, Mr. Chair-
man, that's why | suggest, with all due respect,
because there's precedent for that, that the Commit-
teerise; that we check what actually the Minister said;
that we check the pre-edited editions of Hansard
tomorrowand we find outwhatwas said,becausethat
iswhat causedthisexplosionin thiscommittee which
has, otherwise, been a reasonably good commission.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Agriculture.

HON. BILL URUSKI (Minister of Agriculture): Mr.
Chairman, the Member for Lakeside,and memberson
the this side, conveniently try to forget what has hap-
pened and what has been the normal procedure going
oninthis House. Mr. Chairman, the Minister of Health
indicated what was done with respect to the nursing
home projects; but, Mr. Chairman, not only that, that
budget was approved, it was approved by thisLegisla-
ture; and then there was an election, and then all
those items, even those nursing homes which were
tendered, were stopped. They were stopped, Mr.
Chairman, and we didn’t even have a chance to vote
on the change in the program, subsequently, Mr.
Chairman, even though those items that were passed
by this Legislature were tendered, they were ready to
be constructed and they were killed. They had to be
re-tendered, there were additional costs, and, Mr.
Chairman, the Minister of Natural Resources brings in
a program and indicates that, “Look, barring unfore-
seen items, this program will go ahead, but certainly
we willwantto review the items as they proceed.”

Mr. Chairman, are the Conservative members in
this Legislature sayingthat they didn't make any polit-
ical decisions vis-a-vis items that were passed in
Legislature? What a bunch of hypocrites. You were
elected as politicians and you made political deci-
sions. You froze nursing homes that were tendered;
you killed projects and then you re-activated them
and you even brought in additional programs that
weren't even voted in this Legislature.

Mr. Chairman, the Members of the Conservative
Party are saying that they never made any political
decisions vis-a-vis programs that were approved. Mr.
Chairman, there will be changes in many programs
that are brought into this House. The general thrust is
voted upon and, from time to time, there will be cir-
cumstances that will change almost any program.
The former Minister of Highways should know that
there have beenitemson the Highway's budget going
back 7-8yearsthathavenotbeen proceeded with and
they're still on the damn program. No matter how the
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Minister can squirm, well he says, “Yes they're on the
program.” Well, we're not proceeding with them. Mr.
Chairman, he can'ttell methatittakes 8 years, thatan
area's been wet or we can’'t buy land for 8 years
because some projects don't proceed that long. It is
the will of the government not to have some projects
to proceed and he can't tell me that wasn't done on
many of the projects. You look at the Highway's pro-
jects over the year, Mr. Chairman, regardless of who
was in government. You can't tell us, here, that when a
program is voted on thatthere won'tbe changesinthe
programand the changes won't be made. Who makes
the decision, Mr. Chairman, if it isn’t a political deci-
sion of the members who are elected as politicians in
the Legislature? Mr. Chairman, who do you want to
make the decisions?

MR. DOWNEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | want to
be very brief because what | have heard here tonight,
and | think it's certainly, as | understand it, the
responsibility of a government, they are people that
are elected to this Legislature, to spend the money of
the people of the Province of Manitoba in the best
interests of all those people regardless of political
stripe, but in the best interest, and they are held in
trust, for that job. | have no problem with a govern-
ment that doesn’t move with any particular project. |
agree totally, that is their responsibility or their deci-
sion not to proceed. But, Mr. Chairman, the point that
has to be made is that if they are going to use those
fundsthatweren'tused in that particular project, they
cannot go to Cabinet, Mr. Chairman, and make the
decision to buy $13-million worth of NDP signs to
plaster all over the province, and that is what they're
telling us, Mr. Chairman. They are a government for
the NDP party people.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. We are speaking on
Number 13 and you're offbase. We are not speaking
on a point of order. That has been challenged and
lost. We arenow on 13(a).

MR.DOWNEY: | willspeakto 13, Mr. Chairman, | will
speak to that very plainly. | have been told by the
Minister of Natural Resources, and | agree with him,
that if he wants to cancel any project, the same as the
Minister of Agriculture, heis quite free to cancel any
project and not spend those funds. In fact, that is
saving the people of the Province of Manitoba money
which they don't think is spent in their best interest.
Mr. Chairman, the second statementthat | have heard
is that the Minister of Natural Resources can take his
$13 million which we are voting for here right now; if,
tomorrow he strikes out all the programs, can go to
Cabinet, and use that money for any political rim of
that Cabinet. Mr. Chairman, | cannot support that in
the system that | live within today.

MR. ENNS: Mr. Chairman, let's try to bring some
order into the Committee. | appreciate the comments
that are being made. Yes, elected members certainly
have the right to change priorities, but | challenge
members opposite to show on the Estimates that we
broughtin,thatdidnotreflect the spendingintentions
of that government. We came in in October —
(Interjection)— You're right; | won't argue with you,
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there were intentions by the previous NDP adminis-
tration. You havetoremember, it was an election year.
There were more sod-turning ceremonies in this prov-
ince than you saw in your life. There were more per-
sonal care homes going to be built, more hospitals
going to be built than you would believe; those were
your intentions and you're quiteright, anew adminis-
tration came in and we deferred, we stopped, we
folded some of them. But show me in the Estimates
that we then subsequently brought in, in February
and March, where those items that we were asking a
Committee of the Legislature to passon, where those
Estimates were included and passed on. You cannot
find that, my friend. You cannot find that, Mr. Chair-
man. That is the point.

Mr. Chairman, | have the floor. If this administration
did not want to accept the Estimates that were 95
percent prepared for them by the previous adminis-
tration, that's one thing; | accept it. If they said we'll
cut out half of them, or we'll freeze half of them, or
we'll take them out of Morris Constituency and put
them in St. George, that's fine, or we'll put them in
Gimli,that's fine, butthat'snotwhatthey'redoing.I'm
appealing to the FirstMinisterrightnow. The Minister
is bringing in a set of Estimates and that is a little
different than a government that comes into power
and says, “Hey, we have inherited a group of pro-
grams that we don't agree with,” and they have the
mandate of the people, and they cancel them, they
defer them or they change them. That is certainly the
right of any newly-elected government. But it is not
then, appropriate, | submit, Mr. Chairman, then to
come into Estimate point in time, and then parade
those programs on as though they were going to be
ongoing and then have the audacity to say that, after
two weeks of hard work in Committee, these pro-
grams are, of course, all subject to political review;
they're meaningless; that we're not going to proceed
with them on the basisof what Cabinetdecides. We've
given all the necessary exceptions to that. We under-
stand that certain projects can't be proceeded with.
Wehave notasked or tied this Ministerdown to build-
ing every drainage ditch, every bridge, in this set of
Estimates. We know that land acquisition, we know
that arrangements with other jurisdictions, federal or
municipal, can prevent projects from proceeding. |
know that, and all experienced members know that.
But there is a difference, Mr. Chairman. The Honour-
able Minister of Health says, “Yes,” and | agree with
him. He had on his program, and by the way, Mr.
Chairman, there's a big difference between programs
that are on a five-year program, particularly in the
field of health, or something like that, but | am talking
about actually programs that were on that year. Fine,
they wereinthatyear and we cancelled them andthen
we did not bring them back in the Estimates that we
presented. —(Interjection)— All right, but that was
our first opportunity to bring new Estimates in the
House, in February of ‘78, and we said we rejected
what the previous administration is doing. These are
the Estimates that we asked the Committee to pass.
That's not what this Minister is asking us to do and |
find it a charade, Mr. Chairman.

MR. USKIW: In observing the project map here, it's
obvious, Mr. Chairman, that 28 out of the 36 projects



Thursday, 25 March, 1982

are located in what we would refer to as Tory land,
constituency-wise; 28 out of the 36. The Minister has
indicated that he cannot assure that every one of
those projects will, in fact, take place; that he cannot
guarantee that; and that, yes, it may be that he will
have to revise his priorities. | think he said that, Mr.
Chairman. That is fundamental to the system under
which we function. For whatever reason, at any time,
the government may decide to change their priorities
in spending. All we are voting here is authority to
spend, not compulsion to spend, but authority to
spend, and that authority could be shifted from one
place in the operation of government to another
place, depending upon the circumstances, Mr.
Chairman. The government of the last 4 years did that
very thing by announcing that they were not going to
complete certain things even though they were voted
onby the Legislative Assembly, by the Committees on
Supply.

Yes,they camein andthey said, “Wedon'tintend to
complete those projects; we're going to put these
projects on hold; we're going to have a freeze; we're
going to lay people off because we're short of
money.” That's what was said, Mr. Chairman, not-
withstanding all of those things were approved item
by item in the Estimates review process. So this is
authority to spend, Mr. Chairman, not direction to
spend; it's authority. This program, Mr. Chairman, is
an indicative program of what is expected to be done
over the next 12 months, as they all are.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Burrows.

MR. CONRAD SANTOS (Burrows): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. | never speak, as you notice, | am trying to
learn my way around in this Committee. | would like to
make it clear the distinction what an Estimate is. An
Estimate is simply a legislative authorization to
spend, as distinguished from a mandate to spend
where you have no more discretion. It is simply a
legislative authority to legalize this spending, the
Estimate proceeding, you don't have to spend it but
the authority isthere, because if the discretion of the
Minister who has a Ministerial responsibility in his
own department is to be tied down in a straitjacket
and will have to do everything that is in the Estimates
and there are certain events and circumstances that
are beyond his control, it doesn’t mean that he has to
spend all the money in the Estimates. Toremove from
the Minister the discretion is to deny that the govern-
ment has the authority to govern. | mean the ruling
majority.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, let me indicate that
what the Honourable Member for Burrows has said
and others of my colleagues have spoken is certainly
right. What we have presented here are Estimates as
to the costs of projects that the department has
looked at and are recommending for the subsequent
year. That is not to indicate that these projects will of
necessity,proceed. There may problemswithacquir-
ing land, with working out arrangements that are
satisfactory in repect to these programs. What
members are being required to do is vote in respect to
individual lines of spending. Each member has been
given all of the detail early by my staff, and you have
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separate lines and within those separate lines the
Minister has always had discretiontomovein respect
to varying projects, in the line.

If you look for example, Mr. Chairman, at the detail
that | have supplied to members, land drainage
reconstruction, there is flexibility on the part of the
Minister and his department to vary the programs
there, toproceedwith some, not proceed with others
and so on. | or my Ministry cannot switch programs;
can'tswitch from bridge replacement program funds
to land drainage reconstruction. | can'tdo that within
the department. But that prerogative remains with the
Executive Council. The Executive Council can do
that. We have been elected with a mandate to govern.

Mr.Chairman, | finditvery interesting. The honour-
able members from the Opposition feel that they're
still in government and they still feel that they are
directing the spending Estimates of this government.
Thatis not so. We are making the decisions in respect
to the spending of this government, and we will spend
orwe willnot spend depending upon our findings. To
suggest, Mr. Chairman, that when the processisin the
works and tenders are called, regardless of what the
contractpriceis, wehavetoproceedwiththat project.
You know, the arguments that the honourable
members present are ludicrous. They know'they are.
They are trying to govern now from the Opposition.
Well, the people on November 17th made a decision
and that decision is here and we will decide on the
basis of these projects whether they can be pro-
ceeded with; whether they ought to be deferred; that
is a discretionary act on the part of the Executive
Council and | am not, nor would my government, be
bound to spend every cent that's voted in any Esti-
mate. For the honourable members to suggest that,
oh, that's always been the case s just utter and com-
plete nonsense and they know it.

| indicated that simply because these items were
here, did not mean thatnecessarily they were going to
be constructedin this construction year. That's what|
said. | said there has to be consideration giventoeach
one of these items as and when they are ready, and
part of the consideration is the cost, what the tender
priceis and soon. Forthe honourable members to say
it's automatic when we vote this money, that we are
bound then and the administration is bound by our
decision; that's a bunch of rubbish and you know it.

You never followedit and | set out the example; | set
out the example, Mr. Chairman, and I'll set it out
again. Thehonourable memberspresentedanitemin
last year's Estimates for $900,000, yes, based upon a
formula that they knew and they had the members
here vote on that item, but then they didn't proceed
with it, Mr. Chairman. Why? They took it to Cabinet
and Cabinet decided that item was not going to pro-
ceed, because they lacked the political will to pro-
ceed. Now, Mr. Chairman, the honourable members
are saying that if there's a capital item in our Esti-
mates, then they will have to proceed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Lakeside on a
point of order.

MR. ENNS: Well, the Minister made a very specific
allogation that the previous administration, the pre-
vious Minister, took a particular item to Cabinet. |
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asked him to document that charge.
A MEMBER: That's not a point of order at all.

MR.ENNS: Yes, itis. It happened tobe averyimpor-
tant point of order.

MR.MACKLING: Well, then why wasn'tit proceeded
with, Mr. Chairman?

A MEMBER: Because it never got to Cabinet; no
decision was made.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It's not a point of order. Mr.
Minister.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, if it didn't go to
Cabinet, let me finish —(Interjection)— Justaminute.

Mr. Chairman, if it didn’t go to Cabinet, a political
decision was made by the Minister that wasn't fore-
seen. He didn't even share with with his colleagues
then, Mr. Chairman. And now to suggest that because
there’s a line or there's a project in these Estimates
that Ministration of the day is bound to proceed with,
is a bunch of rubbish and he knows it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Minister of Health.

MR.DESJARDINS: Mr. Chairman, | think that every-
body had their fun. | think that those who wanted to
make a point have made it. We're getting away from
the Estimates and | move that question be put Mr.
Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Agreed? (Agreed) Order, order
please. Order, order please.

13(a) to 13(c) were each read and passed. Resolu-
tion No. 113—pass.

RESOLVED THAT it be granted to Her Majesty a
sum not exceeding $13,255,000 for Natural Resour-
ces for Acquisition/Construction of Physical Assets
for the fiscal year ending the 31st Day of March,
1982—pass

Now we have to go back to the Item 1 of the Minis-
ter's Salary.

MR.MACKLING: No, the Committee’s not rising.
Item 1, Mr. Chairman.

MR.CHAIRMAN: We'reinltemNo. 1(a)(1), Minister’s
Salary.
The Member for Emerson.

MR. DRIEDGER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, we've
just been exposed to something that, not having had
theexperience of the Member for St. Boniface, but in
the short time I've been here, | cannot envision the
kind of thing that has gone on here tonight. All kinds
of activity, pros and cons, have been discussed on
points of order, etc. Whatbothers me very much, Mr.
Chairman, is the fact that if this Minister had decided
that he wanted to change their priorities as was indi-
cated that sometimes governments do when govern-
ments change, that would have been fine. What this
Minister did, he did not change. He presented Esti-
mates to this group here tonight, presented the Esti-
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mates that he wanted us to approve. We've gone this
charade for two weeks trying to give good delibera-
tion, good discussion. | thought we had a good asso-
ciation with this Minister and his people. | think
everybody inthe Committee room enjoyed what was
going on

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Emerson has the
floor. So, we'd like a little order please.

MR. DRIEDGER: Mr. Chairman, | have to indicate
that there was a sort of acceptance that we would
possibly pass these Estimates today because things
have gone relatively well; there has been a good
understanding. But, when the Minister in his opening
remarks indicated that, listen, what we've done here
basically is nothing and | will take it back to Cabinet
and we will reassess this whole thing; that's when the
ire of everybody got aroused and | think quite right-
fully so. It's unprecedented. We've had a few
unprecedented things inthe Committee already in the
last two weeks but this must be something else.
lunderstand, you know, the Member for Springfield
indicates that we cannot use arrogance, it's not a
parliamentary word. | don’tknow what else you could
call what the Minister has done. | thought we had a
relatively good understanding with him, we were
working along relatively well with the Estimates and
thenheturnsaroundtonight, whenhe could havehad
his Estimates completed, turns around and he indi-
catestous, listen boys allthisworkthatwe havedone
until now means nothing; after you've passed this
Estimate here, I'mgoingtogobackand we'regoingto
change our priorities. Unprecedented! Unbelievable!

Is this what the Minister also indicated to the munic-
ipal people along the Red River Valley when he met
with them? That $900,000that they were supposed to
pay; that he was going to reconsider? There is abso-
lutely no way that we can show any kind of confidence
in this Minister. He has been rather feisty from time-
to-time in terms of the way he has been acting but we
accepted that. We also accepted the fact that he has
not been the Minister that long and we showed a
certain amount of tolerance during the Estimates for
some period of time and we did. | think it was relatively
enjoyable; | think the Minister enjoyed it; we had good
discussions; we had our fun once in a while. But what
happened tonight is contrary to anything that has
ever happened before; that the Minister can turn
around and say, hey, whatwe'vedone here, I'm going
totakeit back to Cabinet; we'll review it; we'll make
changes.

If he wanted to make changes, why didn'the putitin
the Estimates and we could have lookedatthem and
you could have pushed anything through. That's not
what he did. He brought these Estimates forward and
thenindicates on thelastnight, supposedly- | think in
hismindthelast nightanditwasin oursforawhiletoo
- that now we’ll take it back, we’'ll review it and we’'ll
make changesinit.Andthatiswhatcreatedthewhole
rhubarb here; we've spent almost two hours on this
whole thing. We've had all kinds of illustrations made
oneachside. The Member for St. Boniface illustrated
the things that had changed when governments
changed. We grant all that; we never argued that.
What we argue is the fact that he presented these
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Estimates and thenindicates tonight that once you've
approved them I'll take them back to Cabinet and we'll
change our priorities. That is what he indicated and
you can read Hansard and you'll check and find out
exactly what happened.

Mr. Chairman, for thatreasonitis going tobesome
time before we pass this because, all of a sudden, the
Minister has shown his true colours. | tell you some-
thing, the municipal people and the people of Mani-
toba will not accept that kind of thing. If we are in
opposition, fine, we accept thatrole; we accept the
judgment of the people in November, that's accepta-
ble, we have our obligation here. But a Minister that
will sit here and say, hey, whatever you do here, if this
isgoingtobethe formatthateachMinisterisgoingto
use, pass my Estimates and then we’llgo and change
therules. Hey, not acceptable, andthere’s going to be
along, long summerbeforethisis all going tobeover
if this is how the attitude of the governmentis going to
be; a government that indicates open government.
We've seen open government with this Minister when
he opposed —(Interjection)— open, yes, too open.
Open government when heimposes a 10 percent cost
of the projects that he's imposing on the dyking in the
Red River Valley, that is open government?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order.

MR. DRIEDGER: Mr. Chairman, I'm having trouble
concentrating when the Member for St. Boniface is
interrupting all the time. —(Interjection)— | am. | have
my right to speak my piece and |'ve listened to you
speak yours and now it's my turn.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order. The Member for Emerson
has the floor.

MR. DRIEDGER: That Minister, that Minister will
never have the confidence of the municipal people
again, | can assure him of that, afterwhathe has done
heretoday and the way he hastreated the people, the
municipal people in the Red River Valley.

Until now, | think we could accept what had hap-
pened. But what happened, you met with the munici-
pal people and you indicated that you were prepared
to proceed with some of these projects and you were
going toreview the costing of the 10 percent. But now
what has happened is, after what has happened here
today, is he going to go back to the people in the
municipality along the Red River Valley, the dyking
people, and tell them; well, listen now, I'm going to
take this back to Cabinet and review my Estimates
again, my priorities? That is what he told us today and
that is what the whole problem is about and | am very
very perturbed with this kind of thing.

Initially, in my closing remarks on the Minister's
Salary had a much different slant than | have to give it
rightnow. I'm totally perturbed and agovernmentand
a Minister that says, we're open, they show nothing
but flagrant arrogance in terms of dealing with the
people of Manitoba. They made all kinds of commit-
ments during the election campaign and since that
time there has been a steady regression of the things
that they've committed themselves to, including the
beef program, and here we have another example.
They just continually keep backing off on
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these things.

TheFirst Minister, as well as the Minister of Natural
Resources, willhave to be accountableforthe actions
today and the actions that they are proceeding with at
the present time. The people of Manitoba are being
disillusioned; they've been led down the garden path
and their expectations have been raised and you will
have to be accountable to the things that you are
doing. Mr. Chairman, I'm actually having a bit of a
problem in exactly how to express my views as to
what has happened here. Really, | have difficulty with
thatbecausehere wehave, supposedly, ademocratic
systemwhere we canview the Estimates, both parties
are debating this type of thing, and after this whole
thing has gone through, it just totally boggles my
mind. We want to make very sure that the people in
Manitoba know what has gone on here today. If he
hadwordeditany other way, if he wantedtochangeit,
but toflagrantly comeuphereand wave theflagto us
and say, listen approve this and then | will gobackto
Cabinet and change it. Unacceptable, and we will
make the people of Manitoba aware of this and this
Minister willnot have the confidence of thepeopleof
Manitoba or of anybody as far as I'm concerned.

Thank you very much.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Morris.

MR. CLAYTON MANNESS (Morris): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Well, I've sat back and I've listened with
greatintrigue tonight at some of the goings on and |
must say I'm terribly disillusioned. I've seen things
here tonight that | didn't believe | could see. You
know, when | was campaigning, as| comein asa new
member, and I've campaigned around, our party
sometimes was accused of being a little bit closed,
close vested, but what I've seen tonight from this
government certainly takes the cake, it really does.
We've worked now for two weeks through these Esti-
mates and, not knowing the history of what has been
done in previous years, | guess, | was under the
impression, however false, thatwhen we passed most
of these items that, in fact, they would be completed
and accomplished as such.

| can understand in the Capital works area; | have
no difficulty in understanding where, in some situa-
tions, particularly in Natural Resources and in the
Water Resources section, where you're fighting the
elements in a lot of cases and other technical matters
that situations will arise from time-to-time that will
prevent one project frommovingon. And naturally, |
come from a farming environment and we know that
the best laid plans from summer and spring and fall,
from the winter previous, are sometimes not met and
often are not met through many reasons, reasons
particularly though related to weather. It's the any
number of reasons comment made by the Minister, |
guess, that | find so disturbing and | can understand
when emergencies arise and there's maybe need for
monies to be brought forward from department to
department that, at those times, if the government in
power makes that known to the opposition and cer-
tainly to the people of the province at large, that natu-
rally those pre-passed Estimates, in Sessions such as
we are finding ourselves in at this particular point in
time, naturally thatyouwillwantto pullwhere you can
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in periods of emergency.

But that's not what the Minister has said tonight. He
said there could be any number of reasons and he
said maybe there'll be other priorities that arise and |
suppose | can understand that, too. Priorities | think
he was saying in the sense of resource priorities,
other projects that maybe, through one reason or
another, they deem to be of greater benefit. But | ask,
why haven't those been laid out now, and then select
the ones that you will? But that hasn't been done
either. We've heard allegations towards the former
Minister that, in fact, it were his estimates, they were
too far gone you couldn't change them, and yet | know
you've been in government now for four months and
nobody can tell me that you had no opportunity to
know whatwascoming up, thisdaywashere. Theday
was coming and yet the Member for Inkster says,
former Minister, you had your opportunity, these are
your estimates we didn’t have time to change them.
That can't be true, surely that can’'t be right.

So, | look specifically at the projects in mind which |
asked in great detail the other night of the Minister. |
asked him about items 10, 11 and 12 on his Capital
Projects list, and also 21, 22, 23, 24, and 25, and he told
me, he says, yes, these have been allocated for this
year, these are the things that we intend to do this
year. And the interpretation | took out of the word
“intend” was that this is 1982-83, that once it receives
the endorsement and the ratification of this particular
committee it's a fact, notwithstanding the fact that
situations can arise, and those situations, again
mainly of a weather nature, in this particular Capital
Estimate or in an emergency that we can't foresee.
But what he tells us today is that, no, we can pass
these Estimates right now and he has the liberty to go
to Cabinet in the period of two weeks and bring in any
priority, otherthan the ones thatarelisted here, and fit
it into the shortcoming or to the disqualification of
any of the ones here.

And if that's the case then, | guess, | have to say |
find this whole process reprehensible and this Com-
mittee basically a joke because what are we doing
here? So, specifically, we go on to these projects and
we move into the Valley Dyking Projects. Members of
the Committee will remember this, | gave the Minister
full compliments here the other night because | think
some seven days ago, the second or third day of this
Committee, when the whole problem related to the
cost-sharing formulas related to the dyking and the
responsibilities that may, in a financial sense,haveto
be picked up by the towns in question and we drew it
to the Minister’s attention and, of course, he used as
his defense, weak as it was at that time, that there were
definitions of equity that allowed this sort of thing to
happen with the citizens of Winnipeg. Although they
had been protected by the province atlarge, by way of
the floodway, they still had made some contributions
to their secondary dykes and that | accept.

Just the other night he gave me further indication
that part of the decision as to whether, in fact, the
government would give further consideration to the
requests of the municipal officials, that he, in fact,
under his department would go out and attempt to
attain the costs to the citizens of Winnipeg, in total,
and on a per capita basis; and | accepted that in good
faith also. After having spoken to many of the officials
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of the municipalities and the towns concerned who
met with the Minister last Friday and who came away
relatively well-satisfied that the Minister, at least, was
going to represent their case again in Cabinet, so
much so that some of them asked me, and | accepted
their request, they asked me not to push the Minister
too hard. That's great, | thought | had done all | could
do and there was nothing more for me to do in that
particular case.

Then we move into the House today and the ques-
tions were asked of the First Minister; had Cabinet
considered this issue? The First Minister, in his elo-
quent style of never answering a question, said, no,
the Minister responsible would make that decision.
Now, | don't know where we're at at all. We have a
Minister on one hand saying that, in fact, it is going
backto Cabinetand, under detailed questioning here
last week, said probably it would be considered by
Cabinet in the next ten days, the same number of days
that he left with my officials; the First Minister asked in
the House today if it was going to Cabinet saying, no,
that the Minister himself would look after it. So one
becomes suspicious.

Then we move into the final, what | thought would
bethefinalsittingofthe Committee tonight,and we're
told immediately that, no, all the efforts that you've
put into sitting, to going through the details and,
again, as the Member for Lakeside has said on so
many instances, that we are not here to question dol-
lar for dollar, we're here to question policy and inten-
tions and general directions. And | think the Commit-
tee led by our critic has done full well by that
comment, we've lived up to our word. But the rules
changed a little bit tonight when the Minister comes
forward and indicates to us that, no, these projects
may not go ahead. | try and balance off all the things
that have happened over thelastweek and I've come
totheconclusionthat, in fact, whatis going to happen
is that there will be no change in Cabinet regarding
the change in funding; thatthe governmentis betting
thatthere is going to be a showdown with the valley
towns and that they will not, in fact, go forward with
these projects and all this money will be available to
use on the other priorities that are not listed, that we
have no understanding of whatsoever. Can youblame
anyonefor being a little suspicious?

Let's leave for a while the flooding concerns and
move . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Morris has the
floor.
The Member for Morris.

MR. MANNESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Then we
go specifically into the projects listed 21, 22, 23, 24,
and 25 — the Domain Drain Demonstration Project,
the Roberts-McTavish Drain, the Mills-Wheatland
Drain, the Upper Bryson Drain and Upper EIm Creek
— all of these particular capital projects, ones which
the Minister well knows are of interest and of vital
concerntomeandtotheconstituentsthat | represent.
| guess | probably can’t ask him any longer if he has
anything more to add.

But | posed my questionvery specifically the other
night whether in fact, these projects would continue
in 1981-82 and | asked him even further what appro-
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priations would be considered for 1982-83 and he told
me, he told me quite openly. | suppose what disturbs
me the most as a rookie and someone quite naive, of
course, maybe there are a few of us around, | did
something probably pretty foolish. | called all these
municipalities, their secretary-treasurers the other
morning and | said, “Guess what's happened?” The
capital projects have been laid before us, I've asked
questions, we've been told what the appropriations
will be for the next year and these, we've got the
assurances of the Minister that these projects will
continue. Notonlythatcontinue, givenofcourse that
weather or technical reasons allow. | even went
further to tell them what appropriations they could
expect in 1983-84.

So | made four phone calls to the Municipalities of
McDonald, to Gray, to Morris, to Richot, and told
them this good news, the news of which | was certain
because | thought that was the purpose of a Commit-
tee like this, that's right, the purpose of the Commit-
tee. | mean, what other purpose can there be to sit
around this table fortwo weeks?

I've missed 10 of my kids' hockey games as | know
every other member has too, but for what purpose?
—(Interjection)— That's right, we get paid for it. The
Minister saysthat's what we get paid for. So | guess
we get paid to sit here and make decisions and pass
Estimates that are meaningless and I'm saying, isn't
thatatremendous waste of the public purse? | think it
is.

So | guess I'll have to call these four municipalities
back tomorrow and I'll say, well the rules have
changedallittle bit —and | haven’'tbeen here 23 years
like the Minister of Health nor however many the
MemberforLakeside hasbeenhere —(Interjection)—
six — so | will beg greeness. I'll say, well wehad a
commitment but | guess in this game a person’s word
doesn’'t mean a heck of a lot. Of course, they'll say
that's what we thought anyway, particularly now.

So we've come to the point and again | want to
reiterate the comments that | made earlier that | can
accept, as has the Member for Lakeside said, that
thereare attimesreasons forsomeprojects not going
ahead and | would expect that when that occurs that
money will lapse and it will not be spent at all. We've
had no such assurances here tonight and again, | find
this whole process reprehensible and the Committee
a joke and hopefully I'll learn in time that things
maybe aren’'t as bad as | feel. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, | think the Honour-
able Member for Morris in his remarks, has indicted
his problem. He obviously feels that when he partici-
pates at this Committee and agrees with a proposed
spending Estimate then that's an accomplished fact,
that now that project is bound to proceed. Well the
honourable member then if he hasn’t intimated that,
that's certainly what he intimated to the people he
called, that these works are therefore definitely going
to go ahead.

Well, the honourable member knows that govern-
ment spends money on behalf of the taxpayers of the
province, has to tax the taxpayers of the province to
raisethosemoniestospendand —(Interjection)- well
the honourable member says he didn’t know that.
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That's pretty obvious.

Now the honourable member says that that trou-
bles him. I'm sure that honourable members in past
yearsreflected on items that were put on a capital list
and totheirdismay it wasn't proceeded with that year.
It wasn't proceeded with the following year either,
even though they were a member of the government
caucus, it wasn't proceeded with because there were
problems, problems with either acquiring the land,
engineering problems that weren't foreseen, envir-
onmental problems thatarose, any number of contin-
gencies, including the fact that perhaps the depart-
ment ran out of money.

Thehonourable membersays, well all these things,
what'sthe Minister talkingabout. Mr. Chairman, when
webudgetforitems we have an estimate of costs but
as | have indicated earlier when these items are put
outfortenderif the pricescomeback and they're too
high in the advice of the department, the decision is
made to proceed or not to proceed.

The honourable membernods his head in approval,
but thatisn’t the kind of intimation that the members
are making. The members are saying look, Mr. Minis-
ter, it's in the line, you've set out these projects so
you've got to go ahead with them. Let's follow the
logic of whathe's talking about.

We follow the projects. Now how do we priorize
them? Does the Dog Hung Creek Diversion get prior-
ity over the Brunkild Town Dyking System, if the esti-
mates of costare out? If the firsttwo or three items we
put out for tender come back one-and-a-half times
higher than what we anticipated, we're not going to
have the money. Sowhatdowedo, Mr. Chairman? Do
we call up the Member for Morris and say gee, you
know we've got a problem. The work in your consti-
tuency isn’t going to go ahead because we had to go
ahead with the work in the constituency of the Hon-
ourable Member for Arthur.

The honourable member is trying to suggest that
somehow the priorities are going to be established by
this Committee here now, at this time. That's what
he's intimating. Now the honourable member should
knowthattherearemany factorsthatdecidewhether
or not the matter goes. One of them is cost, one of
them is environmental impact, yes political. Are we
going to raise more taxes to fund these drains? How
much money are we going to have for capital works
out of the monies we raise by taxation? That's a politi-
cal decision.

We're going to have to consider what the local
communities consider. Have these capital projects
been properly articulated in the community? Are they
totally acceptableto the community? | take the exam-
ple again of the Red River Community Flood Proofing
— the honourable member sits and smiles — appar-
ently those communities didn’t have a dialogue with
governmentbefore the budgetitem was appropriated
a year ago and it's the same amount of money being
appropriated this time.

Now we have to considerlocal response. Thelocal
communities may say, we're not prepared to put up
some money for this project, then all of these factors
had to be considered, Mr. Chairman. But the honour-
able member thinks that when he is sitting here and
making a decision, voting on a line, that's it.

We are government — he thinks he's government —



Thursday, 25 March, 1982

I'madvising you, Mr. Chairman, I'm advising the hon-
ourable member that he doesn’'t make those deci-
sions. | quite candidly said to you and to all members
here that though we vote this money, there has to be
decisions made as to whether these projects go or not
go in accordance with all of the factors we have to
deal with and | would not undertake that all of these
projects are going to proceed. There has to be an
evaluation made on a number of aspects before the
projects are finally proceeded with and that was my
undertaking and that'’s a fair, sincere and honest one.
If that shocks the honourable member, I'm sorry, but
that decision, that heavy responsibility is with gov-
ernment and | and my colleagues have to exercise
that despite the factthat he may like to exerciseit from
where he sits now.

MR.MANNESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With due
respect to the Minister, | too wasn’t born yesterday
and naturally | realize there probably is some proba-
bility that not all these projects will be completed this
year and some of them may not even be started, but
that's not the concern here. The concern is that, in
fact, projects of which we have no knowledge or
understanding will be replaced for the ones thathave
been placed in front of us. That's the concern and
nothing more.

MR.MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order.
The honourable member is attributing words to me
that | never used. He's indicating that | said that there
would beitems dropped from this and otheritems put
in their place. | never used those words. —
(Interjection)— No | didn't.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Arthur.

MR. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, in my comments |
would say that | have misunderstood what the Minis-
ter has said and | think it will take a check of Hansard
to verify exactly what has been said tonight and we'll
be abletodiscussitatsome other pointinthefuture.

Mr. Chairman, the Minister well knows as the peo-
ple of Manitoba that they're the majority in govern-
ment and they can use their social democracy to
spend the monies which are voted in Committee in a
way in which they see fit. Mr. Chairman, what we're
asking as a Committee is to in the best possible way,
see the proposals that the governmentare planning to
use that money for and we've seen as a Committee
those very projects.

The Minister in arecent statement justa minute ago
said that he has not said tonight that he is able or
going to be allowed to use those funds that may be left
over or may be available from a project that he
decides notto proceed with — no one has forced him
to proceed with it for certain reasonsbuthe has now
indicated and | would like him to verify if this is his
position — that he does not plan to replace those
projects or use those funds in another way that we
aren’t going to be knowing of in a major way, mainly
the $13 million that were discussed in the last Esti-
mate item. If that is the case, Mr. Chairman, | think he
has shed alittle bit of light that could have been shed a
little earlier.

Mr. Chairman, | think what we're seeing here
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tonight, if I'm readingitcorrectly —andit may explain
why the First Minister of this province and the New
Democratic Government get along so well with the
Prime Ministerin Ottawa andtheLiberals in Ottawa —
is that they believe very much in that system of
government; that they don't have to account to the
people of Canada, the people of Manitoba on how
they're going to use the taxpayers’' money. They have
no respect for the British parliamentary system on
which this country has been developed and governed
under for some 114 years.

A good example, Mr. Chairman, was the recent epi-
sodethattookplacewherethe Toriesin Ottawa, when
in fact they allowed the bells or had the bells ringing
because the Prime Minister of Canada was trying to
prove an energy billthatwould give him the authority
in Cabinet — not in the Legislative Assembly, not in
theHouseofCommons — would give him authority to
increase the gasoline tax to first of all approve some
20 some cents that he has already put on the people of
Canada, but to furtherallow him by Order-in-Council
to put that tax on gasoline up to a $1.00 a gallon
without telling anybody in the country of Canada
what he was doing. Mr. Chairman, that is what we're
seeing in a social democracy.

Mr. Chairman, this social democracy wash that we
hear all the time is something that | think the people of
Manitobabetterstartpaying alittle more attention to.
| believe in a free democracy, Mr. Chairman, where
everyone knows whatis going onand wedon'thavea
government taking the taxpayers’ money and not
being accountable forit. That's what we're asking for.

The Member for Dauphin laughs and is taking it
very lightly. I, Mr. Chairman, have some deep con-
cerns and if | could again just go back and I'll close
with these comments. Will the Minister put on the
record that he does not plan to use the funds from a
project that is dropped from his program for another
major way — and | use it as the $13 million. | don't
think he could be expected to be directly or total on
course, there has to be some redirection. But for
totally new projects there has to be some recognition
or accountability to the taxpayers of the Province of
Manitoba. | think that, as far as | am concerned, has
been one of the most contentious issues and maybe
he could answer that for me, Mr. Chairman.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, the honourable
member is concerned about my making a commit-
ment. There's no problem with my making a commit-
ment along those lines. | can’'t myself move, drop one
item and put another item in. | don't have that kind of
power.

Now the honourable member and the other hon-
ourable members keep overlooking the fact that we
enterinto agreements in someinstances with munici-
palities for certain projects. They haveto consenttoit.
Wehave problems as they know in respectto some of
those things, they know them from their own expe-
rience. We have in most of these projects an involve-
ment with the Federal Government and the way the
Federal Government has been reacting in respect to
some agreements we have with them, we have no
absolute certainty that they're not going to withdraw
from these projects.

These projects are contingent on Federal Govern-
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ment participation. The honourable members will
recall as we wentthrough the Estimates, there were
not only in the capital items here, but there were in
other aspects of the Estimates, provisions for part of
our spending. —(Interjection) Well, Mr. Chairman, if
the honourable member doesn’'t want to hear what |
have to say. There are provisions for these programs
and they are contingent on or they are based on par-
ticipation by the Federal Government and the refer-
ences have been several throughout the Estimates
here.

If the Federal Government backs out of the funding
arrangements then there will be a tough decision for
us to make. Do we go ahead with those programs or
do we not? That's a tough political decision to make
and that's a quantitative decision we're going to have
to make. But for the honourable members to say, oh
no, no, once you make a decision here in this line
you're bound, that just flies in the face of common-
sense. So, repletethrough these Estimates are prob-
lems in respect to funding and contingencies over
which | don't have any absolute control. For the hon-
ourable memberstosay,well you know, you'rebound
by it, that's just folly.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Pembina.

MR.ORCHARD: When we'reon thisline of the Minis-
ter's Salary, is the Minister open to specific questions
that require answers or do you want general
statements?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister has indicated before
that he's pretty flexible so he said he'll continue to be
flexible.

MR. ORCHARD: Okay, Mr. Chairman. I'd just like to
establish as to whether Estimates are prepared and
printed that have been subjected to Treasury Board
scrutiny?

MR. MACKLING: Yes, Mr. Chairman, | understand
that the Treasury Board does review Estimates.

MR. ORCHARD: The Treasury Board then reviewed
the Estimates that we are looking at tonight?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, the department
would submitthelineitem, the generality, but notthe
detail, as apparently is the usual practice, Mr.
Chairman.

MR. ORCHARD: Oh, the usual practice the Minister
says.

MR. MACKLING: As | understand.

MR.ORCHARD: Now, Mr. Chairman, when Treasury
Board decides that a given line is not sufficiently
funded or is insufficiently funded, they would make
that change and that change would be the final total
that appears in any given line in the Estimate book;
would that be a correct assumption?

MR. MACKLING: |
Chairman, yes.

would believe so, Mr.

862

MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, does Cabinet get an
overview of the total Estimate and give its approval to
the total Estimate package, as printed?

MR.MACKLING: Well, Mr. Chairman, the member is
asking alot of questions that he should have as much
familiarity withasanyone and | think thatthe practice
has notchanged. The honourable member can reflect
on that.

MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, that is exactly why
I'm asking this Minister what goes on because what
has gone on in the past appears to be quite radically
changed by this Minister and | want to determine the
process under which these Estimates are before us
tonight, and | would just ask my question again, were
these Estimates subject to Cabinet review?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, the process has not
changed I'm advised by my staff who readied the
Estimates.

MR. ORCHARD: Then, Mr. Chairman, | will assume,
and the Minister can correct me if | am wrong, that
these Estimatesreceived the perusal and the approval
of the Cabinet.

MR.MACKLING: The general lines, as|'veindicated,
Mr. Chairman, but the detail that we've submitted to
this Committee apparently is not generally perused
by Cabinet.

MR. ORCHARD: Mr.Chairman, when we get down to
an item such as Item 13 in Construction/Acquisition
of Physical Assets, does Treasury Board see a
detailed list as we have seen tonight, in other words,
the six-page list which indicates certain projects
valued at certain dollars?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, I'm advised that the
tentative projects and therough Estimates or.cost are
available, yes, to make up the total.

MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, are those tentative
costs, which are now finalized in the six-page han-
dout called Description of Acquisition and Construc-
tion projects, are they presented to Cabinet and
approved by Cabinet?

MR. MACKLING: No, Mr. Chairman. They weren't in
the past either were they?

MR. ORCHARD: | take it that the Minister says that
this six-page description of the construction under
Item 13 hasonly received TreasuryBoardperusaland
approval and not Cabinet's approval?

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, I'm given to under-
stand that the Treasury Board reviews the total.

MR. ORCHARD: I'm sorry, | missed that answer, Mr.
Chairman.

MR. MACKLING: I'm advised that Treasury Board of
Cabinet reviews the total.
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MR. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, did not the Minister
just about three questions ago tell me that they were
given the projects, the rough Estimates of costs, item-
by-item as appeared in the six-page handout?

MR.MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, | indicated that the
Treasury Board has available to it, through the staff,
the detail of the projects and the approximate Esti-
mates of cost, yes.

MR. ORCHARD: Then | will attempt to phrase what
the Minister has said, once again he can correct me if
I'm wrong. Treasury Board would have knowledge of
the six-page, 36 item, Capital Construction Program
and their approximate costs as tabled to this
Committee.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, it's my understand-
ing that staff make available the detail of the items.

MR. ORCHARD: The detail of the items being the
detail that has been presented to us in Committee.

MR. MACKLING: Yes.

MR.ORCHARD: | believe the Ministersaid, yes, and |
thank him for that answer.

Tonight, Mr. Chairman, in case the Minister feels
that there is some particular dislike that members in
HerMajesty's Loyal Opposition havetothemethodin
which he presents his Estimates, or to him, | can
assure him that that's not the case. | can assure him
that this opposition will work with this Minister to
carry out the kinds of policies, the kinds of directions
in Water Resource Managementthat heenunciatedin
his Throne Speech Debate and which he has des-
cribed at some length in these Estimates process.

We were under the impression when we came in
here tonight,Mr.Chairman,toapprove Item 13, which
was some $13 million of expenditures that this Minis-
ter is seeking Committee’s approval of, that that list
that we were presented some two nights ago had been
put through the normal process of approval by a gov-
ernment who wants to responsibly present their Esti-
mates and that, as such, Mr. Chairman, that list of 36
projects, and | believe the total on it will come to the
$13 million that are being voted, represents the
undertakings . . .

MR.MACKLING: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, | want to
correct the honourable member. That's just the water
items.

MR.ORCHARD: Yes, okay, I'm sorryitwon'ttotal $13
million, it'll total something considerably less. Now,
this is where the opposition has some difficulty with
the Minister’'s opening statements when we discussed
Item 13. He told us that once we pass this line tonight
authorizing the government, and he as Minister, to
spend some $13 million, some $3 million of which
have been detailed in this 36-item handout, once
we've approved it he will take it back to Cabinet and
they will decide whether, in fact, what this Committee
has approved in good faith will be carried out. Cabinet
will decide whether, in fact, certain projects proceed;
Cabinet will decide whether certain projects don’t
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proceed; Cabinet will decide what new projects may
take up the $3 million, approximately, that we, the
Committee,wereledto believe would be undertook in
expenditures by the Minister's department in the fis-
cal year 1982-83.

Now, the Minister said just a couple of minutes ago
that these are tough political decisions that have tobe
made and | suppose that is what concerns us,
because the Minister has told us that, even though
these Estimates of Capital Expenditure have passed
Treasury Board, he has told us tonight they go before
Cabinet before they are going to be spent. And if
Cabinet decides in their political will to change them, |
have to assume from what he said, because that's the
prerogative of government, that they will indeed be
changed. | guess what really concerns us, Mr. Chair-
man, is that the Member for Inkster, when he sat
behind us at this side of the table, said that the prob-
lem with these Estimates were that they weren’'t NDP
Estimates; they were Tory Estimates; we didn't have
time to do the Estimate process properly. This, Mr.
Chairman, after the Minister has told us that those
Capital Estimates went to Treasury Board which is a
committee composed of Cabinet Ministers.

Now, the backbencher, the Member for Inkster,
says the problem with them is they were Tory Esti-
mates, not NDP Estimates, and this is where we have
some concern that we approve them tonight. The
Member for Inkster and this government seems to
have a habit of letting backbenchers set government
policy and non-Treasury Bench members announce
government policy; that, in fact, the Member for Ink-
stertonight was announcing governmentpolicy; that,
Boys, come in and approve this tonight and after
tonight we'll go to Cabinet next Wednesday and we'll
rearrange the priorities. As the Minister of Highways
and Transportation said tonight, there are some 27 or
28 of these projects are in Tory constituencies. That
tells methat he wantsto change some of them as well;
that leads me to believe that the Ministerof Highways
wants to change that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order. Order.

MR.ORCHARD: Now, Mr. Chairman, there was quite
a considerable discussion, and the Minister of Health
carried on and | believe even the Member for Spring-
field made a few comments, about the fact that, hey,
there’'s nothing new, this happens all the time when
governments change, and they used the example of
what we did in 1977 with the ‘78-79 Capital Estimates,
to the Capital Estimatesthat the Legislature approved
for ‘77-78. In other words, they accused us of chang-
ing a set of Capital Estimates that were voted by the
Legislaturebutwerenotbroughtinby us, notbrought
inby us, butratherthat we changed Capital Estimates
that another government brought in.

What wearetalking abouttonight, Mr. Chairman, is
this Minister tellingusthatheis goingtobringinaset
of Capital Estimates, approved by the Treasury Bench
of this government, and then proceed to change
them, after the fact, at the will of the Cabinet. An
entirely different situationthanfromwhatthe Minister
of Health tried to make the phony case that we were
doing, entirely not a proper comparison of what is
happening here tonight, not even close to an approx-
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imation of what happened in 1977. They used the
examplesthatwe switched Capitalitemsin 1977. You
bet we did. In 1978-79 Capital Estimates we built a
hospital in Snow Lake, Manitoba, which the previous
NDP administration saw fit not tobuild; webuiltit. We
mighthaveremoved the priority from something they
wanted to do but we placed it in Snow Lake. We
approved the Selkirk Hospital in Selkirk, something
that they hadn’'t approved, naturally we changed
priorities, but when we tabled a series of Capital Esti-
matesin Health, in Education, in Highways, in Natural
Resources, when we tabled those Estimates we lived
by them. We didn't take them back to Cabinet to
peruse them, to change them, as this Minister says
he's going to do with these Estimates.

That, Mr. Chairman, may seem to be something
strange for these newcomer socialist backbenchers
torealize why we are concerned aboutit. We never did
that in our four years and | would venture to say, Mr.
Chairman, thatin the eight years the Schreyer admin-
istrationwasin placetheyneverbroughtin aseries of
Capital expenditures with detailed projects and then
told the Committee that they're going to take them to
Cabinet afterwards and rearrange the priority and
maybe change the spending, as this Minister has told
usthatthis governmentis goingtodo.That'sincredi-
ble, Mr. Chairman. And these backbenchers sit here
and are going to blindly follow along the lead of this
autocratic government that is asking us tonight to
spend $13 million. And, Mr. Chairman, | want to point
outthatthe Minister of Health called the question and
thwarted further debate on item line 13, Resolution
113. He thwarted debate. We moved Committee rise.
This government thwarted that move and used their
onerous power of majority to defeat us. And, Mr.
Chairman, whatisincredible about thisisthatitis of a
great deal of laughter to the members in the
Government.

No, my members aren’t laughing at that. Now, the
Minister is saying that money is a problem, that
maybe they're not going to have the money. Now, if
theyaren'tgoing tohavethemoney,thenwhatarewe
doingheretalkingabout $2.8 billion worth of expendi-
tures? Areyou going tospendthem oraren’tyou? Did
you intend tospendthem or didn't you? What is the
Estimate process for? What are we here for? This
Minister is going to change spending priorities. Now,
maybe | misinterpret him and he'll no doubt answer
this and he will maybe clarify that, in fact, he's not
taking this Capital Estimate to Cabinet for further
political decision and I'll give him that opportunity to
clarify that now.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Arthur.
MR. ORCHARD: No, Mr. Chairman, if the Minister

would clarify that or wants to clarify that, I'm willing to
listen.

MR. MACKLING: I've explained that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: He's clarified his position. The
Member for Arthur.

MR. ORCHARD: No, Mr. Chairman, | asked a ques-
tion of the Minister; he didn'tanswer; | did not giveup
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my position.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Pembina, you're
on.

MR. ORCHARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Now,
another argument that he used besides the money
was that maybe these Estimates are goingto comein
and maybe they're goingto cost a lot more. Well, this
to me meansthatthe Minister is calling into question
the competence of his department in developing
Estimates. He's telling us that if these Estimate
guesses aren't correct, prepared by his department,
then we're going to have to cancel them. Well, if he
doesn't trust his department to develop proper Esti-
mates, why did he trust his Deputy Minister to make
this announcement on Garrison? You can't trust the
Deputy in one regard and then say, as an excuse for
changing Estimates, wellmaybethe departmentisn't
budgeting properly. Where does this Minister sit with
his department? Well, we don't really know. We do
know, however, that this Minister has letters go out
thathehasnoknowledgeofthatradically changethe
policy of flood protection in the Red River Valley; we
know that. Now we have him saying, Mr. Chairman, “I
havetohave thereservation here becausel don't trust
the Estimates that my department have developed for
me. | don't trust my engineers who have given me
these Estimates. | don't believe they're competent to
estimate properly; therefore we might haveto change
them.” Mr. Chairman, that's not right. If the Minister
does not have the trust of the competence of his
department, then he should remove himself as Minis-
terorchange his department. He can’'t come here and
use that as an excuse for changing the Estimates,
which he has tonight.

The Minister, earlier on tonight, made a blatant
accusation. He said that there was $900,000 voted in
the Estimates for valley dike protection voted in ‘81-
82, and it wasn't used; he said that the first time. But
the second time, Mr. Chairman, the Minister said,
“We, the former Progressive Conservative Govern-
ment, took that to Cabinet and it was turned down by
Cabinet.” Mr. Chairman, thatis absolutely notfactual.
The Minister was not giving true facts to the Commit-
tee and the proof will beread in Hansard, when about
two minutes later he backed off, and tried to weasel
out of it, saying, “No, they didn't take it to Cabinet, but
they didn't spend the money,” but he tried to mislead
the Committee, saying that we had turned it down in
Cabinettospendthat $900,000.00.Nowwhenyouget
a Minister who is so desperate that he puts half truths
on the record to try to justify a mistake that he made
earlier on, that he didn't have these Estimates
approved in Cabinet, andthathe'sgoingtotakethem
back to Cabinet and change them, | suggest, Mr.
Chairman, we don't have an awful lot in the Opposi-
tion to rely on in the credibility of this Minister. We
don’'t know whether what he's telling us is going to
happen, not going to happen, be changed; in fact, we
don't even know whether the Minister knows what
he's going to do. He didn't know he was going to
charge the Red River Valley communities 10 percent
extra for their diking, an unprecedented policy
change; he didn't know that, and he tells us tonight he
doesn’'t know if these capital construction projects
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are going to, in fact, be done because he is going to
take them to Cabinet for political perusal by the
Cabinet. That, Mr. Chairman, is unprecedented.

MR.ENNS: Mr. Chairman, through you to the Minis-
ter. During the supper hour, recognizing that perhaps
we would gettothe Minister’s Salary, | was attempting
to sort out in my own mind, some of the summation
that | would like to make with respect to these Esti-
mates, and | remind all members of the Committee,
that noindividual memberis abusing the privileges of
this Committee by using the Minister's Salary to dis-
cuss all the issues, all the subject matter thatinvolves
this department. Thatis arule, a regulation, a history
and tradition of how we deal with Estimates in this
Legislature of Manitoba.

| had certain concerns that | had ticked off in my
own mind that | was going to pursue. Thatwaspriorto
what | have to acknowlege are utterly astonishing
revelations that the Minister made regarding his atti-
tude towards the passage of these Estimates, and my
colleague, the Member for Pembina, has dwelt at
some length on that attitude. You see, Mr. Chairman, |
was concerned about the items not includedin thelist
of capital projects. | was concerned about: what if
this government decides to do something about the
flooding problems in Gimli? What if they want to do
something abouttheflooding problemsin Ste. Rose?
| know they may not be worried about the flooding
problems of Carman because they may not have
immediately fallen in love with the Member for Pem-
bina that represents that fine city. But | was con-
cerned, what if, they wanted to proceed with the Cor-
dite diversion that | know the Member for Springfield
is interested in? What if, Mr. Chairman, they were to
dosomething; whatif, asindeed, theprevious admin-
istration was, as demonstrated by the visits by the
Minister, by delegations, what if, Mr. Chairman, they
were to do something about Polder |1l that | know you
have a personal concern about, aside from just the
hand holding and maintenance work that is being
done on Polders | and II? What if, Mr. Chairman, the
department decided to undertake some of the major
conservation projects that this department has the
responsibility for?

And | was mounting those up because, Mr. Chair-
man, there has been a concern expressed initially by
all our spokesmen when the Throne Speech came in,
when the first indication of the spending Estimates
came in, as to just how much money this government
was going to spend. | was looking through the list of
missing items that were not contained in these Esti-
mates, to add to that list, to check on their accounta-
bility, their integrity, in terms of their spending Esti-
mates. We already know that they have made no
accounting for the already announced Education
progams. They made no accounting for the much
promised and continuing to be promised Beef Sup-
port Programs in their spending Estimates. They have
made no accounting for a number of programs, that
justthrough questioning in the House, we haveunco-
vered and gleaned from the government, intentions
that the government expects to spend money on. So,
Mr. Chairman, —(Interjection)— That's right, every
otherday any member that questions the government
finds more dollars that they intend to spend on.
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So, Mr. Chairman, my main concern was going to
be in these Estimates, in summation, was what are the
government’s intentions that they intend to spend
money on thatarenotbeinglisted here? | really find it
difficult to believe that they would leave the newly
elected Member for Gimli in the lurch. After the pre-
vious administration made a firm commitment, where
the Council of Gimili haspassed an unanimous Reso-
lution in Council, where water resource people have
been sent out to actually purchase land to help the
Member for Gimli who sat with us rather silently
through most of these Estimates but who, | know was
with usinbody and spirit, and I'm looking for him right
now, but he was there. | really don't believe that this
government would not want to do something that
resolved that flooding problem in Gimli. | suspect
they'd like to do the same for your colleague, the
Minister of Municipal Affairs representing Ste. Rose,
because we had a solution to that problem. It was by
and large acceptable to the community of Ste. Rose,
but, Mr. Chairman, none of those items appear in
these Estimates.

| was prepared, but | should know better after 17
years. | was prepared to charge into these Estimates
in one way, and call this government to task for not
really coming clean with what they intend to spend,
butthenlgettherugpulled outfromunderme, all ofa
sudden tonight. The Minister has said he'sgotappro-
val for $13,255,000, but he reserves for himself the
right how he’s going to spend it; and, of course, then
allthingsbecomeclearto me.| nowknowhowthey're
going to spend it, and the Minister indicated it will be
spent; cold, hard, political decisions made at Cabinet.

And so, to my honourable friend, whom | take a
moment to congratulate, the Member for Morris, who
has made an outstanding contribution to this Com-
mittee as afirst-time member, who believed, and went
line by line with the Minister on the various programs
that were being held out as being projected for con-
struction in his constituency, and | object to a fine
young man like Mr. Manness being led down the
garden path in that manner. That could leave trau-
matic scars on his psychological soul so early in his
political career.

A MEMBER: He's crying, Mr. Chairman.

MR.ENNS: Mr.Chairman, | know thatltend tosome-
times inject a degree of humour in some of my com-
ments but I'm deadly serious and | intend to go on for
some time.

Mr. Chairman, the comments made by the Minister
of Health who was present for a period of time in the
discussion, are not lost on me. He made a great point
of saying that when new governments come in, when
new governments getelected, theyhave certainly the
right to change the priorities of the outgoing govern-
ment. Certainly they do. Mr. Chairman, | could spend
the next 20 minutes in recounting some of those hard
decisions that in the administration that | was part of
had to make under very similar circumstances.

The difference is only a few days — a month. We
came in October 24th; you came in November. Cer-
tainly, as | said, the Honourable Minister of Health
talked about all the cancelled personal care homes,
all the hospitals that were going to be built and |
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suggested there were more sod-turning ceremonies
carried outin late fall of ‘77 than this province hasever
seen. But, Mr. Chairman, they were not passed by a
Legislature in a set of Estimates. They were projected
as programs.

Mr. Chairman, when we had the responsibility of
bringing in the Estimates, we had the responsibility of
eitherincludingthem ordeleting them. Mr. Chairman,
those programs that were deleted; they were noticed;
they were commented upon by the individual
members; they were commented uponbythe Opposi-
tion of the day and they were certainly commented on
by the media of the day.

So, Mr. Chairman, | really can'texpress my indigna-
tion more sincerely than the fact that we have in my
judgement had a pretty good go at these Estimates. |
believe that in many ways we have handled these
Estimates in a way that | think Estimates should be
handled; not in the minute eye of administration
details; not in arguing about SMYs in every division,
every branch, every department of office.

Mr. Chairman, | have too much respect for the
senior Civil Service in this province. | know that they
are by and large capable and competent managers. |
know the wringer that they have to go through. Mr.
Chairman, | say that with some reservation, because
perhaps a year from now ortwo years from now when
we see substantive shifts in the Estimate procedure,
when we see certain programs bulging, certain staff
requirements bulging in certain areas, we will get
down to that kind of questioning.

But, Mr.Chairman,aslindicatedatthe outset as we
by and large carried out, we have had | think a good
debate on the issues of your department. | think it's
good for members that aren’t every day intimately
involved in the affairs of the Department of Natural
Resources. | think for many membersthataren’treally
concerned about drainage ditches; aren’t really con-
cerned about wildlife issues; aren't concerned about
parks development, it adds to their general develop-
ment as members to become knowledgeable and to
thatextentatleast, anybody that sat on this Commit-
tee had that opportunity.

Certainly contributions were made from all sides of
the House. We heard some nice, different, diverging
opinions on many subjects. The Member for Inkster
contributed in many waystothe Committee work that
brought a different aspectto some of the concerns of
environment and so forth and they were all welcome.
We didn't waste our time arguing about how many
pencils the department was buying, or whether or not
a secretary or clerk should or should not have been
hired. Well, Mr. Chairman, we've had that kind of a
debate in this Committee.

Mr. Chairman, | will not fool myself in believing that
we would in a very serious way influence a govern-
ment decision one way or another. But what we can
do at this Committee, is indicate the depth of feeling
thereisforcertain projects, theimportanceof certain
projects and, Mr. Chairman, that tells particularly a
government like this government that has very few
feelers out in rural Manitoba. No, Mr. Chairman, |
appreciate and | know where your members come
from but I'm talking about rural farm Manitoba. | sus-
pect that for many members of this Committee, they
had a bigger education as to what makes farm rural
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Manitobatick than they’'ve ever had before, and that’s
good, because we're all members of this Committee.
But what's disappointing, Mr. Chairman, is the Minis-
ter's statement today that he accepts this whole exer-
cise as a exercise to be gotten over with, and one that
then needs to be paid little attention to.

Mr. Chairman, | thought we had given the Minister
every opportunity when the issue first arose to soften
that position, toacknowledge as we were prepared to
let him acknowledge that we are not that naive or
inexperienced that we believe that all 36 items of a
projected program can be carried out. We're aware
that there are any number of circumstances that can
make that not possible. But, Mr. Chairman, the Minis-
ter chose to ignore all those avenues for a way out of
the dilemma that he himself created. He persists in the
idea that this whole Estimate process is a charade;
thatis now for him to deal at Cabinet level where the
precise monies that we are passing for him are to be
passed.

Mr. Chairman, that's simply not the way | read the
rules and regulations of how we do business in the
Province of Manitoba. | don't think this is the way the
provincial Auditor rules the rules and regulations of
how we do business in the Province of Manitoba. |
happento know thatthe department has toand | have
to. | have very often as Minister pleaded, have asked
my staff when a certain program isn’t moving forward
and another program has achance, or |l wanttoinject
a new program mid-term. | argued with my adminis-
trators, “But, damn it all, can’'t we take this $300,000
and spend it there?” And they say, “No, the Auditor
won't let you do that.” You're telling me that you're
going to override all thattradition; thatyou're going to
look at this and do it your way.

You know there was another Minister around, in
fact, he was Minister of this department, Natural
Resources. He often expressed similar attitudes
toward theresponsibility,thepowerandthe authority
of the Minister. If hethought that aparticular advisory
committee was giving him advice thathedidn’tlike to
have, he just dismissed the advisory committee. If he
feltthat certain regulations or legislation wasin place
that prevented him from exercising his ministerial
authority, he changed the legislation. But at least in
doing that, he brought the issue up and we had a
chance of debating it in the House. We debated it in
the House. Mr. Chairman, I'm referring to the former
Member for Inkster, the Honourable Sidney Green.
Mr. Chairman, what of course is missing —
(Interjection)— You've got to defend the former
Member for Inkster. —(Interjection)—

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order. The Member for Lakeside
has the floor.

MR.ENNS: What, of course, is missing from the esti-
mates and something that should bedwelled onis the
kind of conservation projects that this department
should be undertaking particularly at this time snd |
indicated to the Honourable Minister that | plead with
him to insist on getting his fair share of capital resour-
ces for those purposes.

When you're being besieged by your colleagues to
pour the millions into ManOil, to get into the joint
venture programsthathave noassured payout,letme
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assure the Minister that $40 million spent ona Holland
Dam will have a payout. That$200r $30 million spent
or that $300,000diversion from the Assiniboine to La
Salle will have a payout, and an immediate one. The
provision of adequate water supplies for Morris, for
that south-central partoftheprovincewhere we have
the greatest potential forathriving vegetable process-
ing, food processing, intensive farming area that has
an immediate payout. Those are the kind of things |
want this Minister and this department to be talking
about. Those are the kind of things that we were
talking about, even during a period of hard time to get
the dollars.

But, Mr. Chairman, | can remember. Let me break
all Cabinet rules with the Minister and divulge to him
thekindofthingsthatonly Russ Doern writesaboutin
books, because | can recall the arguement in my
Cabinet about whether ornotthe people of Manitoba
should invest $200 million in a Potash Development
and we made the decision to do that, $200 million or
more, 25 percent. But the argument was, well could
health use that $200 million betterr? Could natural
resources use that $200 million better? Could educa-
tion use that $200 million better? That's the argument
that you socialists have to ask yourself before you go
rushing off into your ManOil developments. Because
there is a limitation of funds and you are going to be
experiencing that.

So, Mr. Chairman, unless you can honestly satisfy
yourselfthat ManOilis going to pay off all those elec-
tion promises that you talked about, unless you can
satisfy the legitimate demands of this department and
of the Department of Health, the Department of Edu-
cation, that's when you haveto priorize the placing of
public dollars on today's money markets.

| believe, Mr. Minister through you, Mr. Chairman,
that it has always been the capacity of any govern-
mentto tax by royalty, directly, indirectly, the benefits
that these resources owe to all Manitobans because
they are belonging to all Manitobans, they are owned
by all Manitobans. But | argue with you and | will
continue to argue with you as long as we put off,
particularly in times of tight money, the necessary
dollars that our social services demand and what | feel
most — and it has been demonstrated by eight years
of NDP administration — the kind of hard gutsy phys-
ical programs that your department can deliver and
that your department can provide for the benefit of
generations of Manitobans, as the investments made
by thedepartmentinthe $100 million flood protection
of the Red River Valley, as the millions of dollars
invested in bringing into fruitful production, thou-
sands and thousands of acres of land; those are the
kind of lasting benefits that in my judgment - that's
why | can come and lie with you and you can callmea
socialist — I believein that kind of public expenditure
of money. Now when we say that then you would like
to call over to us all the time, oh you're socialist or
you're talking about public expenditure of money.

We are talking about the responsibility of a gov-
ernment in using public funds in that way that makes
itpossible for Manitobans with initiative, with drive, to
fully maximize the potential of this great province. Mr.
Chairman, there is nothing in these Estimates that
indicate that you have a desire to do that.

You gave a good speech, Mr. Minister, in your

867

Throne SpeechDebate. You talked about the concern
about water and water conservation. You read from
Time Magazine about the browning of America. But,
Mr. Chairman, through you to the Minister, we in
Manitoba are in a unique position. We have more
waters flowing across our borders into our province
covering one of the greatest drainage sheds in the
world and we can trap and we could use that water
wisely if we choose to. But it takes will, it takes deter-
mination on the part of the government to do that.

| make this suggestion to you in all earnestness,
before monies are spent into high risk ventures like
ManOil, before you want to get into the poker game of
looking for minerals, particularly when we have
exploration going atthe highestlevel, let the Director
of Water Resources have some of that money. Let's
geton with some of the development in ourdrier parts
of the province and let's make that kind of infrastruc-
ture available for future generations of Manitobans to
enjoy.

MR. MACKLING: Mr. Chairman, | welcome the posi-
tive remarks from the Honourable Member for Lake-
side, it's a refreshing change from what I've heard
earlier.

| too, share his concerns that in our spending we
reflectsome of our long-term goals inrespectto con-
servationof our naturalresources. It'snot glamorous.
It's not all that attractive in some ways, but we must
address the problems — as I've highlighted them in
my earlier remarks tothis Committee - the problems
of conservation of our resources.

One of the resources that | think we haven't
emphasized sufficiently is our freshwater resources
and | think that quite unknowingly we have for a long
time practised a course of facilitating the drainage of
water from the surface of Manitoba, believing that it
was vital and in the interests of Manitobans to get
water off the land as quickly as possible and to facili-
tate agricultural production.

Now I'm not saying, and | haven't said in my
remarks during the course of the Estimate review by
this Committee, thatthose concerns were invalid. But
whatlhaveindicated isthatwe must now starttolook,
notatthe limited goalsthatwe may have in particular
areas, but we must look at long-range goals as to the
conservation of resources.

In doing that we must look back at practices of
clearing marginal lands, draining marginal lands, and
reconsider whether or not these lands shouldn't be
restored to wetland or forest cover, because there is
no question that we have seen a change, it may not
have been that dramatic, but it's been a steady
change, a reduction in the amount of our
groundwater.

We know that we're in a cycle now where nature is
imposing a penalty on our society. We have areas
that, without question, are going to suffer from reduc-
tion in crop because of lack of precipitation. There is
no question butthe reduced rainfall has had an effect
on our hydro-electric generation. But what we haven't
been doing sufficiently, obviously, is storing water
where we can and releasing it later for the use of our
entire ecology.

Now, | think that honourable members have noted
that within the Estimates and within the Capital Esti-
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mates, there are items that reflect that on that prob-
lem. There are specifics in respect to provisions for
structures that will have the effect of pilot projects
that will have the effect of looking at those problems
and addressing them. There's no question but that
these programs will have a very valuable effect on
determining what our programs from now on will be.
We have to weigh carefully and cost-benefit as we
have with the Federal Government, the various pro-
grams that we are looking at. We will proceed with
programs that have the most benefit, not for the
limited purpose, but we'll be looking at the longer
term goals that we must have, that we can conserve
our resources not just forimmediate future, but into
the distant future. So, | think, Mr. Chairman, the Esti-
mates my department has brought forward reflect
some of that concern. | hope that in the years ahead
they will reflect more and more of that, and that we will
be able to note with pleasure some increasing return
of land to a more vigorous conservation program.
Withthosefewremarks, Mr. Chairman, I'll be happy to
hear other comments.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | move Committee
rise.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Lakeside.

MR. ENNS: | move that Item 1(a) be reduced by one
dollartoread: $20,599, seconded by the Honourable
Member for Pembina.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Wehave a motion. | don't think we
canvoteon it. | think we'll adjourn.
The Member for Springfield on a point of order.

MR. ANSTETT: Yes, Mr. Chairman, what the rules
require is not that the Committee rise when an
amendment is placed, but that when the Committee
has finished discussion of the item, then the item is
carried over for vote at the next sitting of the Commit-
tee. All discussion does not cease because an
amendment has been placed —(Interjection)—

MR. CHAIRMAN: On the motion, any discussion on
the member's motion that his Salary be reduced?
The Member for Springfield.

MR. ANSTETT: To question of the direction of the
Committee, if there is no debate on the motion, the
question can be held over till tomorrow. Wecan pro-
ceed to continue to debate and we can continue —
(Interjection)— yes must be, and we can continue to
debate the main motion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have a motion on the floor to
amend the Minister’'s Salary, reduce it by one dollar.
We're asking if there's any discussion on the amend-
ment. Are you ready for the question? The question
will be held over.

Okay, | want to make it clear that there will be no
discussion tomorrow. All there will be is two ques-
tions. There'll be a question on the amendment and
there'll be a question on 1(a). —(Interjection)—
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MR. MACKLING: There'll be two questions
tomorrow.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There'll be two questions called.
The amendment will be called and then the main
motion will be called.

Committee rise

SUPPLY — NORTHERN AFFAIRS,
ENVIRONMENT AND WORKPLACE SAFETY
AND HEALTH

MR. CHAIRMAN, Jerry T. Storie (Flin Flon): The
Committee will come to order.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we begin the proceedings, |
would like to direct the attention of the members to
the gallery to my left. We have 24 members of the 7th
Transcona Cub Pack and these Cubs arerepresented
by the Honourable Minister of Energy and Mines.

I'd like to welcome them here on behalf of all the
members of the Chamber.

Continuing with Item No. 5. Environmental Man-
agement, 5.(a) Salaries — the Honourable Member
for Turtle Mountain.

MR. A. BRIAN RANSOM (Turtle Mountain): Mr.
Chairman, | believe when we last met thatthe Minister
was about to tell us precisely at what point the Envir-
onmental Impact Studies had progressed to with
respect to the proposed Alcan Smelter.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. JAY COWAN (Churchill): Basically it's my
understanding that we have been in contact with
Alcan as part of the public review process of the
environmental assessment and socioeconomic
assessment process. Weare now internally reviewing
anumber of the materials which were presented to us
and, at thispoint,donothave any set dates for public
hearings. However, we do have set plans for public
hearings when we have a bit more information as to
thesitelocation and the agreement between the Pro-
vincial Government and any aluminum or any other
major industrial company in the province.

MR.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, | wonder if the Minister
could give usjust alittle bitmore informationin terms
of what factors have been under consideration at this
point and is his department doing investigations or is
it the company that's doing the investigations, just
what is being done and how far has it progressed?

MR. COWAN: The company has been bringing for-
ward aseries of documents as part of the process. We
have been reviewing them and itis my understanding
thatstaff have been goingback foranswersto specific
questions and providing some direction where possi-
ble and attempting to deal with the information which
is coming forward. | believe it would be safe to say
that's the stage we're at now where they have done
most of the research, most of the development of a
proponent statement and we are reviewing that
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particular statement.

MR.RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, in view of the fact that
the Member for Thompson has indicated that there is
a possibility that government would be looking at
having the smelter locate in Thompson, has any of the
environmental studies or the socioeconomic studies
been oriented towards that site?

MR. COWAN: This is one of the difficulties that we
face, Mr. Chairperson, and I'm certain that the Member
for Turtle Mountain is aware of the new arrangement
and agreement which has been made with Alcan, and
that is that there be no preconditions. One of the
preconditions of the negotiations previously was a
specific site and we could direct our attention to that
specific site. That precondition having been removed
it opens up the whole process to anumber of sites and
thereare probably dozens of sites, if notmore, which
could be considered and until that process zeroes in,
focusesinmorespecifically on a number of sites, then
it is difficult for us to do the type of extensive study
which is necessary to provide the type of information
which the member is requesting. When that does
happen I'm certain that we will start to specifically
deal with those sites.

MR.RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, if there are noprecon-
ditions, | wonder if the Minister could advise us then
how any site is going to be selected?

MR.COWAN: | understand that's a matter of negotia-
tions between the Minister responsible, the Minister
for Energy and Mines, and Alcan at this time. | have
indicated to him, through the Provincial Land Use
Committee, that if they came forward with requests
about specific sites we would attempt to provide them
with the technical data which is necessary through
my own department. To my knowledge that has not
happened yet.

MR. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, it would seem to me
that part of the process of selecting a site would be
conducting studies with respect to the environment
and to socioeconomic impact as well. Itrather strikes
me, from the answers we've been getting, that per-
haps the process has simply been put on hold, that
there really isn't any environmental impact or socio-
economic study under way, that the government is
simply assessing any information which Alcan gives it
and | assume the information that Alcan was prepar-
ing was, in fact, relatedto their preferred site northw-
est of Winnipeg, and with the so-called preconditions
removed that their study will then not have any rele-
vance because it is related to that site.

It's difficult for me to understand, Mr. Chairman,
just how the studies can proceed under those
circumstances.

MR.COWAN: The memberisbasically right when he
saysthat thefactthat Balmoral siteis notthe only site
under consideration at the present time, creates diffi-
culties for the environmental impact assessment and
the socioeconomic impact assessment as well. He is
alsocorrectwhen he suggeststhatwhatwearedoing
now is reviewing the material which we have at the
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Balmoral site which we will continue to doin the event
that site is a chosen site. The fact that we have entered
the negotiations in the way in which we have does not
mean that may, in fact, not be one of the sites and if it
were then that information would be of value to us.
Since we haveit in our possession or at least some of
it in our posession, we are reviewing it from that
prospective.

If the Department of Energy and Mines would come
to us and say, “We are reviewing another site or we
want to talk about another site, can you pull together
some technical data for us?” We would endeavor to
do thatandthroughthe Provincial Land Use Commit-
tee provide that to the Minister.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Tuxedo.

MR. GARY FILMON (Tuxedo): Mr. Chairman, this is
very much new information to this Committee and,
indeed, | think the members on thisside of the House,
and further to that, the people of Manitoba. The fact of
the matter is that | do not believe that anyone under-
stood that the removal of all preconditions included
theremovalof the sitelocationas apredecidedpartof
this whole picture for Alcan — and the Minister can
correct me if I'm wrong — but once the site location
has been removed, then the entire socioeconomic
review process is invalid. Further to that, agreat deal
of the environmental assessment review process is
invalid unless it is site-specific. So, can the Minister
say exactly where this stands? | have to assume from
this that the environmental impact assessment, the
impact statement that's being done right now by
Alcan, must be in the state of imbo because | do not
believe that they can proceed with the preparation of
their environmental impact statement without having
the site chosen.

MR. COWAN: Well, the member highlights many of
the problems, in fact, without being able to direct our
attentionto a specific site, itis difficulttodo a detailed
assessment. What we are doing is assessing the mate-
rial which was provided to us in the event that site
were to be the site. If another site is chosen then we
will have to start the process all over again. If the
Department of Mines and Energy were to come to us
and ask us for information, technical data, on a spe-
cific site, then through the Provincial Land Use Com-
mittee we would provide that data to them.

MR.FILMON: Mr.Chairman, the governmentis going
to choose the site based on information provided for
them by Alcan?

MR. COWAN: | didn't mean to indicate that, if that
was the way it came across. What I'm saying is they
are negotiating sites right now to my understanding.
I'm not intimately involved in those negotiations but |
am informed that site selection is one of the criteria
which they are discussing. When they come to us as
the department responsible for the environment and
say, “Can you give us background information on a
particular site?” Then we are prepared to do that,
given theinformation which we have. That would then
lead into a more comprehensive environmental
assessment review process if, in fact, that site
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became more formalized.

MR. FILMON: Mr. Chairman, can the Minister indi-
cate with whom Alcan is negotiating site location at
the moment?

MR. COWAN: | assume that as part of the general
negotiations for possible location in the Province of
Manitoba, they would be negotiating with the
government.

MR. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the way that Alcan’s
studies and their presence in Manitoba have been
progressing was that they were determining what
would be the preferred site or sites on the basis of
economic factors. Having selected a preferred site
then it became essential, of course, to proceed with
detailed environmental and socioeconomic studies.
The Minister has now informed us that there are no
preconditions which means that the company could
therefore not say any longer that the Balmoral site
was their preferred site. Now given that they were all
economic factors that had entered into the selection
of that site, what new factors have now been put into
the equation that might cause Alcan to select adiffer-
ent site?

MR. COWAN: I'm not certain that there are any spe-
cific new factors other than the opening up of the
negotiations to general negotiations overall. | would
hesitateto say so categorically. | couldcheck and find
out with the Minister reponsible for the negotiations,
but | don't know if that would be the case. | do know
that they have requested of my department, the co-
operation in providing background data to them if
they feel they need it on other sites. That would be a
matter of negotiations between them, and we are pre-
pared to provide that data to them. But what criteria
they're using specifically, | think I'd have to talk to the
Minister responsible and find out for you.

MR.RANSON: CouldtheMinister give us any indica-
tion at this point, Mr. Chairman, of how he generally
assesses the aluminum smelting industry, as pro-
posed, as that industry would relate to the environ-
ment generally, given then that there are no particular
sites that it might be located upon? How does the
Minister view the industry generally?

MR.COWAN: Well, | think the state of the art to that
industry allows it to put in place some fairly effective
emission controls and, of course, that would be one of
the primary considerations, the effect of fluoride
emissions. We are reviewing the general information
which is available to government on the state of the
art. We are also reviewing information which Alcan
provides to us as to their analysis of the state of the
art. 1 think thereisa potential for pollution; that pollu-
tion would be primarily fluoride pollution. | also think
thatthereare a great number of improvements made
in the technology which wewantto review and to take
into consideration in an Environmental Assessment
Review; that would be part of the environmental
assessment review. We would take a look at what
Alcanisdoing in Quebec where they have one of their
later plants; we would also take a look at what's hap-
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pening elsewhere in the world in respect to the state
of the artand we would attempt to provide an analysis
which would allow us to determine what, in fact,
would be the potential for environmental harm as a
result of that plant. We may find that with their emis-
sion controls and with the plans which they have put
forward that potential is limited; we may find thatit's
not limited. | don't know at this point because we
haven't had the opportunity to review the specific
details. However, | do assure the member that I'm not
going in with any preconceived notions.

I've tried to do some reading on aluminum plants
and fluoride pollution; I've attempted to do some
research, but | have not been able to, on my own,
assuremyselfthatl understand thatentiresituationto
its fullest. Whatl amrelying upon is staff toprovidean
analysis once we can talk about the specificdetails of
alocationand an operation. Of course, the public will
beinvolvedinthatprocess because |l believe that they
have some concerns which they have expressed gen-
erally to me, to the previous Minister, through the
media, and that those concerns must be taken into
account and taken into consideration and their ques-
tions must be answered. So that will be part of the
process as well.

| also believe that many individuals in the general
public and in specialized fields have information
which would be of value to us as well, so | would hope
to see them come forward at that time.

MR. FILMON: Mr. Chairman, | wonder if the Minister
could give ussomeinformation. Given thestateof the
art of the present technology of aluminum smelting
and given the advice and the information which his
staff have obviously provided him with respect to
aluminum smelting, does he believe from an envir-
onmental pollution standpoint that an aluminum
smelter couldbelocated safely anywhereinthisprov-
ince at the moment?

MR.COWAN: | have nothing to indicate to me that it
cannot be safely located in a number of areas, no.

MR. FILMON: Given the fact that he’s indicated that
the precondition of the preferred location has been
removed from Alcan’s process, does he believe that
the Balmoral site, or the proposed Interlake site, is
one of the locations that may not be safe, from an
environmental standpoint, as a preferred location?

MR. COWAN: That has not been indicated to me
either. lhavenotgotteninformationto that effect, that
it would not be a safe site.

MR. FILMON: In that case, can the Minister indicate
why the Balmoral site has been put aside in the remo-
val of all preconditions for the evaluation of the alum-
inum smelter in Manitoba?

MR. COWAN: | can only assume that was as a result
ofthe agreement struck between the Minister respon-
sible and Alcan upon their first meeting where they
discussed these very matters. They did not give me a
specific reason for that site not being considered
as a precondition.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, | wonderifthe Minister
could tell us if he's had any discussions with the Min-
ister of Energy and Mines about the environmental
effects because during the election the Minister of
Energy and Mines, the Member for Transcona, had
stated publicly thatit would be undesirable tohave an
aluminum smelter located northwest of Winnipeg,
anywhere the winds might blow towards Winnipeg.
Having now learned that there are no preconditions,
which means that the Balmoral site is evidently not to
be considered as a preferred one anymore, | wonder if
the Minister could advise us whether or not there
actually has been adecision madebasedon an envir-
onmental assessment by the Minister of Energy and
Mines without the thoroughsort of review that should
take place under this department?

MR. COWAN: | have discussed the matter generally
with the Minister of Mines and Energy. | don't believe
that he has made that sort of a decision; he has not
informed me that he has made that sort of a decision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Tuxedo.

MR.FILMON: Mr. Chairman, | wonder if the Minister
could clarify just why the precondition of site was
removed from the entire process when it is evident
that the entire environmental assessmentand review
process, indeed the preparation of the Environmental
Impact Statementby Alcan, cannot proceed withouta
site having been established and that goes without
saying that the socioeconomicreview statement can-
not be prepared without the establishment of a site
location. Why would this all have beenremoved when
it obviously means that the entire process is setback,
andinfact, nopublic hearings could likely be held this
springormaybeevenlaterthisyearuntilthe prepara-
tion of that statement were complete, and that state-
ment cannot be completed without having the pre-
condition of a site location?

MR.COWAN: | could only suggest that the member
directed the question asto why that precondition was
not followed through to the Minister of Energy and
Mines, because | wasnotpartofthatdiscussion. What
he has told meis that there are no preconditions, and
what | have done in reponse to that is ask my depart-
ment to continue reviewing the material in the event
that site is a site that is determined to be an approp-
riate site, and at the same time to leave options avail-
able to us to do the type of socioeconomic and envir-
onmental impact assessment on other sites, if other
sites are determined to be more appropriate sites
through negotiations. | understand that is a matter of
negotiations between the Minister and Alcan at this
time. Once those negotiations are finalized to the
point where we can start toreviewa specific site, then
those public hearings will certainly be held and the
Member for Tuxedo is absolutely correct when he
says this, in fact, does slow that down. We cannot
proceed full-scale down one particular path if there
might be another site chosen at a later date, but once
we know whether or not there is going to be another
site chosen, then we can put back into force the type
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of environmental assessment review process which
we know is necessary. In the meanwhile, because we
have the information available to us, we are still
reviewing that information which was brought for-
ward inrespect to the Balmoral site in the event that it
may be asitethatisbroughtforward again as aresult
of the negotiations.

MR. SPEAKER: The Member for Thompson.

MR. STEVE ASHTON (Thompson): | didn't want to
interruptthelineofquestioningearlier;that's| delayed
my comments until now. But | think that the discus-
sion with regards to the Alcan Smelter is perhaps a
little too broad-ranging given the portfolio that is
being examined herein the Estimates. | think really if
oneis totake an overall look atthe situation, one has
toseethatintermsofthe Balmoralsite, while that may
be the preferred site economically as far as Alcan is
concerned, that does not necessarily mean that the
other questions of the environmental side or else, in
fact, any externalities or disexternalities asisthe eco-
nomic term, have also been taken into account.

Now, in talking here, when we're talking about
Department of Environment, | think the Minister can
really advise on only one particular segment of that
which is the environmental question, and he’s indi-
cated that he will be doing so. But to suggest that
somehow the whole process is being changed, that
this site hasbeen thrown outisrather premature. The
person, obviously, who would be better equipped to
answer that would be the Minister of Energy and
Mines whoisinvolved with the Cabinet subcommittee
which is discussing that matter with Alcan.

Now, | haveaspecificconcernabout this particular
issue, of course, in regards to the City of Thompson.
We've felt for quite some time, that the externalities
were not fully taken into account when it came to site
selection, that the key factor was really the economic
factor and that was largely Alcan's decision, and
along that line, we felt that the government should
havehadmoreinputand shouldhaveaskedthatother
external factors be taken into account. Now, there is
the positive externalities, such as the advantage to
areas which are economically depressed, and | think
Thompson unfortunately is one of the worst on that
side of things. There is also the negative externalities
and this would includethings like pollution, not justin
the general sense, but in the specific sense as it
relates, for example, to beef producers or milk pro-
ducers. Now this was raised today by a veterinarian
from New York, the fact thatin regards to otheralumi-
num smelters, there have been problems with beef
production, specifically cows have been stunted and
in terms of dairy production —itis in terms not of the
same process butthefluoridepollutionresulting from
an aluminum smelter. Fluoride pollution, which |
understand, was in similar amounts to the amount
which would comeaboutthroughthe proposed alum-
inum smelter here in Manitoba.

These are the negative side of it and obviously this
is where questions might be directed towards the
Minister of the Environment, because thatis his spe-
cific concern, but to raise the positive externalities
which havebeenraised by the Minister of Energy and
Minesis, | think, outside the prerogative of this partic-
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ular Minister and this particular department. Now, in
terms of the Thompson situation, as| said, wefelt for
quite a while that we have a number of positive exter-
nalities and that we would eliminate some of the nega-
tive externalities, and I've personally lobbied quite
strenously to have Thompson considered as a site.
Now, that is not to say that it is being discussed as a
preferred site or on a short selection list; | realize that
is unreasonable to expect at this particular time. The
decision was made to have a preferred site; that
means that much of the discussion is focused in on
that particular site, and | think thatis still going ahead.
A lot of the concernis about the Balmoral area. | don't
see any indication that is no longer the number one
site being considered, because this is certainly what
Alcan is discussing from their side. But that does not
mean that other sites should be precluded automati-
cally, because if the result of the process of review of
the externalities and disexternalities is that site is
seen as being inferior to other areas, or if it's seen in
terms of a cost-benefit analysis causing more prob-
lems in terms of environmental pollution then the
benefitit creates, thenit would be only logical to shift
attention to other sites. Otherwise the whole process
of environmental review and socioeconomic review is
pointless.

So what I'm really saying is, | think that the
members opposite are really asking the questions of
the wrong person, because the Minister of the Envi-
ronment is concerned with one particular aspect of
determining the negative aspects of an aluminum
smelter as requested in particular locations and |
think really to suggest that, from the answers that the
Ministeris giving and all these other things, isgoing a
bit too far.

MR.RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | thank the Member for
Thompson for that lecture and that intervention on
behalf of the Minister of the Environment. He should
perhaps be aware, of course, that| assume that their
Cabinet operates asmostCabinets do, thatthey have
discussions about major policy issues such as this
and | can'timagine that the Minister of Energy and
Mines would simply go ahead and make decisions of
this nature on his own. | can conceive that his Deputy
Minister might make announcements of this nature
on his own, but | don't think that the Minister would
want to make that kind of decision on his own. | must
say, Mr. Chairman, | find the arguement put forward
by the Member for Thompson somewhat confusing.
Now itmaybeme,thatl don'tunderstand the positive
externalities and the negative externalities and the
disexternalities and the terminology that’s being used
by the member, but | think what it really boils down to
isthat the member has to first of all look at the factors
that are involved here in terms of making an invest-
ment. This is not his money that's being invested. It's
Alcan’'s money that they're talking about investing
and ithappensthat Alcan is a company that doesn’t
even accept grants from DREE because they don't
want to have their economic decision-making dis-
torted by some temporary advantage of that nature.
The member may or not be aware that when Alcan
firstbegantolook at Manitoba as a possible place for
locating a site of a smelter, it was because they were
asked by us when we were in government to come
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here because we knew that we had an abundant
source of power and we had a seaport. Those two
factorsarecommon tomostaluminumsmeltersinthe
world and so, we first of all, began to examine the
possibility of locating in Churchill and as the com-
pany discovered thatthere wereindeed some benefits
to locating in Manitoba, there were also some disad-
vantages. | guess those would be the negative exter-
nalities which the Member for Thompson was refer-
ring to and indeed then they began to invest their
money and look atwhatthey would choose to be the
best site. They did it without interference from our
governmentand they chosewhattothemappeared to
be, economically, the most viable site.

Then there would have been a very detailed socio-
economic and environmental study undertaken to
determine indeed whether from those points of view
the smelter could be located in that location. But, Mr.
Chairman, what | have difficulty understanding now,
and the point that the Member for Thompson is mak-
ing, is that he seemed to be saying that without pre-
conditions, there might be other sites selected, but
yet there could be environmental factors involved in
the selection of the other sites. But somehow the
Minister of the Environment wasn't expected to
become involved in doing environmental studies on
the selection of the othersites. | have great difficulty
in understanding how that could be, that if you
remove the economic factor as being the primary
factor in determining the site, what other factors are
there? What sort of giveaways would your govern-
ment, Mr. Chairman, have to provide to the company
to make them selectanothersite? Ifitisn't economic
factors, what would it be? Is it the fact that the
Member for Thompson simply wants employment in
Thompson and he's prepared to accept lesser envir-
onmental standards in Thompson than they would
accept in Balmoral? Mr. Chairman, | would like the
Minister to tell us then, what other factors could
determine a possible siteif they're noteconomic fac-
tors and they're not environmental and socioeco-
nomic factors?

MR. COWAN: | believe that those would be factors
that would all be taken into consideration. | do want to
clarify the record to make certain that it is clear. The
Minister responsible for the negotiations has asked
my department, through me and through the Provin-
cial Land Use Committee, for their assurance of assis-
tance if they want to look at environmental aspects of
different sites, and | have given them that assurance
that we will provide him with as much detail as we can.
Thatis not a full-scale environmental impact assess-
ment. That can only take place once they have
focused more on a site for which we can begin the
typeof detailed investigations whicharenecessary to
do a full-scale environmental impact assessment, but
we have assured him and will do our best to provide
them with the technical dataand detail which may aid
them in that decision. So we are playing arole in that
way.|'m not involved in the negotiations on a day-to-
day basis, nor am | involved in those negotiations in
general, but | will provide that detailed information as
it is necessary through the Provincial Land Use
Committee.

As you are aware, there's also socioeconomic
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impacts which have to be considered and I'm certain
they would be provided through the Provincial Land
Use Committee as well. So we are involved from that
perspective. | don'tknow asto the other criteria which
are being discussed right now, but the criteria which
the Member for Turtle Mountain outlined are certainly
criteria which | can see as being ones which can be
discussed as a part of those negotiations. Whether or
nottheyare ornot, I'm not certain.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Leader of the
Opposition.

MR.STERLINGLYON (Charleswood): Mr. Chairman,
a question to the Minister and perhaps to the First
Minister who is within sound of my voice. Is it the
desire of the New Democratic Party Government of
Manitoba to have an Alcan smelter in this province?

MR. COWAN: | would suggest that we are entered
into negotiations with Alcan at this moment because
we think thatthereis a potential there and that thereis
potential value to the province as a result of the loca-
tion of such a facility here and for that reason, we are
actively negotiating with them to determine if, in fact,
that can be brought about.

MR.LYON: Well, it may be unfair, Mr. Chairman, to
put the question to the Minister of the Environment,
but as | say the First Minister is within hearing of my
voice. Does his government wish to have an alumi-
num smelter in Manitoba?

MR. COWAN: Yes, | think we would want to have an
aluminum smelter in Manitoba, given that terms and
conditions were satisfactory, and that's something
that has to be determined through negotiations, but
certainly we'd wish to do so. Ifwedidn't wishtodoso,
we wouldn't be involved in the negotiations; we
wouldn't be undergoing that process. | think that
entire process is indicative of our desire to see that
happen under the proper terms and conditions.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, | can assure the Minister
that he wouldn't be involved or his government
wouldn’t be involved in such negotiations if the pre-
vious government hadn't first sought them out and
developed them to the point where they are at the
present time and where they are now being retarded
by his government. | ask the question again, though,
and the First Minister is within the sound of my voice
and is now listening. Does his government wish to
have an aluminum smelter or smelters in the Province
of Manitoba?

MR. COWAN: Given the proper terms and condi-
tions, certainly, we would want to have an aluminum
smelter or smelters within the Province of Manitoba. |
agree with the Leader of the Opposition that we are
involved in negotiations with Alcan as a result of his
government having undertaken those negotiations
previously and what we are now attemptingtodoisto
negotiate in agreement with them that would provide
an aluminum smelter in the Province of Manitoba
under what we consider to be the proper terms

and conditions.
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MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, could we then have an
elucidation from the Minister as to what he and his
socialist governmentwouldconsidertobetheproper
terms and conditions?

MR. COWAN: Well, from my departmental stand-
point, and | think it's the same thing that the previous
government wanted to see, and the people of this
province wanted to see, we would prefer to see an
aluminum smelter that, in fact, employs the latest
stateof the arttechnology thatallows emissions to be
keptto anacceptable level and allows the operation of
that plant without a negative impact on the environ-
ment, and thatis why we are making ourselves avail-
able at this point to provide detailed information on
different sitelocationsandthatiswhywehavegivena
very strong commitment to environmental impact
assessment review, once a specific site has been
determined. So, from the departmental standpoint
that is what we would like to see as terms and condi-
tions in respect to the location of an aluminum smelt-
er by any company or companies in the Province of
Manitoba. It is much the same as we would like to see
in respect to the location of other industries in the
Province of Manitoba as well.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, given the fact that no
aluminum smelterhadever, or noaluminum company
had ever negotiated with any previous government of
Manitoba with respect to establishment of acompany
off tide-water, prior to 1979-1980 or thereabouts, can
the Minister of the Environment tell us what is particu-
larly wrong with the site that has been apparently
selected by Alcan for the choice site for their alumi-
num smelter, if, indeed, they are to build one in Mani-
toba under present conditions, what is wrong with
thatsiteand why isthe site selection, whichwasmade
heretofore by the Aluminum Company of Canadaon
their own, why is that now being made a subject of
discussion by him or his department?

MR.COWAN: | can'ttellthe Leader of the Opposition
anything specific is wrong with that particular site. |
don't know that anything specific is wrong with that
particular site. | do know that, as aresult of an agree-
mentbetween Alcan and the government, through the
Minister responsible for the negotiations, it was
determined that there would be no pre-conditions;
that was one of the pre-conditions and therefore |
have made my department available to the depart-
ment doing the negotiations to iook at other sites if
they ask me to do that. They have not asked me todo
that at this stage; consequently we are continuing to
review the information which was brought forward to
us on the Balmoral site. To say that there is a specific
thing wrong with that site, | know of none at the
present time. However, we are still only involved part
way through the environmental assessment.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, this being an industrial
development of fundamental importance to the future
of Manitoba, and the Minister being a Minister who is
intimately involved, one would expect, inthe delibera-
tions by the Cabinet, one would expect, not just by
one Minister in this government, and something that
is asimportant to the future of the people of Manitoba,
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could the Minister of the Environment tell us whether
or not the socioeconomic and the environmental stu-
dies that were put under way by the previous govern-
ment and which were to have resulted in public hear-
ings, unless I'm mistaken, some time in the area of
April of 1982, just a matter of a few weeks away, why
they arenot proceeding apaceat a time when Mani-
toba could use this kind of commitment to a major,
industrial development in this province of a size and
of a dimension that this province has not seen for
many generations?

MR. COWAN: They are proceeding with the negotia-
tions and once we have a site which we believe is firm
enoughthatwe can conduct our evaluationsonthem,
thattypeofsocioeconomic and environmental impact
assessment with the public hearings will be done, but
if youdon’t have a specificsiteto direct yourenergies
to atthe present time, thenit's difficult to evaluate that
site.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, could the Minister tell us,
very simply, is he or his government saying that they
don't like the site at Balmoral for the proposed site
selected by the Alcan Comapny for a $600 million or
$700 million smelter in Manitoba, which when erected
would become the biggest power user in Manitoba,
creating thousands of jobs for the people of Manit-
oba? Could the Honourable Minister tell us whether
heor his government have some hang-ups about that
site.

MR. COWAN: Notto my knowlege, Mr. Chairperson.

MR.LYON: If the Minister has no hang-ups about it,
has his government got hang-ups about it?

MR. COWAN: Not to my knowledge.

MR.LYON: Why aren't we getting on with the devel-
opment of thatproject for the economic benefit of the
people of Manitoba for generations to come?

MR.COWAN: Itis my understanding that the negoti-
ations, which are ongoing, are taking in the consider-
ation that site as well as many other sites and that is
the process that has been mutually decided upon by
Alcan and by the present government, and that the
fact thatthey suggested thatthere would be no pre-
conditions should not reflect on that site specifically.
It is now just a matter of the negotiations. There may
well, in fact, be that site selection; there may not. If
there is that site selection, thenwewill have the type
of environmental and socioeconomic impact assess-
ments done which we know are necessary to take into
consideration those terms and conditions.

MR. LYON: Then, Mr. Chairman, | come back to my
original question. Does the Minister and his govern-
ment and the First Minister, who is within sound of my
voice, do they really want an aluminum smelter in the
Province of Manitoba or are they just dilly dallying
around so they canhavesome of their favorite Crown
corporation types of nonsense pieces primed to put
into place? After we have worked for yearsand years
to get something viable and economically possible for
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the people of Manitoba, are they going to blow it?

MR.COWAN: | would hopenot,andthat'swhy weare
involved in the negotiations at this time for the possi-
ble location of a site in the Province of Manitoba.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, has the Minister of the
Environment read the recent Annual Report of Alcan
Aluminum for 19817

MR.COWAN: | havereceivedthereportandthanked
theauthor of the letter forwardingthereportto mefor
the report and told him that as soon as | have the
opportunity, | intend to peruse it in detail. | have not
had the opportunity to peruse it in detail at this time,
no.

MR. LYON: Is the Minister aware that Alcan Alumi-
num is a multinational corporation?

MR. COWAN: I'm aware that Alcan Aluminum is a
multinational corporation, certainly.

MR. LYON: Does the Minister still have, in govern-
ment, the same rather silly and nonsensical attitudes
towards multinational corporations that he had when
he was in Opposition?

MR. COWAN: | have the same attitudes toward mul-
tinational corporations that | had before. | don't think
they're silly or nonsensical. | think that given proper
conditions, proper terms and proper co-operation,
that there is a role for the multinationals. | think
there's aroleforsmall business. | think thatthereis a
role for Crown corporations. | think there is arole for a
mixed economy.

MR.LYON: Well, | can only say, Mr. Chairman, how
delighted wein the Opposition — | am sure the people
of Manitoba know that the Minister of the Environe-
ment has come to some new revelation personally
about the desirability of having companies develop-
ing in Manitoba whether they are local, national or
multinational — he not having been too well informed
on that topic when he sat on this side of the House.

Mr. Chairman, perhaps | can enlighten the honour-
able member then as to some of the comments that
were made in the report of the Alcan Aluminum
Limited in their annual report to their shareholders
which reached us about 24 hours ago.

| refer to page 5 of that report which is a public
report available to all shareholders and | daresay that
all people that can read — and that includes my hon-
ourable friend opposite — and it says about two-
thirds of the way down on the page in the President’s
message “In Manitoba Alcan is conducting a feasibil-
itystudythatcouldleadtoaninvestmentina 200,000
ton a year aluminum smelter and related hydro-
electric generating facilities. A decision on whether to
proceed with the smelter will be influenced by many
factors including Alcan's financial performance, the
world outlook for the aluminum industry and satisfac-
tory negotiations with the Manitoba Government.”

Would my honourable friend care to enlighten the
Committee and tell us whether the negotiations that
his colleague and he and his colleagues and Cabinet
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are conducting are, as Alcan would say, satisfactory
negotiations to ensure that this kind of once in a
lifetime development can occur in Manitoba without
being hide bound by any of their previousill-founded
and ill-considered shibboleths.

MR. COWAN: | would hope that Alcan would con-
sider him satisfactory. | think as long as we're talking
and we're talking about the proper terms and condi-
tions for the location of a smelter in the Province of
Manitobathat they would be satisactory to that stage.
| hope that's what's happening at the present time.

MR. LYON: Is the Minister aware and are his col-
leagues aware and is the First Minister who is within
hearing of my voice aware that Alcan has the option,
given the world situation with respect to aluminum
today, tolocate asmelterofthissizeof200,000tonnes
anywhere in the world practically?

MR. COWAN: We're aware that they have many
options available to them and that's why we are
attempting to negotiate with them in a satisfactory
way; to convince them of the many benefits of locat-
ing in the Province of Manitoba.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, given the fact that they
were already convinced of thatbeforeNovember 30th
of 1981, will my honourable friend tell us and will the
First Minister perhaps tell us — if he's interested in
this topic — what he and his governmenthavedoneto
further convince Alcan that they should locate that
smelter in the Province of Manitobato give usthe kind
of economic benefit that this province so sorely
needs, particularly under the kind of funny govern-
ment we now have.

MR.COWAN: Wehavetriedto convincethem that we
are prepared to negotiate with them in a serious way.

MR.LYON: Mr. Chairman, could the Minister advises
ustowhathe considersto be serious would be consi-
dered serious by the people of Manitoba?

MR.COWAN: Well, what we are asking of them is to
sit down and discuss with us the best way by which
the province can benefit by their participation in our
economy and the best way that they can benefit by
locating in this province. | think that the people ofthe
province, in fact, would recognize those asbeing val-
uable criteria for discussions and negotiations. That's
what we're involved in at this time.

MR.LYON: Would the honourable, the Minister care
to give us his own opinion as to what the prospects
would be at this time; four or five months into the New
Democratic Party Government regime, of an alumi-
num smelter from whatever company beinglocatedin
the Province of Manitoba?

MR.COWAN: | would hope they would be very good.
I think that we have in fact some benefits which would
be of value to an aluminum smelter; any aluminum
smelter locating in this province. | think that we're
prepared to sit down and discuss in a realistic way
those benefits and so | would hope that they would
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be very good.

MR. LYON: Would the Honourable Minister, Mr.
Chairman, consider it appropriate for his government
to be saying to others who want a description of pub-
lic affairs in this province that they are negotiating
seriously with the Alcan people and they wish Alcan
to come to Manitoba, notwithstanding the precondi-
tion —thefoolish precondition — that his Leader and
his party put on the location of that plant in Manitoba
mainly, that they would not permit Alcan to invest
$500 million to $700 million in a new hydro plant in
Manitoba. Would the Honourable Minister say thatis
still a realistic possibility given the absolutely silly
precondition that his party in Opposition applied to
that negotiation and is apparently continuing now
thatit'sin government and hasrealresponsibility and
is responsible for something more than just rhetoric
and socialist jargon.

MR. COWAN: The factthat we are still negotiating |
think is indicative that there in fact is progress being
made. The fact that we're negotiating with any alumi-
num smelter operation or aluminum company which
would like to locate here, | think is further indication
that we are prepared to sitdown and seriously discuss
thelocation of an aluminum smelter in the Province of
Manitoba.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, given the fact that the
location was already set and that the letters of intent
between the former government and Alcan were
already established, can the honourable member
advise the House and the people of Manitoba why
there has been no progress with respect to the loca-
tion of one of the largestindustrial developments that
this province could ever hope to see since his gov-
ernment came to office on the 30th of November,
1981?

MR. COWAN: Well, | believe that when negotiations
ongoing atthat time — as a matter of factl know there
were negotiations ongoing at that time — | know there
are negotiations ongoing at this time. | know the par-
ties aresstill talking and they're talking in areasonable
way. | know we have expanded those negotiationsto
talk to other aluminum manufacturers, so | would say
yes that in fact progress has been made.

MR.LYON: Well, Mr. Chairman, tocorrecttherecord,
my honourable friend has no negotiations nor has his
government, any negotiations underwaythatthey've
reported to this House, that were not previously
started by the previous government. | daresay by way
of editorial comment that they wouldn't have any
under discussion because probably no aluminum
company in the world would be willing to deal with a
goverment of this sort if they had not already been
started. But, given the fact, Mr. Chairman, that the
Honourable Minister makes a pretense as to his gov-
ernment being involved in serious negotiations with
Alcan, would the Minister confirm that in the docu-
ments that were prepared for his government to sell
the paper, to sell the indebtedness of the people of
Manitoba to investors in the United States that they
were, in fact, touting — touting is the word that | use
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something like a racetrack promotor would use, tout-
ing the fact that they, Mr. Chairman, were engaged in
serious negotiations with Alcan fortheestablishment
ofan aluminum smelter whenthey,in opposition, had
said that they would not agree to the primary pre-
condition, which was that Alcan be allowed to invest
in the hydro-electric plant that wouid be necessary to
supply the power for that plant. Can my honourable
friend tell me how he places that submission by his
government whenthey'reout trying toborrowmoney
against the ideological position that his government
takes whenthey'retalking among themselves or with
their socialists or Marxistfriends or when they're talk-
ing in this House?

MR. COWAN: Well, | do apologize to the Leader of
the Opposition if | said negotiations were ongoing
with other aluminum companies which | did. And |
perhaps would have been better advised to say that
discussions wereongoing. They may be negotiations,
I'm not certain, but I'm certain there are discussions
ongoing. And, | think there are negotiationsongoing
with Alcan and perhaps discussions with others
would be the best way to phrase that. And because
they are ongoing if when we go to borrow money or
go to sell the attributes of this province we say that
those negotiations are ongoing | think that we are
being quite forthright in explaining to people that we
are involved in negotiations to that extent.

MR. LYON: Well, Mr. Chairman, in the prospectus
which the Government of Manitoba issued on the 8th
of March, 1982, at which time | presume, the Minister
was amember of the government only being a matter
of two or three weeks ago on page 7 of that prospec-
tus which was issued under the authority of the Minis-
ter of Finance whom, | presume, is still a colleague of
the Minister of the Environment, it says at the bottom
of that page and | quote: “Under a Letter of Intent
between the Aluminum Company of Canada Ltd,
Alcan andthe province, Alcan has commenced a feas-
ibility study for the construction of a $500 million
primary aluminum production processing plantinthe
province. Alcanhasannounced the selectionofa site
approximately 25 miles northwest of Winnipeg and is
conducting environmental and socioeconomic stu-
dies (see gross investment).”

Now — and given the fact that the prospectus later
ongoesontosaythatthesematterssuch asthe Alcan
plant, the Potash plant, the Western Inter-Tie, are
under review by this new and benighted government.
Did the Honourable Minister not say when he and his
government, particularly his non-perspicacious Min-
ister were out peddling $200 million worth of the
indebtedness of the people of Manitoba that they
weren't touting Alcan as being something that was
going to come to the Province of Manitoba when, at
the same time, their Minister, their Premier — if he
may be called that — and other members of this so-
called government, were putting up preconditions
which would prohibit Alcan from settling and from
establishing a plant in the Province of Manitoba. And
one might ask the Minister of Consumer and Corpo-
rate Affairs, who is sitting in the House tonight,
whether or not he might consider that, given the elec-
toral declamations of that party as being false adver-
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tising to the people who bought our indebtedness.

MR. COWAN: Well, | understand that a Letter of
Intent is in effect; | understand that negotiations are
ongoing; | understand that we are reviewing environ-
mental and socioeconomic impacts, so | would sug-
gest that statement is basically a correct statement.

MR.FILMON: Mr. Chairman, | wonder if the Minister
couldindicate whetherornotit's possible to preparea
valid environmental assessment and review or a valid
socioeconomic assessment and review for a pro-
posed aluminum smelter in this province without hav-
ing a specific site on which to base that review.

MR. COWAN: Certainly not a complete review, one
can begin toreview different aspects of different sites
and one can begin to review different effects of loca-
tions in different sites but to prepare a full environ-
mental impact assessment review and to complete it
without being able to define a specific site would be
impossible, certainly.

MR.FILMON: The Minister is indeed confirming that
it is not possible to proceed with the environmental
assessment and review and the socioeconomic
assessmentand review thatwas started because they
have removed the precondition of having a specific
site on which to base their studies.

MR. COWAN: We are still reviewing the material
which was presented to us as a part of that site in the
eventthat that site may, in fact,be a final location. If it
isnot a final location then we will review other sites as
well.

MR. FILMON: Then nothing is valid, or very little,
other than the technological process that nothing
elseisvalidinthereviewsthathavebeendone orthat
have been prepared at this point in time without hav-
ing a specific site in mind.

MR.COWAN: Onlyifthereisasitein mind would that
become valid, if that site does in fact turn out to be the
negotiatedsite then that would all be valid, of course.

MR. FILMON: Mr. Chairman, in view of the fact that
whatever has been done in environmental assess-
ment and review and socioeconomic assessmentand
review to this point in time is not valid because the
specific site has been removed as a precondition, |
wonder if the Minister could comment on theremarks
that were made by the Member for Thompson when
he said that the site was selected by Alcan specifically
on economic considerations and that other matters
had precedence and then later on in his remarks he
said, but it may well be that there are other economic
considerations which would make Thompson a pre-
ferred site. Now, how could that be if in the initial
going Alcan made their site selection presumably on
economic terms and now it's being said that there
may well be other economic reasons which would
make Thompson a preferred site. Is that the reason
why the precondition has been removed by
this government?
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MR. COWAN: | believe the preconditions in all the
preconditions wereremoved to allow negotiations to
continue and to attempt to reach an agreement.

MR. FILMON: I'm not quite sure as to what sort of
agreement the Minister is hoping or considering the
government will reach. At the present time it appears
thatasthough everythingis at a standstill with respect
to doing any valid socioeconomic or environmental
assessment and review studies on this particular pro-
ject because none of them would be valid without
having a specific site in mind. And it appears to me,
the Minister can correct me if I'm wrong, that nothing
can proceed without having these studies prepared,
considered by Alcan and considered by the govern-
ment and in a total open review process, nothing
could be valid without having a specific site in mind.
Soitappearstomeasthoughthis wholeprojectis on
the shelf at the moment and will remain on the shelf
until some further action is taken by either Cabinet or
the Minister of Energy and Mines or whoever that
government decides is going to proceed with respect
to this project.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

MR.COWAN: Well, | can speak from the perspective
of my own department and we arereviewing the mate-
rial which was provided to us and we are learning by
that review. Some of that material is very general in
nature and, in fact, would apply to mostsites. Some of
the material is very site-specific and that may beinval-
idatedif another siteis chosen, butit would be valid if
that site was chosen as a result of those negotiations.
So we are continuing to review the material. We are
benefiting by that review and we will, when we deter-
mine which specific site to place a full environmental
impact assessment on and a full socioeconomic
impact assessment on, do so at that time.

MR.LYON: Mr.Chairman, perhaps|couldreadtothe
Minister of the Environment a portion of the report,
another portion of the report, of the Alcan Aluminum
Limited Annual Report of 1981, which appears atthe
bottom of page 18 thereof, so that he might comment
upon this statement by the company that we were
previously negotiating with in good faith to locate a
major economic industrial development in the Prov-
ince of Manitoba.

Here's what they say, and | quote: “During the year
Aluminum Company of Canada Limited and the Gov-
ernment of Manitoba signed a Letter of Intent to con-
ductafeasibility study for an aluminum smelter in that
province. The study is continuing and could lead to
the company investing in a200,000 tonne a year alum-
inum smelter and related hydro-electric generating
facilities if and when market conditions warrant. As
part of this study, the company announced in Sep-
tember it had chosen a 50-square kilometre area
about 40 kilometres north of Winnipeg as the pre-
ferred location for the smelter.”

Is the Minister now trying to tell the committee
tonight that preferred location for the smelter, one of
the largestindustrial developments ever in the history
of this province, is now being putinto question by this
temporary government?
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MR.COWAN: No,what|'msuggestingand have tried
to suggest throughout is that is a matter of negotia-
tions, amatter of negotiations between Alcan and the
government and it's one of many parts of the package
which is being negotiated at the present time.

MR. LYON: Mr. Chairman, given the fact that there
were put underway as has previously been alluded to
tonight, fundamental socioeconomic and environ-
mental studies withrespect to thatlocationin orderto
determine the benefits or the disadvantages, positive
andnegativeto the people of Manitoba of the location
of such a smelter in such alocation, can the Minister
honestly standbefore this Committee tonight and say
that his government in one fell swoop has removed
the location, the preferred sitethatis referredto in the
Alcan Report, the preferred site in the Interlake of
Manitoba as being a viable site for the location of one
of the biggest industrial development projects that
this province has ever seen, which would create the
biggest single customer that Manitoba Hydro has
ever had in its history, can he honestly say that his
government since November 30th has actually put
into jeopardy that kind of a development for the peo-
ple of Manitoba based on some whim or based on
some funny ideogical and/or ecological ideas that
they may have that would not be apparent to the kind
of fundamental study that was put into place before
they came into office?

MR. COWAN: No, | can say we are continuing in
negotiations andthatisone aspect of the negotiations.

MR. LYON: Well, Mr. Chairman, given the fact that
prior to November 30, 1981, the company was able to
say thatit had selected a site in Manitoba and that the
Government of Manitoba then said, subject to socio-
economic and environmental studies, we will look at
that site, can the Minister now say that all sites in
Manitoba or all sites indeed in the world are open to
thiscompany because of course thiscompanydoesn't
have to locate in Manitoba? It never located here
beforeand it doesn't have tolocate here now and can
my honourable friend tell me that he and his First
Minister who seems to be blissfully unconcerned
about this development in the Interlake and his con-
stituency | think is part of the Interlake of Manitoba,
although he may be unaware of it. Is this Minister
prepared to let this slip by or to blow it, to blow it as
we're afraid they are doing because of some funny
ideas that they may have with respect to ideological
idiosyncrasies that they have with respectto allowing
people to buy portions of Manitoba Hydro plants for
the purposes of supplying power for a 35 year term or
whatever the term may be to one of the largestindus-
trial developments that has ever cometo this province?

MR. COWAN: No, | think what we are saying is we
hope that development will come to the Province of
Manitoba under the proper terms and conditions. We
are negotiating those terms and conditions and we
will continue to negotiate in good faith until we have
reached a satisfactory conclusion to those negotia-
tions or otherwise and that is the case with all negotia-
tions, but we are in fact continuing and we are
attempting to provide the type of negotiations which
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willallow forthe location of that or another smelterin
the Province of Manitoba.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, if | understand cor-
rectly what the Minister has said, he said thatthere are
no preconditions any longer and that any site is a
possibility in Manitoba, given some negotiations that
aretakingplace between a colleague of his and Alcan
and | have to assume that economic factors are not
the main consideration because economic factors
indicated that Balmoral was the chosen site. Evi-
dently, socioeconomic and environmental factors are
not the main consideration because the studies aren’t
proceeding. The Minister is waiting to hear from his
colleague.

Mr. Chairman, can the Minister advise the commit-
tee whether or not the Letter of Intent, signed with
Alcan, is still in effect?

MR. COWAN: | believe that Letter of Intent is still in
effect, but | would have to check with the Minister
responsible to confirm that and | can do so and bring
that information back to the Member for Turtle
Mountain.

MR. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, I'm afraid that the
members don’t realize the significance of what we
have been told here tonight and I'm amazed that the
First Minister would sit in this House silently and not
choose to enter into the debate and either clear up
some misunderstandings or tell the people of Mani-
toba where he stands. | realize that the Minister of
Environment has not got the sole responsibility for
negotiations with Alcan, but socioeconomic factors
and environmental factors are extremely important
and they fall in the area of his responsibility and that
has led to the discussion of the overall question. Now,
the Minister of the Environment tells me he thinks that
the Letter of Intent is still in place.

Mr. Chairman, can the Minister advise the Commit-
tee whether or not he has read the Letter of Intent?

MR.COWAN: No, | personally have not read the Let-
ter of Intent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for EImwood.

MR. RUSSELL DOERN (Elmwood): Mr. Chairman,
onapointoforder,itstrikes methata greatportion of
the debate that we are hearing, in fact, should be
directed to Energy and Mines and I'm simply saying to
the two spokesmen on the other side, wouldn’t their
questions better be put to the Minister of Energy?
There seems to be quite a mix of questions and the
environmental concerns are not being discussed.

MR. RANSOM: Indeed, | would like to put questions
to the First Minister and | would like to put questions
tothe Minister of Energy and Mines and | would like to
put questions to the Minister of Finance on this sub-
ject, because, Mr. Chairman, something is going on
here that | don’t think the government is aware of; |
know the people of Manitoba are not aware of. | think
it’'stime that the backbenchers over there decided to
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get into the action and see what'’s really going on,
because | think the members are aboutto commit a
terrible blunder in terms of the economic future of this
province.

Furthermore, Mr. Chairman, if, in fact, what we have
been told here tonight is true, then there are some
very contradictory and misleading statements that
are afoot that are public information right now. |
appreciate, Mr. Chairman, that there is no point in
pressing the Minister of Environment any further on
this question, because he hasn’'t read the letter of
intent.

Mr. Chairman, there are 13 people in the Executive
Council of this province dealing with a potential
investment of hundreds of millions of dollars,
hundreds of jobs, thousands of jobs in the construc-
tion phase. There was aletter of intent signed and one
of those 13 members tells ushe hasn’'tevenread it. He
doesn’t know what's in the letter of intent; he doesn’t
know whether that letter of intent commits the gov-
ernment to allow Alcan to own a portion of a generat-
ing station or not, and perhaps he willbegin to see the
fundamental nature of the question of whether or not
the letter of intent is still in place. Because if it is, Mr.
Chairman, that has very seriousimplications for what
the government is doing, and if it isn't, it has very
serious implications for what the government has
been telling the people of Manitoba, and indeed, the
investors whom this province has approached to buy
the bonds of this province to fund it, and the credit
rating of this province and the credibility of this prov-
ince are at stake in this question, Mr. Chairman, and
we will, in the absence of the First Minister, who has
refused to enter into a debate of this nature, and |
realize it's not his department, Mr. Chairman, there
are many precedents for the First Minister to come to
the support of one of his Ministers who is faced with
questions of broader import thanthose that deal with
his department alone. Surely the Minister of Environ-
ment deserves more support than the Member for
Thompson, and | don't say that in any way to belittle
the Member for Thompson, Mr. Chairman, at all, but
this is a question which deserves the attention of the
First Minister.

MR.COWAN: It is my understanding that the Letter
of Intent is in effect. | can confirm that| have not read
the Letter of Intent. | have tried to make my depart-
ment available to the Minister responsible for the
negotiations to provide them with technical detail if
and when they need that technical detail.

MR.LYON: Mr.Chairman,toreiterate a point that has
already been made tonight by me and by the Member
for Souris and by the Member for Tuxedo, | find it
somewhat alarming and I'm sure the people of Mani-
toba will find itsomewhat alarming that the Ministeris
saying to us tonight that a letter of intent that was
entered into by the predecessor government with
respect to the establishment of this major industrial
developmentin the Province of Manitoba, first of all is
something that he has not read and secondly, is
somethingthatmaywell be, on the basisofhis under-
standing of affairs as affairs are apparently run nowin
the Province of Manitoba, not a matter of great con-
cern for the Government of Manitoba, even though it
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is mentioned by the Alcan aluminum people who
wrote the report, | presume, some time in February of
this year, on the faith and on the understanding that
they were negotiating in good faith, with this alleged
government across the way.

Now, Mr. Chairman, that is a matter of serious
import to the people of Manitoba because this is
something that goes beyond a mere partisan advan-
tage that can be taken of on one night in the Legisla-
ture as we debate matters in the Committee, and so
on. This is something that will have a positive eco-
nomic effect upon generations of Manitobans yet to
be born, and if my honourable friend is standing
before the Committee tonight and trying to suggest
that because of the rather narrow, partisan, idiosyn-
crasies of his party, that he and his party and his
Minister who has scuttled out of here like a turtle
under light, is putting in jeopardy one of the major
developments that this province has been able to
negotiate to come to this province, then | say that this
is indeed a serious moment for the people of Mani-
tobaand aserious momentforthisgovernment,anda
serious momentin the terms of the trusteeship which
was conferred, albeit temporarily, upon these people
on the 30th of November, 1981. | think we deserve it,
coming tonight, under the Environmental Minister’'s
Estimates, for him to say, because environment is
certainly one of the factors to be considered in this
matter, whether or not the people of Manitoba can
realistically expect that this major aluminum smelter
development in the Interlake is going to take place or
whetherornotheandhis colleagues are, infact,aswe
fearfully think, blowing the opportunity for reasons
thatarereally notgermane to the publicinterest of the
people of Manitoba but have more to do, rather, with
someofthe odd, as I've said before, idiosyncrasies of
the rather odd ideology that they pursue.

Well, Mr. Chairman, this is a serious moment then
for the people of Manitoba. It's a serious moment on
which we would not expect the Premier of this prov-
ince to walk out of the Chamber as he did, to engage
in activities, God only know what they could be that
wouldbe moreimportantthan this kind of discussion,
with respect to the people of the Interlake whom he
presumes torepresent as the Member for the Consti-
tuency of Selkirk, to tell the people of Manitoba
whether this development is indeed in the kind of
jeopardy that we fear it is, given the kind of mishan-
dling, incompetence and ideological nonsense that
has been going on across the way in terms of the
negotiations with respect to Alcan.

| say to you, Mr. Chairman, and to the people of
Manitoba, thatthe circumstances whichleadup to the
Aluminum Company of Canada being interested in
developing in Manitoba, as my colleague from Souris
has already said, started with the idea that they heret-
ofore had always had smelting facilities at seaboard,
and we started our negotiations for the benefit of the
Member for Thompson, who may not be aware that
seaboard in Manitoba exists at Churchill; that we
started the negotiations with respect to an aluminum
smelterlocationin Manitoba having regard tothe fact
that Manitoba of all of the inland provinces did have
seaboard exposure at the Port of Churchill. That's
where we started and then the economics, the state of
the art as my honourable friend is wont to say, and all
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of the other discussions that took place and all of the
other negotiations that took place over the months
andyearsindicated tousthatif Manitobawastohave
with this particular company the size of a smelter,
200,000 tonnes a year, that smelter from the stand-
point of their economic viability had to be located
nearer to their markets in North America which would
unfortunately preclude the smelterfrombeing located
where we wished it to be located in Northern Mani-
toba. First of all, starting at Churchill; secondly, at
Thompson, would preclude that because of the eco-
nomics of the situation as they explained them to us
and indeed as they explained them to all members of
the Legislature only about alittle more than ayear ago
now when a meeting of an informal meeting of the
Legislature was called wherein Alcan explained what
its proposal was for the people of Manitoba.

Now, Mr. Chairman, what concerns us on this side
of the House and | suggest what concerns the vast
majority of the people of Manitobais that my honour-
able friends opposite, because of their hang-ups of
one sort or another, inspired by God knows what, are
blowing this opportunity that was well entrenched
andwellin place. We want to hear from this Minister of
the Environment, whom | presume is stilla member of
the Cabinet, what he and his colleagues are doing in a
positive way to ensure that the socioeconomic stu-
dies are proceeding; that the environmental studies
that were put into place long before his incompetent
hand was put in charge of this department are pro-
ceeding; and that we can be assured that nothing is
being done in a negative way to deny to the people of
Manitoba of this generation and of generations yet to
come, this kind of a major job-creating opportunity
for generations of Manitobans yet unborn. What can
the Minister say tonight in terms of that kind of chal-
lenge which is the challenge that faced him when he
came into office on the 30th of November? Has he
doneanything to forward that opportunity or have all
ofhis activitiesalongwith those nefarious activities of
his colleagues been to hold this back from the people
of Manitoba and to allow Alcan and other aluminum
companiestomovetheirpotential smelteractivitiesto
other parts of this country orindeed to other parts of
the world because they don't have to deal with Mani-
toba, whether or notithas a common-sense govern-
ment or whether it has the kind of an unfortunate
government we have now.

MR.COWAN: Well, we have continued in the negoti-
ations and we are continuing in negotiations and
hopefully, as | indicated previously, that those nego-
tiations will result in terms and conditions which are
acceptable to both parties doing the negotiations and
the ultimate location of an aluminum smeltering
refinery in the province.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Thompson.

MR. ASHTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, | must say
that tonight’'s discussion has been very interesting. It
has shown me a few things which | perhaps sus-
pected. First of all, that is that the members opposite
know nothing about economics. It's not just jargon,
Mr. Chairman, that | was mentioning or as the Leader
of the Opposition was suggesting, Marxist terminol-
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ogy, the terms in regards to externalities, disexternali-
ties, have been a common feature of microeconomic
theory, economic theory for many years. So, if any-
body is talking in ideological terms, it is the members
opposite.

Now | will refrain from using technical terms and |
will talk in terms the members opposite might under-
stand, such as good and bad. —(Interjection)— That's
right. | think that the reaction to my discussion in
terms of economics was an indication of what the
Leaderofthe Opposition has said many atime;thatis,
he's not an economist and he knows nothing about it
and | think therecord of thelast four yearsshows that.
But | do not intend to discuss that.

I'mreally interested in another thing which I learned
tonight, and thatis that the members opposite are full
of contradictions. The Member for Turtle Mountain
mentioned the factthatthe site selection process was
and | quote “undertaken without interference by the
Provincial Government.” The Leader of the Opposi-
tion, however, tried to paint a picture of the former
governmentstartingat Churchill and working its way
back and then ending up in Balmoral. The fact that
Thompson or Churchill or other northern sites are not
on the preferred list is somehow that we were consi-
dered first and they just kept going back until they
found the ideal place, right in Balmoral. Well, how you
can combine the two | don’'t know. How you could
haveno interference onthe one hand and starttalking
about Churchill, Thompson and other northern sites
on the other hand is beyond me. So there, we have
what is happening, | think, contradictions, sure, but
that of course is of no concern to the members oppo-
site. They're merely trying to score political points at
the present time.

Now, if they would just listen to the arguments |
presented earlier, they might have seen where some
of the confusion on their part came from. It wasn't
from the jargon; it wasn't from the jargon at all, Mr.
Chairman. If they would look at the plain economic
factand compare the criterionlisted by Alcanwiththe
situation facing northern sites, they will find it, sure.
Wedonotmeetall thecriteria,and why? Isitastraight
factof economics? Noitisnot. Itis afactof infrastruc-
ture for the Member for Tuxedo. Have you seen the
condition of the rail line to Churchill? Have you seen
the conditions of our highway after the winter? | will
tellyouthat we certainly do notimmediately meet all
the criteria and it would be logical for Alcan notin a
vacuum to want to select such sites as Thompson or
Churchill, because if they selected it in a vacuum,
they would have to pay for the improvements to the
infrastructure. They would have to improve the rail
lines themselves which would be a prohibitive cost,
Mr. Chairman, while the Honourable Member for
Tuxedo asks who is going to pay?

The real question here that has to be raised in dis-
cussion with various other sites is to whether the
government can do anything to make other more
preferable sites, if they are indeed more preferable in
terms of socioeconomic reasons, available. It would
haveadvantagesforpeopleintheNorthtohavethese
areas developed. Now, I'm not saying that —(Inter-
jection)— well, the Honourable Member for Tuxedo
suggests that taxpayers will pay. Well, the taxpayers,
including the taxpayers of the North, have paid for

880

your fantastic highways down here. You can roll a
dime for 15miles and you won't run across one single
pot hole. It is common in a large part due to the
taxation which hasbeenresulted from developments
in Thompson through INCO, through the citizens of
Thompson. We pay our taxes too. | don't think it's too
much to suggest that we at least be considered, notby
Alcan because that's not their business. They don't
representthe people of Thompson; theydon't repres-
ent the people of the north. But, I'm saying that we
should at least be considered in these discussions by
the Provincial Government. | don't know exactly what
happened under the previous government because,
as | mentioned, thereis a contradiction. | suspect that
the Honourable Member for Turtle Mountain proba-
bly put it most accurately and that is that the previous
government didn't interfere. In other words they
didn't say anything. Well, as | mentioned, that creates
problems in discussing whether locating the smelter
is areas such as Thompson is feasible and | can see
that. But, | think it also creates problems at this par-
ticular point of the negotiations because of the very
fact that they’'ve done nothing thus far. They haven't
raised socioeconomic questions, they haven't raised
environmental questions. They let Alcan pick a site,
and what it leaves us with, as a government, as any
government would be faced with is a choice of one,
yes or no, if one sticks strictly to preferred site.

Now the impact of this is that we can go along, we
can analyse on one site, we can analyse all the envir-
onmental things, all the socioeconomic questions
and what happens if it's not a good place for it, we're
rejected and what do we do again — start the whole
processoveragain? Thatis, indeed, the dilemma that
is faced andit's my understanding of whatis happen-
ing and this is my own personal view, not that of the
Minister of Energy and Mines, who was actually
involved in the negotiations, buttheconceptreally is
we should sit down and in terms of preliminary dis-
cussions not exclude anything from the past, not
adopt a yes or no which could actually delay the
getting of an aluminum smelter for Manitoba, ayesor
no, or merely railroad through something simply
because we were left with a series of poor conditions
by the previous government but go from square one.

Now that doesn’t have to be putin economic terms
it can be put in terms of straight common sense. | put
it earlier in economic terms and | guess the honour-
able members opposite don't understand it. So, let's
putitin terms of straight common sense. We want an
aluminum smelterin Manitoba, | do, check with any of
the members of the government, that's what they want
too. The question really here is not whether or not we
want one but how we can get one and on what condi-
tions. What we're interested in is getting the best deal
for Manitobans and that means not what is the best
deal for Alcan because this is what the previous gov-
ernment was looking at. If it truly did not interfere in
the whole process, it was interested in giving Alcan
whatit could get asthebestdeal. We're not interested
in just that, sure it has to economically feasible for
Alcan, but it also has to make sense for the people of
Manitoba not just as an aluminum smelter but the
particular conditions and it's not a question of eco-
nomics, it's not a question strictly of dogma or the
black and white terms the Leader of the Opposition
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would like to place itin.

Well once again, the Leader of the Opposition
shows his complete ignorance of economics
—(Interjection)— oh, | see —(Interjection)— | under-
standthat I'm supposed to beinsulted here. | consider
this agreat honour because many of my constituents
wanted me to come here in this Chamber and do
battle with the members now occupying the position
of Leader of the Opposition, a position | mustsay he
does justice to. In fact, | would urge him to stay on in
that position, in fact run againin the next election so
that | can continue my debates with the honourable
member from this Chamber because | can say virtu-
ally everyone of my constituents said, getdown there
and show — well, I'm sorry that's unparliamentary
language — it was in reference to the Honourable
Leader of the Opposition.

Anyway —(Interjection)— once again, | can see
that the honourable member is trying to insult me, |
suppose the term landslide was in reference my mar-
gin of victory in the election campaign —(Inter-
jection)—1 will tell the Leader of the Opposition that if
he wants to talk about landslides he should perhaps
talk to the individual who | beat, as he was buried
nonetheless. And | would suggest that really if one
looks at it that it shows the height of arrogance to
bring up this kind of alabel. Perhaps all the members
opposite feel they're from safe Tory seats, they've
done such a great job and they won by such wide
victory margins. | wouldremind them of some of their
former colleagues who were in the same boat and |
would mention one from the constituency of Riel who
won by substantial margins and whoalsolost. Thatis
politics, Mr. Chairman, | don’t think it's the suitable
thing to bring into this Chamber, that kind of rather
childish insult.

But as | said in conclusion, | think what we need
hereis constructive criticism, not this kind of ideolog-
ical grandstanding on the part of the Leader of the
Opposition, not these inconsistent statements which
try to cover up the mistakes of the previous govern-
ment. Really it's not what the people of Manitoba
expect from this Assembly and the petty insults
included. What they want is for us to get on with the
business of this province without therhetoric; without
the grandstanding; with straight constructive criti-
cism; constructive suggestions; and sure if the gov-
ernment fails, strong criticism for that failure.

But this is not what's happening here, the honour-
able members opposite are trying to set up straw-
men, bogey-men. Nothing more than than. They're
trying through various inconsistent attacks to make
political points. Well, that's not what the people of
Manitoba want, Mr. Chairman, they don’t want politi-
cal points, the want for us to get on with the business
of the province.

MR.LYON: Mr. Chairman, | daresaythat all members
of the House feel instructed by the recent comments
from the Member for Thompson so recently removed
from the University of Manitoba Students Union that
he feels he has to repeat some of those speeches for
that greatbody in this Chamber. All we can say to the
honourable member is that we hope that his learning
experience here in the next two-and-a-half, three
years, which will be about the length of his term in this
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House, will be a positive one for him, that he will gain
from his brief exposureto more adult arenas than he
has been accustomed to dealing with.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for La
Verendrye.

MR.ROBERT(Bob)BANMAN (LaVerendrye): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman, after listening to the Member for
Thompson | guess one of the phrases that he used
and which | have to pick on what do the people of
Manitoba expect? Well, Mr. Chairman, what the peo-
ple of Manitoba expect is job opportunities and job
opportunities will be brought by projects such as
Alcan.Butlwanttojustverybrieflyrelatethetragedy,
what | think is happening with this whole thing: Alcan
in their wisdom chose two primary sites in the Prov-
ince of Manitoba, one was in Balmoral, one was in
Eastern Manitoba. And, Mr. Chairman, what | secretly
hoped, and what the people in Eastern Manitoba
secretly hoped was that we could as Manitobans
attract Alcan who did choose the Balmoral site to
locate in Balmoral. And once having secured those
650-700 permanent jobs along with the thousands of
construction jobs that brought over the next five years
we could then could go after Alcoa, Reynolds, hope-
fully and just by looking at the site selection then
induce by proper arrangements, benefits to the peo-
ple of Manitoba, induce another aluminum company,
Mr. Chairman, to come to Eastern Manitoba.

Herein lies the tragedy, Mr. Chairman, what we are
doing here; we are not only alienating the one com-
pany from coming to Manitoba, instead of parlaying
onthe oneopportunity thatwehavein thisprovinceto
gain another company, we are losing even the one
chance to get the one. What we have heard from the
members opposite over the last little while; well, if
Alcan doesn’'tcome, we're goingto AlcoaorReynolds
or somebody else. Well, Mr. Chairman, | say to you
that's not good enough. We need as many things to
happen here in this Province of Manitoba as we can
possibly get and what is happening is that we are
seeing the members opposite fiddle this whole thing
away. Wehaveheardthe Minister of Environmentsay
today that really there is no socioeconomic environ-
mental impact study that can be properly conducted
unless we know the site. He has just said, well wedon't
know what the site is going to be. We, when we werein
government, knew what we wanted to see the study
done on and that was the Balmoral site.

So, whatlsaytoeveryManitoban is that by the very
admission tonight we find out that we are much
furtherdownthe tubeofever getting an Alcansmelter
or any other aluminum smelter in this province than
we were six months ago. That's a fact of life and that
was pointed out there tonight. So let no Manitobans
be undertheillusionthat we are looking atjobsin the
immediate future. What this government is doing is
jeopardizing, not only the Alcan deal, but any future
deals that could possibly benefit and | speak of a
parochial nature right now — Eastern Manitoba.

| have to say to you, Mr. Chairman, tonight, that the
big concern in Eastern Manitoba and in the Interlake,
having spoken to members from the Interlake, the big
concernisthelossasitisin Thompsonofpeoplewho
raise their children in the Interlake, in Eastern Mani-
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toba, see those children leave, move to Winnipeg; the
urbanization trend that we have seen happen the last
little while in this province. | think we had a dream, a
vision in the last number of years, of trying to locate
some of these facilities outside of the City of Win-
nipeg without trying tolocate all these people in one
large, metropolitan area where we all know the social
problems and things that go on with large metropoli-
tan areas is not conducive to proper — and | have to
say to proper family life, to proper social life in this
province.

The great tragedy that we see happening here
tonightand by the admission of the Minister in charge
of the Environment is that we have seen something
happen here which is not going to be in the best
interests of the people of Manitoba. We're all con-
cerned about the environment. We don’t want to see
unnecessary pollution but, Mr. Chairman, we want to
seethose jobs created here. Anything thathappens to
go ahead and put these jobs off, to stall, | believe in the
future will not only hurt ourselves but will hurt the
future generations in Manitoba. We have an opportun-
ity; wehavetheresource; wewere going along apath
which | believed tobeasound andproperone; we had
commissioned the studies; we had located the site; we
would have had things in place but the way it looks
right now, Mr. Chairman, is that the whole thingisin
jeopardy. It's jobs that the people of Manitoba want.
We have one of the highest unemployment rates that
we've had over the last number of years.

The member who is now the Minister, the Member
for Churchill, the Minister of Environment, got up in
this House on December 8, | believe, in 1977, and
decried the unemployment rate in this province at 6.5
percent. What is ittoday? Mr. Chairman, it's one per-
centage pointhigher and he said to the government of
the day, what have you been doing? You've been
sitting on your hands and to quote him verbatim, he
said “shame, shame, Mr. Chairman.” That's what he
said on December 8, 1977. Now hesits in that position
as somebody who could do something about that in
attracting industry and what do we have; we have a
bunch of fudging here tonight. So, it's time, Mr.
Speaker, Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, however, you're
doing just as good a job as a Speaker would ever do.
Thank you.

We have something very interesting happening.
You have the Minister of Environment who four short
yearsraked thegovernmentacross the coals —anew
government that had been in power for only a month
and a half — raked them across the coals for a high
unemployment rate. Nowyou have the same Minister
sitting here with a much higher unemployment rate
and an opportunity here for a large project, not only
for permanent jobs but for construction and heaven
knows we need those construction jobs now. We need
the spinoff that that can bring, so don't tell us here
tonight that really what you've done is you've stalled
the whole thing because by your own admission,
you've done it. There is no way you're going to geta
proper social economic study if you don't have a
proper sitein mind and you've admitted that tonight.
So, what you have really done by admitting that is
push the whole project over forward, Mr. Chairman,
forward into the future. We need those jobsnow. The
people of Manitoba want those jobs now, so let's get
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on with it. Let's just not trade off Alcan for Reynolds or
for somebody else. Let's geta couple of them in place
so that the people of Manitoba will be able to stay in
Manitoba. That was our vision and that's the vision |
wouldlike to see for my children and for my children’s
children.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Couldljustaskthatperhapsweget
closer to the point? We've sort of had a very wide
rangingdiscussion forthelasthour and three-quarters
now and it started outinnocently enough on the issue
of the environment concerning Alcan but we seem to
have stretched beyond that. | wondered if we could
have questions to the point.
The Honourable Member for Tuxedo.

MR. FILMON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your
suggestions in that regard and | know that the
Member for Turtle Mountain has a couple of items to
cover on this particular subject but | just want to
summarize what we've learned here on this topic and
the topicisindeed the establishment of an aluminum
smelterin Manitoba. | think it's been very enlightening
because obviously it has answered some questions
that have been on our minds and that in fact perhaps
have not been adequately answered in the question
period and thatis the purpose of the Estimates debate
in that it gives us an opportunity to further expand
without being constrained by virtue of the rules of
question periodto gettheinformation outon thetable
that we can all deal with.

All of us on this side | think were aware of the fact
that Alcan was committed to the preparation of an
environmental impact statement in a socioeconomic
assessment statement by December 31, 1981 and |
think we have all wondered why that has not taken
place. We're now almost three months down the road
and yet there is no environmental impact statement
and no socioeconomic impact statement available,
although, | know it's being done in stages and | know
that parts of it are in the hands of the Department of
the Environment for review. But the Minister has con-
firmed and he can correct me if this is an incorrect
statement, that no further valid consideration of the
environmental assessment review or the socioeco-
nomic assessment review can be proceeded with
without the acknowledgment of a specific site and
therefore in effect the aluminum smelter proposal for
Manitoba is on the shelf at the present time to all
intents and purposes and as | say, the Minister can
correct me if that's not a correct statement, but I'll
leave it at that.

MR.COWAN: Basically what | have said is that there
are certain aspects of the review which is ongoing
now which canin fact be a benefitto us because they
are of ageneral nature and we are applying ourselves
to those aspects. I've also said that you can’t have a
full-scale environmental assessment review process
or a full-scale socioeconomic assessment review
process until you have a site located.

MR.FILMON: Although some limited aspects can be
examined and these are technological in nature, likely
todowiththe process and thatsortof thing that would
be transferrable to any site, the rest of the review
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process and, without question, the major part of the
review processis not able to be proceeded with atthe
present time due to the fact that the preconditions
havebeenremoved and therefore thesiteisnolonger
part of the equation unless and until the government
makes a decision in concert with Alcan on it, so as
longaswecanleave thatonthetable, | thinkit'sfairto
saythatthe projectis ontheshelfatthe present time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 5.(a)(1)—pass — the Member for
Tuxedo.

MR.FILMON: Mr. Chairman, if we can leaveit at that
then | would like to ask the Minister a number of
questions on other issues, other issues to do with the
environment in Manitoba.

The first one is, there is or has been an ongoing
study on a variety of different fronts to do with the
so-called former Domtar site in the Transcona area.
These involve soil testing, ground water testing and
assessment to do with the chemicals thatwereleftin
waste on the site and then were covered with wood-
chips and so on and so forth and the whole, as the
Minister well knows, the whole question ofthe poten-
tial use of that site for residential purposes, for park
purposes, forstreets,roads and whatever have you as
a subdivision was planned, was in limbo at the time
thatwe left office. Butl wasaware atthattimethatthe
studies were close to completion so thatthere would
be an assessment very shortly of the potential hazards,
the potential dangers of utilization of not only that
site, but adjacent sites from migration of chemicals
through the soil or through underground streams or
whatever that were of concern to the entire area and
the people of the Transcona area and, in particular,
people whoweresurrounding the former Domtarsite.

| wonder if the Minister could give us the present
status of the testing and the reviews that are taking
place and just what information has exactly been
determined?

MR.COWAN: Itis my understanding, and | have had
discussions with the Member for Transcona, the Min-
ister for Energy and Mines and the Member for Radis-
son, as well as others, on this that extensive sampling
has been undertaken through a program worked out
last fall as the Member for Tuxedo suggested. Those
samples have been collected and analysed and they
were analysed primarily for pentachlorophenol oil
which is known commonly as PCP. Eight samples
with the highest PCP levels have been forwarded to
Agriculture of Canada to their laboratory for impurity
analysis for dioxins and dibenzo furan, etc. Their
results should be available within this month. Those
are some fairly complex sampling procedures as the
member is aware so we are waiting forthe results. The
rehabilitation program will be worked out once we
find out those results and there will be a meeting
arrangedwithDomtar, | would hope, in April. Perhaps
it may be a month later to work out that rehabilitation
program and to discuss the results. As it is now the
area is fenced off, we are looking at that fence,
because we want to make certain that it is adequate
and we are also looking at posting of signs in that
area, not only to say keep out, but to provide a bit
more information as to why the area should not
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be trespassed.

MR. FILMON: Would the Minister indicate, Mr.
Chairman, whether or not at the present time the
indicationsarethatsitemaybeunabletobeusedfora
residential development with all of the other compo-
nents of the residential development given the current
assessment ofinformation available? Because there's
not only the concern for this specific site for which
thereis a proposed development, and a planthatwas
put forward by a certain developer, but there is the
concern of people adjacent. | recall during my term of
office that we, in fact, did some soil testing in yards
adjacent to the site because people were saying can
we live here any longer, can our children play in the
yards, is there something more to it, what the poten-
tial for migration is. | know that a lot of the samples,
because of the very complex testing that had to be
done, were sentaway to Ontario to labs there and so
on. Is there any further indication that would either
allay the fears of the people adjacent who are already
living there? The Minister was talking in terms of
remedial action for restoration of the site that would
allowforfuture development, but morespecifically to
the point, are there any reasons for concern for the
people who live adjacent to the area.

MR.COWAN: Itis my understanding that we have not
determined off-site migration of contaminants to
date.l amalsoinformedthat we will be continuing the
discussions with Domtar in order to come up with an
appropriaterehabilitation program. That may, in fact,
preclude development on the area. We have to wait
and see which results show what in respect to con-
tamination. I'm not certain whether or not there will be
aneed for furthertesting, butifthereis we willunder-
take that testing. We have to make a determination as
to whether development can be allowed on site at that
time.

MR. FILMON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think that
the Minister is telling me that there's not further evi-
dence that would give rise for concern to people who
are already living adjacent to the site; that further
discussion will take place with respect to future
development of the specific Domtar site after the test-
ing results are available. If that's the case, then we'll
leave it at that.

MR.COWAN: Itis myunderstanding that we have not
found contaminants off site. You know when we talk
about concern, as the memberisaware, we are talking
about asubtle fear on the partofresidents because of
theirknowledge of certain aspects of the problem and
beingunabletoincorporatethatinto their daily exist-
ence, and so what we have to do is go to them and |
know the member wrote some letters to them in the
past, perhaps we have to look at that sort of exercise
again and bring them up to date as to what we have
found. There will still concernafterthat butatleastwe
will be able to provide them with our fullest informa-
tion. We are not doing so to lessen their concern
because | think that concern is important if it's
focused in the right direction. | don't believe the
member opposite did so to lessen their concern but |
think he did, and we will do so, to provide them with
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accurate information upon which they can base their
own personal decisions as to whether or not to be
concerned. If they are still concerned and still need
more information, then we have to go with them to
provide that information as long as it is appropriate.
There becomes a case, | am certain, where you can't
allay the concern even with the best available evi-
dence, in which caseyou arejust going tohavetodeal
with it on that basis. | am prepared to look at sending
out another letter to the residents in the area, as was
done before, advising them of what we have found
once we are a bit further down the path in respect to
the rehabilitation program.

MR. WARREN STEEN (River Heights): I'd like to
direct a question to the Honourable Minister and |
don't expect he has the answer but perhaps he could
findthe answer outfor meand, if we are off this topic,
he could give me the answer in writing from his
department at a later date.

Early last fall, Mr. Chairman, |, at that time wrote the
then Minister, my colleague, the Member for Tuxedo,
aletterconcerningaconcern ofanumberofbusiness
establishments on Pembina Highway in the Grant
Avenue area, such as car washes, an ice cream Dairy
Queen business, and so on. At that particular corner,
Sir, through you to the Minister, there is a plant that, |
believe, isowned now by a firm known as Steele Bros.,
butitusedtobe Winnipeg Supply and Fuel foryears.|
believe it's a lime manufacturing plant that plastering
contractors buy materials from and a number of local
businesses in the area, as well asresidents in the area,
used to complain about the dust that was given off at
this particular plant. Although, Sir, it's not in my con-
stituency now, as it was at that time, it's in the Hon-
ourable Member for Osborne’s constituency, but | did
communicate to the Minister at the time and | believe
he was to have his department at the time investigate
it, and the election was upon us and the Minister was
no longer there to reply to my questions. So perhaps
this Minister could investigate my concern and, if |
have not given him sufficientinformation at this time, |
can get the correspondence and relate it to him to his
office.

MR. COWAN: I'm certain we have that correspon-
dence on file and | will ask my staffto provide me with
the correspondence and an update asto where thatis
atthispresenttime.lcaninform the MemberforRiver
Heights, Mr. Chairperson, a hearingwas held approx-
imately four to five weeks ago, and | may be off a bit
either way on that, but within the past couple of
months ahearing has been held. Thoserecommenda-
tions aren’t forthcoming yet but | will make a note to
ensure that the Member for River Heights receives a
copy of that hearing document as soon as it's availa-
ble, and then, if he has further questions at that time,
perhaps we candiscuss them in detail. Or, if he wants
to give me some questions as notice now, we can try
to investigate them between now and the receipt of
the hearing, but since wedo have a hearing in process
and we do have a report expected, | would suggest
that might be the most expedient way to deal with it
and | thank the member for bringing this to my atten-
tion. | will provide him with that data as soon
as it's available.
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MR. STEEN: | thank the Minister for his reply and |
will look forward to receiving a copy of the material
that the Minister has made mention of and, to the
Minister, | don'thaveany further questionsonitat the
present time but I'm sure that if there are any further
questionsatthetime I receive thedata, | can takeit up
with him through his office.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 5.(a)(1)—pass — the Honourable
Member for Kirkfield Park.

MRS. GERRIE HAMMOND (Kirkfield Park): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. My question is concerning the
effluent that would be flowing into the Sturgeon
Creek. The Minister gave an answer in question
period today and he mentioned that there is a period
of three years that it could be in the holding tank and,
from information that was given at the hearing, there
was conflicting evidence on that, and it's possible that
a year and a half may be all the time that they would
have and actually fromlooking at the figures, it could
belessthanthat. | don'tthink the Minister has a year
toinvestigate or find that information out and consid-
ering that there were 1,400 plus another 300 signa-
tures coming out of the area of St. James and that the
City of Winnipeg opposed the proposal, I'm just
wondering what kind of time we're looking at as faras
the Sturgeon Creek is concerned. | wonder, Mr.
Chairman, if the Minister could give me any more
information on that particular proposal?

MR. COWAN: | will certainly ask for a more detailed
review as to what the Member for Kirkfield park indi-
cates may be conflicting evidence in respect to the
length of time before that sewage lagoon would have
to emptied. | will attempt to provide that to her in due
course, but perhaps | can just provide a background
statement now, and then if other questions arise out
of that, we can address them as well.

Pursuant to the provisions of The Clean Environ-
mentAct, the Rural Municipality of Woodlands filed a
proposal to the department on January 31st, 1980 in
connection with a proposed sewage lagoon system to
serve the unincorporated Village of Warren. This pro-
posal called for the discharge of effluent from the
second cell in to adjacent land. In July of 1980, the
Council of the Rural Municipality decided to alter
their proposal to specify discharge of effluent from
the second cell to the Sturgeon Creek drain and
hence to Sturgeon Creek, and therein lies the con-
cerns of the residents in the area. Approval from
Water Resources to use a drain was obtained on
August5th, 1980. A revised application reflecting this
position was filed with the Environmental Manage-
ment Division on January 19th, 1981, so that elevated
the concern because the Water Resources had indi-
cated thatthey were preparedto allow thatto happen.
They did so based on the best available evidence to
them. That does not, in fact, diminish the concerns of
the residents of the area, nor should it diminish the
concerns of the residents of the area, and, accord-
ingly, a group of citizens was organized to oppose this
discharge into Sturgeon Creek.

The group held a public meeting on January 29th,
1981, at which division staff attended and attempted
to explain the operation of thesewagelagoon. I'm not



Thursday, 25 March, 1982

certain that's the only meeting that they held, but | do
know that is one of the meetings for which | have a
date and can place some information to. The Clean
Environment Commission then held a public hearing
in Warren on February 16th, 1981. On April 10th, as |
indicated to the member during the question period,
the Clean Environment Commission issued Order
9114, which allowed for the discharge of effluent to
the Sturgeon Creek Drain. Again, they hadreviewed it
from the perspective of the best available technical
information; they had approved the discharge of
effluent to the Sturgeon Creek Drain; there were con-
cerns on the part of residents in the area still, even
given those two confirmations of the process. From a
technical point of view discharge to Sturgeon Creek
Drain did not seem to create many problems at that
time, however, one has to take into consideration the
concerns of individuals as well.

It's interesting, the Member for Tuxedo may be
aware, they justhadarecentcaseintheStates where
they held an environmental assessmment and they
decided that in respect to the Three Mile Island inci-
dent that that plant could not start operations again
untilit had dealt with the concerns o fresidents in the
area.lt'sanewstageof environmental law, one which
is worthy of consideration. | wouldn’'t want to com-
ment upon it other than that at this time. But it shows
how aware we as decision makers, all of us, | include
all members in this Chamber, and others outside of
this Chamber as decision makers, are becoming of
concern and the effect that apprehension and anxiety
has on our populous. | think that's important.

So while | say that from a technical standpoint the
discharge of effluent into the Sturgeon Creek Drain
was acceptable to many bodies reviewing it, | don't
mean to in any way take away from the concern which
was felt on the part of residents and the need for
government, their representatives and the Member
for Kirkfield Park is doing that now, to talk about that
concern and to make certain that concern is taken
into consideration when decision makers make their
deliberations.I'm notsayingthatconcernis always an
overriding factor, but it must always be a factor and a
part of the equation when we attempt to devise
decisions.

So as a result of those concerns, appeals from
Order 914 were filed by an individual and by the City
of Winnipeg. Subsequently the Minister at the time,
the Member now forTuxedo, directed thata meeting
be convened with the Environmental Management
Division, Agro-Water Services of the Department of
Agriculture and respresentatives of the Rural Munici-
pality of Woodlands. His mandate for that meeting, |
believe, and he can correct me if I'm wrong, was to
determine if the rural municipality would reverse their
position and agree to land disposal if financial assis-
tance is made available.

Now that's my understanding of the situation. I'm
certain technical assistance was included in that as
well. That meeting was held on May 5th, 1981, and it
was agreed that Agro-Water Services in concert with
the Rural Municipality of Woodlands would submit an
alternative proposal calling for land disposal of the
effluent. This would be an experimental irrigation
program to be carried out under the auspices of the
Agro-Water Services. The decision onthe appeal was
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by theindividual, and the City of Winnipeg atthat time
were deferred by the Minister of the Day, the Member
for Tuxedo, pending receipt of this alternative
proposal.

We have not received the alternative proposal yet.
However, | can assure you that it is being developed
by Agro-Water Services, and we're dealing with some
experimental and innovative ideas here, and there is
certainlysomereasonforthattotakeabitoftime.I'm
told and | hopethat we will receive that by the end of
this year, some time during the course of this year.

I'm also informed that the lagoon has been con-
structed and is receiving some liquid waste, however,
the lagoon will not require discharging for at least
three years. My staff have confirmed that to me just
now. However, becausethere are still concerns which
must be taken into consideration, | will go back over
that situation with them and try to provide a more
detailed explanation as to why we have reached that
conclusion to the Member for Kirkfield Park. She can
then takethatto her constituentsand others whohave
voiced theirconcerns andif atthat timeitis foundthat
they arestill concerned, | would ask her and invite her
to arrange a meeting with myself and herself and
those individuals who are concerned, where we can
sitdown on a one-to-one basis or a one-to-five basis
or whatever it may be at that time and discuss it, at
least on a face-to-face basis, and discuss their con-
cerns and I'll have staff present to try to provide the
technical background.

MRS. HAMMOND: Mr. Speaker, | thank the Minister
for the explanation and the offer certainly to meet with
constituents,but | think thatthe basisthey weregoing
on, thatthe Agro-Water —they were the consultants
— used a figure of 190 liters per day per person of
water, while the City of Winnipeg used a figure of 450
liters per person perday when planning, and although
there are schools and institutions in the city that
probably are not in the Warren area, they were also
mentioning that is was just a bedroom community
which was disputed by the people at the environment
meeting, who said that it's a farm community. They
then went on further to say that they felt that the
storage capacity as proposed would pose serious
problems and that when the facilities were over-
loaded, which could well happen before your con-
cerns are looked at within the year, that they would
have to discharge into the creek and since the creek
after a certain period is very slow moving, down to a
trickle, that we've got a problem sitting in the heart of
the city, that the city in turn has spent over $750,000in
developing a park.

Soreally | think that all the concerns of the citizens
are laid down for the department to look at right now
and | don’t know why they would need a year to look
further at this situation. | really am feeling very con-
cerned thatifit's left for ayearorsix months thatwe're
going to run into a problem that then — it won’t be a
problem as the Minister | think just was mentioning,
Mr. Speaker —that there's a subtle fear on behalf of
the citizens. It would be certainly more than a subtle
fear if they're sitting with effluent in the creek, where
we've built a major tourist attraction as far as Grant's
Old Mill is concerned, and that we have tourists stop-
ping and buying the grainthat they're using in the mill
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and here we have a situation that they're looking atin
a year's time.

| really don't think that's good enough and | think
fromtheinformation that was gleaned fromthe Clean
Environment Hearing, | think they can move on it
much quicker than that and | would certainly hope,
because | can understand that certainly everything
that the Minister has said dealing with the environ-
mentthatthisis hisuppermostconcernand| wouldn't
like to think that it was only for the north and not for
thecity and especially St. James. Thishasbeen avery
genuine concern with the people in St. James. We've
got a park there that people are using in winter and in
summer and just to think that your staff is going to
look at it within the year or maybe when the time
comes it has priority, | really am feeling is not quite
good enoughand | would like acommitment from the
Minister that this would be uppermost and | think if
they justlooked atwhat came out of the hearing, they
would be abletodeal with many ofthe mattersthatare
before them right now.

MR. COWAN: The Member for Kirkfield Park's con-
cerns areindeed well expressed and appreciated. I've
asked my staff if we can monitor the lagoon cell ona
monthly basis over that period of time while the pro-
posal is being developed so that we would be able to
forecast any need to discharge the effluent long
before that need became apparent, and therefore, we
could put into place the proper control measures to
preventdischarge which would be detrimental. | hope
that sort of an ongoing monitoring program would
helpallay some of those concernsand whatwe cando
ismakecertainthatthe Member for Kirkfield Park and
other individuals who are interested are made aware
of the results of that monitoring report on a monthly
basis.

MRS. HAMMOND: Yes, Mr. Chairman, | appreciate
that the Minister is trying to be helpful with monitor-
ing on a month-to-month basis. I'm not a technical
person myself and | don't know that if they found a
problem just how quickly then they could deal with it.
I guess thisis the problem of myself and of the people
in St. James, that unless you can deal with it in an
urgentmanner,it’'snotgoing tobe of much valuetous
even monitoringitfrommonthtomonth. | appreciate
it and am glad that the Minister is certainly willing to
do that but as the people from St. James, and not just
St. James but along the route, Rosser | think, and
Warren, different ones have said that if something
happens then its a matter of cleaning up another
seweredwaterway asthe Redand the Assinboine, the
Seine, the Souris are. | don't think we want to getinto
thatsituation so | appreciate what you're telling me on
behalf of your department but | really do feel that
unless | have assurance that something can be done
about it immediately, it's going to be cold comfort to
the citizens of St. James if the effluent is sitting in the
creek.

MR. COWAN: Perhaps then, we should have that
meeting sooner rather than later and | would ask my
staff to attend and the Member for Kirkfield Park to
attend and to bring with herresidents of thearea who
have expressed those concerns to her and we can sit
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downand review the optionswhich areavailableto us
during that meeting and by way of that discussion
attempt to develop a system for monitoring and for
taking action if necessary that will suit the needs of
the area residents.

MRS. HAMMOND: Thank you Mr. Minister, | cer-
tainly will attempt to do that and I'll be in touch with
your officetoseewhatcan be worked outas farasthe
meeting.

MR. FILMON: Mr. Chairman, | don't wish restate the
casethathasbeenveryeloquently put forward by the
Member for Kirkfield Park but just to citean example
of the kind of thing that can happen with respect to
projections of time for filling of lagoons, | believe that
the original projection for the need for discharge of
the lagoon at Roblin was about a year from now or
very close to a year from now and we were faced
earlier this fall with the very emergent situation of the
lagoon being almost full. Therefore the system that
was being putin place forland disposal of the effluent
was needed considerably earlier than originally pro-
jected and it may well be that the Minister in having
the matter reviewed will find a similarincidence. So, |
don’t think that the member’'s concerns ought to be
taken lightly and | know that he won't and | know that
he has given that assurance.

I mightalsoindicate thatresidents of the area, some
month or two ago, phoned the Minister's office
expressing concerns that have been raised tonight by
the Member for Kirfield Park and upon phoning the
Minister's office, theyweretold anumberof things by
arepresentative of the Minister's office, one of which
was that, firstly they couldn’t give any assurances or
any information to the residents of the St. James-
Assiniboia area who were concerned about the pro-
ject proceeding because of the fact that all the files
had been taken by the former government and there-
fore they didn't have any information available to
them to give answers, and obviously | know that the
Minister is well aware that at least his Assistant
Deputy-Minister and technical staff still had their files
and could well have given the information to these
people.

When a second call was made, sometime later and |
would imagine that gave the staff the opportunity to
lookintoitalittle moreclosely,theyweretold thatthe
lagoon had already been constructed and therefore
the whole issue was finalized and nothing else could
be done on the matter. They were obviously very
concerned and they got in touch with the Member for
Kirkfield Park and myself and | was able to give them
the assurance that yes indeed, the lagoon had been
built, in fact, it had been built prior to our leaving
office butthere was a time projection for the filling of
the two cells of the lagoon and there was not a need
for discharge for at least a year to two years, three
years was the projection but certainly there didn't
appear tobe any concernthatit would take place any
sooner than this coming year.

So, there is a great deal of concern and it's the
apprehension that the Minister has referred to and |
would hope that by giving full and complete informa-
tion as to the status of the project, a recalculation of
the projections for the filling time for the two cells of
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the lagoon and the need for discharge of the lagoon
into whatever final repository takes place that the
Minister will be able to assure those residents of the
St. James-Assiniboia area as to just exactly needs to
be done in order to help in the solution of their
problem.

MR. COWAN: | thank the Member for Tuxedo for that
information. | will check to see where the difficulty
arose and | want the record to be clear that I've not
had, nor havel experienced any difficulty in obtaining
information which | thought was necessary to me as
Minister responsible for the Environment. Not all the
fileswerein the immediate office but that's never the
caseanyway and thefilesarecertainly available to the
Minister. If the Member for Tuxedo would relay that
information on to those individuals and apologize on
my behalf for them, | would appreciate that, and the
Member for Kirkfield Park as well.

I will check into the incident to find out if, in fact,
there are ways which we can correct that sort of prob-
lem. | don't think it was done in a malicious way.
Perhaps they had looked for files and not found them
in the immediate office and that was the reason for
that sort of a statement, but | will certainly check into
it and make certain that it is prevented as much as
possible in the future.

We'vebeenrising around this time, | wonder ifthere
would be adispositiononthe part of the committee to
have committee rise now. We can continue if you
wish, but I'd just suggest thatit's probably an approp-
riate time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Committee rise
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